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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF RELIGARE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT FINAI{CE CORPORATION
LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RELIGARE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT
FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED ("the Comp&fly"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 3lst
March 2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information, (hereinafter
referred to as "the financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013 in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind
AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as

at March 31,2025, its loss (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143 ( I 0) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 andthe Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on

the fi nancial statement.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 44 (3) of the financial statements. As per RBI Master Direction - Reserue Bank
of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions ("MD-TLE'),2021 dated September 24,2021 (updated

as on December 28, 2023), RBI has advised for provisioning in respect of investment in Security Receipt
(SRs). Accordingly, the company is carrying a provision of Rs.309.41 Lakhs as on March 31,2025 in
respect of two separate transactions with RARC Trust in terms of clause 77 A of the aforesaid MD-TLE.
Fufther,balanceprovisionofRs.l84.gl lakhsshallbeprovidedinthebooksofaccountsovertheremaining
period, as per applicable guidelines.

However, NPA loan receivables continue to remain derecognized and classified as investment in SRs as

on March 31,2025.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements is not modified in respect of above matter
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Company's Board Report is expected to be made available
to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is

materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Company's Board Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions,
as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act,2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position; financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditoros Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial

MEH
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identiff and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from effor, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls.

o

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modiff
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate,

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial
Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identiff during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order") issued by the Central

Government in terms of Section 143 (l 1) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a statement on the matters

a

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order
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2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as

it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Acto read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the wriffen representations received from the directors as on 3l st March, 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3lst March, 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
otAnnexure 8".

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of information and according to explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule I I
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Financial Statements. Refer Note 39 to the Financial Statements.

l.

lll

the company has made provisions, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for foreseeable losses on long term contracts - Refer Note 8 and the Company did
not have any derivative contracts as at 3 I'r March 2025.

there were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 3l't March 2025.

a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)

by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,

fr.D
**
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whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf ofthe Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) ofRule I l(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

the company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31,2025.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software, r as described in note 52 to the financial statements, Further, during
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with in respect of these software and the audit trail has been preserved by the

Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's o. 000756N/lt{500441

a

Jalaj Soni
Partner
Membership No.

UDIN: 255287998MIHVI5662

Place:New Delhi
Date: May 5,2025

*
NEW DELHI
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ANNEXT]RE ..A'TO TIIE IIIDEPEIIDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph I under 'Report on Other Legal and RegulatorT Requirementso section of
our report to the Members of R"ELIGARE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT FINANCE
CORPORATION LIMITED of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the

books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:-

i. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

a. (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets

b The Properfy, Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the management according
to a phased program designed to cover all the items once in three years, which in our opinion
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its Assets. Pursuant

to the programme, physical verification was performed during the year. According to the

information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on physical

verification.

Based on the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not have any

immovable
property, hence reporting under clause 3(i) (c) ofthe order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right- of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the

Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any Benami property under the Benami

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order

is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has been sanctioned overdraft against fixed deposits in excess offive crore

rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions. However, there are no covenants in the

sanction letters w.r.t. furnishing the quarterly returns / statements for such sanctioned overdraft

c

d.

e

limits.
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(a) Reporting under clause 3(iiiXa) of the Order is not applicable as the Company is a housing

finance company whose principal business is to give loans.

(b) In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans

provided, during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest. Company

has not provided any guarantee or security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships

or any other parties.

(c) The company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company, is

registered under provision of The National Housing Finance Act, 1987 and rules made

thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provision of the said AcV Rules, particularly,

the Income Recognition, Asset classification and Provisioning Norms and generally accepted

business practices by the lending institutions, repayments scheduled are stipulated basis the

nature of loan products. The repayment of the principal and the payment of interest by the

borrower's are as per the stipulated repayment schedule except in case of default cases - Refer

Note 8 of the financial statements,

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the details of total amount overdue above 90 days

are as follows:-
nt in Rs. in Lakhs)

Based on the information & explanations given to us, reasonable steps have been taken by

the Company for the recovery of the Principal & Interest.

(e) Reporting under clause 3(iiiXe) of the Order is not applicable as the Company is a housing

finance company whose principal business is to give loans.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable

on demand or without speciS,ing any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence the

reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loan or

guarantee or provided any security covered under section 185 of the Companies Act,2013. The

company has complied with the provisions of section I 86 of the companies act 2013 in respect of
the investments made,

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,

Total OverdueNos of
Cases

Principal
Overdue

Interest
OverdueType of Loan

24.79 96,59 t21.38Housing 82

88,85 116.39AgainstLoan
Property

50 27.54

237.77132 52.33 185.44Total

reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.
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The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-

section ( I ) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the

Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. In respect ofstatutory dues:

In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and

other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty
of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March

31,2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except

labour welfare fund amount of Rs. 0.05 Lakhs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
the records of the Company, there were no dues in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,

goods and services tax, duty of customs, duty of excise or value added tax which have not been

deposited on account ofany dispute.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196l (43 of
1e61).

a,

b

vln

lx (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borowings or in the payment

of Interest thereon to any lender and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not

applicable.

(b) Based on the information and explanations obtained by us, the Company has not been declared

wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any term

loar dur"ing the year and hence, rcporting under clausc 3(ixXc) of thc Crder is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on overall examination of the

financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not raised any funds on short

term basis during the year. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,

the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the

obligations of its associate, Fufther, the company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture.

q
U)
*
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(f) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,

the Company has not raised loans on the pledge of securities held in its associate companies during

the year. Further, the company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture. Hence, reporting under

clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is

not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, during the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement

of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause

3(xXb) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed or reported during the period

covered by our audit,

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form

ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central

Government, during the year and upto the date of this report,

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by

the company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not

applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section I77 and 188 of the Companies Act,2013

with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party

transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Ind AS.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, in our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the

size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company

during the year and till date of our report, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit

procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records

of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons

connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(a)The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act,1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable'
XVI.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve

Bank of India Act, 1934. The Company is a Housing finance Company registered with the National
Housing bank ("NHB") under section 29A of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987. As per RBI
Press release2019-20201419 dated August 13,2019 the regulation for Housing Finance Companies

has been transferued from NFIB to RBI.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made

by the Reserve Bank of India, accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records, there is one core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016).

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current year amounting to Rs. l,l13.90 Lakhs. In the

immediately preceding financial year, the company had incuned cash losses amounting to Rs. 606.66

Lakhs.

There has been no resignation of statutory auditors of the company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the

evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe

that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not

capable of rneeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as

to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to

the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the

Company as and when they fall due.

Section 135 of the Act is not applicable on the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a)

& (b) of the Order is not applicable for the Year.

For S S Kothari Mchta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 000756N4I500441

a
Jalaj Soni a* *

Paftner

Membership No. 799

IIDIN : 25 5281 99BMIHVI5 662

Place:New Delhi
Date: May 5,2025

NEW DE!-HI
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"Annexure B" to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
RELIGARE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT FINAI\CE CORPORATION LIMITED.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of 'Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirementso of our Independent Auditor's Report

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of RELIGARE
HOUSING DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED ("the Company") as of March

31,2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on

that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over Financial Reporting criteria established by the Company considering the

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct ofits business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act,2013.

Auditorso Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to

Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section

143(10) of the Companies Act,2073, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit

of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or eror.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements'

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

itatements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's

t'-r-o
x<f)*
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internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes

in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on the records, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 000756N4I500441

Jalaj Soni
Partner
Membership No
UDIN: 25 5287 99BMIFIVI5662

Place:New Delhi
Date: May 5,2025
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Auditor's Additional Report

The Board of Directors,

Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
1 407, l4Ih Floor, Chiranjiv
Tower, 43, Nehru Place

New Delhi South Delhi-110019

1. This report is issued in accordance with the requirements of Master Direction Non-Banking Financial

Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 ("The Directions")

2. We have audited the financial statements of Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation

Limited ("the Company"), which comprise of the Balance sheet as at 3l't March 2025,the statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity and statement

of cash flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material

accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as "the financial

statements"), on which we have issued our report dated May 5,2025.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

3. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act,2073 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a

true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the

accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial statement that give a

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4. The Management is also responsible tbr compliance with Master Direction Non-Banking Finanoial

Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, the National Housing Bank

Act, 1987 (NHB) and other relevant NHB/RBI circulars as amended from time to time pertaining to

Housing Finance Companies (HFC) and for providing all the required information to RBIAtrHB.

Auditor's Responsibility

5. Pursuant to the requirements of the Directions referred to in Paragraph 1 above it is our responsibility to

examine the audited books and records of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025 and report on

the matters specified in the directions to the extent applicable to the Company.

Plot No. 68, Okhla industrialArea, Phase-lll, New.Delhi-110020
Tel: +91 -11-4670 8888 E-mail: contact@sskmin.com www.sskmin.com
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6. We conducted our examination in accordance with the 'Guidance Note on reports or Certificates for
Special Purposes' issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance Note requires that

we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants-of India.

7. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of Standards on Quality Control (SQC) I,

Quality control for Firms that perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other

Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Emphasis of Matter

8. We draw attention to Note 44 (3) of the financial statements. As per RBI Master Direction - Reserve

Bank of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions ("MD-TLE'),2021 dated September 24, 2021

(updated as on December 28,2023), RBI has advised for provisioning in respect of investment in Security

Receipt (SRs). Accordingly, the company is carrying a provision of Rs.309.41 lakhs as on March 31,

2025 in respect of two separate transactions with RARC Trust in terms of clause 77 A of the aforesaid

MD-TLE. Further, balance provision of Rs. Rs.1 84.91 lakhs shall be provided in the books of accounts

over the remaining period, as per the applicable guidelines.

However, NPA loan receivables continue to remain derecognized and classified as Investment in SRs as

on March 31,2025.

Our Opinion on the Financial Statements is not modified in respect of the above matter

Opinion

9. Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company as produced for our examination,

tlre information and explanations given to us and our audit report dated May 5, 2025,we further report

that:-

9.1 TheCompanywasincorporatedon30Junelgg3andhasbeengrantedanewRegistrationNo. 10.0088.10

dated 01 October 2010 under section 29A of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and the company has

complied with Principal Business Criteria as specified in Paragraph 4,1.1'l of Master Direction Non-

Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,2027.

9.2 The company is meeting the required Net Owned Fund QIIOF) requirement as prescribed under Section

29A of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

g.3 The Company has incurred losses during the year and is, therefore, not required to transfer any funds

under Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

9.4 The total borrowings of the company are within the limits prescribed under Paragraph2T .2 of the Master

Direction Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,

2021.

9.5 The company has cornplied with the prudential norms on income recognition, accounting standards, asset

classification, loan-to-value ratio, provisioning in balance sheet, investment in

Plot No. 68, Okhla industrialArea, Phase-lll, New Delhi-110020
Telr +91-11-4670 8888 E-mail: contact@sskmin.com

requirements, di
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real estate, exposure to capital market and engagement of brokers, and concentration of
credit/investments as specified in the Master Direction Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing

Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

9.6 The capital adequacy ratio is 138.13 % as disclosed in the ScheduleJl return for the half year ended 30th

September 2024 submitted to the National Housing Bank in terms of the Housing Finance Companies

(NHB) Directions, 2010 has been correctly determined and the ratio is in compliance with the minimum

capital to risk weighted asset ratio (CRAR) prescribed therein. However Schedule II retum for half year

ended 3 l st March 2025 has not been furnished to the National Housing Bank till the date of our report

since the due date for such return is May 72,2025 which has not elapsed till the date of our report.

9.7 The company has furnished to the National Housing Bank within the stipulated period, the half -yearly
statutory retum (Schedule-Il) for half year ended 30 September 2024 as specified in the

NHBGTDyDOS/Sup. Circular No. 10 12023-24 HO/DOS/DAW2023101603 dated December 31,2021
(Updated as on July 21 , 2023). However Schedule II return for half year ended 3 l st March 2025 has noI

been furnished to the National Housing Bank till the date of our report since the due date for such retum

is May 12,2025 which has not elapsed till the date of our report.

9.8 As specified in the NHBQ.,ID)/DOS/Sup. Circular No. 10 12023-24 HO/DOS/DAW2023101603 dated

December 31, 2021 (Updated as on July 21, 2023), All deposit taking HFCs irrespective of their asset

size, arerequired to submit Schedule-Ill return on a quarterly basis and as Company is non-deposit taking

HFCs and has not accepted any public deposits during the year ended 31st March 2025, therefore

Schedule-Ill return on Statutory Liquid Assets is not applicable to the Company'

g.g Based on information made available for our review on CRaMIS Portal, in the case of opening of new

branches/ offices or in the case of closure of existing branches/offices, the company has complied with

the requirements contained in the Master Direction Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance

Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

9. I 0 The Board of Directors of the company have passed a resolution on May 13 , 2024 for non-acceptance

of any public deposits during the year ended 31't March 2025 and accordingly the company has not

accepted any public deposits during the year ended 31't March 2025.

9.I 1 The Company has complied with the provisions contained in Paragraph 18 of the Master Direction Non-

Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 & the

Provisions contained in Paragraph 3. i.3 and 3. i.4 of ihe direoiiotr are noi applicable io the Coilipatiy.

Restriction on Use

10. Our work was performecl solely to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your

compliance with the Directions. Our obligations in respect of this report are entirely separate from, and

our responsibility and liability is in no way changed by any other role we may have (or may have had) as

auditors of the Company or otherwise. Nothing in this report, nor anything said or done in the course of
or in connection with the services that are the subject of this report, will extend any duty of care we may

have in our capacity as auditors of any financial statements the Company.
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I L This report is issued pursuant to our obligations under the directions to submit a report on additional
matters as stated in the above Directions, to the Board of Directors, for submission to the RBI /NHB
pursuant to RBI i NHB Directions and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose.

S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP neither accepts nor assumes any dufy or liability for any other purpose or
to any other party to whom our report is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent

in writing.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Firm Registration Number: 000756N / N500441

Chartered

Jalaj Soni

Partner

Membership Number: 528799

UDIN : 25 5287 99BMIHVK4284

Place:New Delhi
Date: May 5,2025



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Overview and MateriaI Accounting Policies

The notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP

Firm Registration Number: 000756N/N500441
Chartered Accountants

1to5

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

arci#
Praveen Kumai Tripathi
Non-Executive lndependent
Director
(DlN: 021 67497)

Rah Mehrotra
ng Director

& Chief Executive

Officer
(DrN-0872091 7)

Jalaj Soni

Partner
Membership Number: 528799

Place: New Dethi
Date : 05 May 2025

Chhabra
Chief FinanciaI Officer

Place : New Delhi
Date : 05 May 2025

Partlculars Note No.
As at

31 March 2025
As at

31 March 2024

ASSETS

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Batance other than cash and cash equivatents
Loans

lnvestments
Other FinanciaI Assets

Non-financial Assets
Current Tax Assets (Net)

Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets under development
Other lntangibte Assets

Right-of-use - Asset
Other Non-FinanciaI Assets

6

7

8

9

10

11

13

14

15

16

396.66
10.00

18,467.71
1,191.72

359.47

4.17
43.51

223.20
24.47

301.00
565.1 3

498.88
112.00

21 ,037.32
838.75
676.80

191.68
49.99

191.33
1.16

371.17
437.00

Tofal Astefs 2t.586-54 24.406.O8

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables

(i) totat outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(ii) totat outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smatl enterprises
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Other FinanciaI Liabitities
Lease Liabitity

Non-Financial Liabilities
Deferred tax tiabitities (Net)

Provisions
Other Non-FinanciaI Liabilities

EQUITY
Share CapitaI
Other Equity

17

18

19

z0

12

71

72

23

24

6.12

5.30

581 .1 9

350.86

1 25.80
97.92

3,999.80
16,419.55

4.42

5.40

1,100.76
757.89
416.76

207.30
96.72

1 1 3.86

3,999.80
17,703.67

Total Liabllitles and Eouitv 2l -aa6,a4 24.406-48

New Delhi

J.N



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

es

The notes form an integral part of these Financia[ Statements

Particulars Note No.
Year ended

31 March 2025
Year ended

31 March 2O24

Revenue from operations
lnterest lncome
Fees and commission lncome
Net Gain on Fair Value Changes
Net gain on de-recognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category

26

27

78

29

3,008.35
1 1 6.58

41.15

3,782.59
172.63

16.84
330.92

Total Revenue from operations 3,166.08 4,302.98
Other lncome 30 65.94 29.53

Total lncome 3.232.42 4.332.51
Expenses
Finance Costs

Fees and Commission Expense
Emptoyee Benefits Expenses

lmpairment on Financial lnstruments made /(reversed)
Depreciation, Amortization and lmpairment
Other Expenses

31

32

33

34

35

36

1 00.90
0.24

3,032.84
(1 8.58)

1 51.88
1,431.34

627.48
0.22

2,865.06
(779.44)
145.04

1,454.39

Total Exoenses 4.698.62 4,312.75

Profit / ([oss) before tax

Tax Expense:
(1 ) Deferred Tax
(2) Taxes for Earlier Years

38

(1,466.60\

(207.30)

7.92

19.76

3.39
0.92

Proflt/(lossl for the vear n.267.22r 15.45
Other Comprehensive lncome
A (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit ptans

lncome tax relatinq to these items

(1 6.e0) 4.05

Subtotal (16.e0) 4.05
B (i) ltems that witt be rectassified to profit or toss
Subtotal
Other Comprehensive lncome (16.e0) 4.05

Total Comprehensive lncome for the year (Comprising Profit / (loss) and other
comorehensive lncome for the vear)

(1,284.121 19.50

tarnrngs per equrty snare
Basic (Rs.)

Dituted (Rs.)

49
(3.17)
(3.1 7)

0.04
0.04

fhis is the Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

FoT S 5 KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP

Firm Registration Number: 000756N/N500441
Chartered Accountants

Jalaj Soni

Partner
Membership Number: 528799

Place : New Dethi
Date : 05 May 2025

For and on behatf of the Board of Directors

" X:r

,!.x J #,, o 
", 
n,Ve h ro r ra

Non-Executive lndependent Managing

Director
(DIN: 02167497\

ra
hief Financial Officer

Place : New Delhi
Date : 05 May 2025

Director & Chief
Executive
Officer
(DrN-08720e17)

New Delhi



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Year ended

31 March 2025
Year ended

31 March 2O24

Cash Flow From Operating Activities:
Profit / (Loss) before Tax from continuing operations
Adiustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and Amortization
Reatised & unrealised gain on investment hetd for trading
lnterest lncome on Fixed Deposits
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Property, Ptant and Equipment
lnterest payment on lease liabitity
Bad debt & loans written off
Provision on Other Financial & Non-Financial Assets

Unrealised lnterest income on security deposit
lnterest income on account of processing fees amortisation
lnterest Expense on account of processing fees amortisation
Provision against Standard Assets and Non-Performing Assets (Net)
Provision for diminution in value of RARC investment
Profit on early termination of lease
lnterest income on income tax refund
Excess lnterest Spread

1 51.88
(41.15),

(3.04)
(0.03)
42.35

754.48
(6.23)
(6.94)

(1 0.3e)

(1,466.60)

(137.73',)

(e1.9e)
(4.8s)

(38.95)

33 3.32

19.76

145.04
(16.84)

(5.43)
(3.38)

47.51
79.48
(0. se)
(s.ee)

(23.38)

1.00
(249.74',)

(288.e0)

(177.53)

ODeratinq ProffUloss before Workinc Caoital chanoes A-O25-871 {478-991
Adiustments for chanqes in worl(inq caDital :

(lncrease) / Decrease in Loans (Financial Assets)
(lncrease) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets & Non Financial Assets

lncrease / (Decrease) in Trade Payables

lncrease / (Decrease) in Provision of Gratuity and Leave Encashment
lncrease / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities
lncrease / (Decrease) in Other Non - Financiat Liabitities

7,463.25
(1 37.50)

1.60
12.18

(176.70)
(15.941 (136.79

4,711 .69

101.62
0.1 5

(0.61)

11.57r,

Cash Generated From I lUsed inl from ODeration3 1 -121-O2 4-195.50
- Taxes (Paid / Refunds (Net) 7^t6.54 76.4/

Net Cash Generated From / (Usedl in Ooeratinc Activities 1.339-56 4.221-97
cash Flow From lnvesting Activities:
Purchase of Property, Ptant and Equipment and lntangibte assets
lntangibte Assets Under Development and Capital Works in Progress
Proceeds from sate of Property, Plant and Equipment
Purchase of investment
Proceeds from sale of investment
(Purchase)/Redemption of Fixed Deposits
lnterest received on investment and deposits with bank

(16.49\
(60.71)

0.23
(7,849.86\
2,630.53

1 02.00

7.31

(24.7e)
(1 s4.1 s)

0.43
(3,124.84\
3,654.34

(1 1 2.00)

0.54
Net Cash Generated From/ (used inl lnvestinc Activities l1 86-99r 239.53
Cash Ftow From Financing Activities:
lnterest payment on lease tiabitity
Repayment of Principal payment of lease tiabitity
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings -lnter Corporate Loans (net)
Borrowings other than debt securities repaid (net)

(42.35)
(1 1 1.68)

(1,000.00)
(1 00.76)

(47.511
(1 06.52)
(1 00.00)

(4,107.28)
N€t Cash Generated from / {l-lsed lnl Flnancino Actlvltles t1 .2a4.791 {4-361-31}
Net lncrease/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivatents at the Beginning of the Year

(10z.zz)
498.B8

1 00.1 9

398.69
at 396.66 498.88

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year comprises of As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Cash in hand
Stamp Papers in hand
Batances with Banks in Current Accounts

0.02
0.06

396.58

o.07
0.67

498.19

TOTAL 396.66 498.88

New Delhi

NEI/,/ DELHI



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 3'l March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes:
1. The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in INDAS -7 on Cash Flow Statement.
2. Figures in bracket indicate cash outgo/income.
3. Ptease refer note 18.1 for reconciliation of tiabitities arising from financing activities in accordance with INDAS - 7.

The Notes are an integra[ part of these Financial Statements
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors

lqt"F?
For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP

Firm Registration No:000756N / N500441

Chartered Accountants

Jalaj Soni

Partner
Membership Number: 528799

Place : New Delhi
Date : 05 May 2025

Praveen Kumar Tripathi Ra rotra
Non-Executive Director &
lndependentDirector ChiefExecutive
(DIN:.021674971 Officer

(DrN-087209'17)

FinanciaI Officer

Place : New Dethi
Date : 05 May 2025

New Delhi



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March, 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP

Firm Registration Number: 000756N/N50044'1

For and on behatf of the Board of Directors

I l<1t,*'?,-
NW chier Executive orricer

(DrN-087209 1 7),n^rr"r"W),
Praveen Kumar Tripathi
Non-Executive lndependent
Director
(DlN:02167497)

Gagan

Chief

Ptace: New Dethi
Date : 05 May 2025

Jataj Soni

Partner
Membership Number: 528799

Ptace: New Dethi
Date : 05 May 2025

s

Partlcularg
Balance at the

beglnnlng of the
reporting year

Changes ln Equlty
Share Capltal due to
paior perlod errors

Restated balance at the
beglnnlng of the current

reportlng yeat

Changes ln equlty
share capltal durlng

the year

Balance at the end
of the reportlng year

For the year ended March 31, 2024
ror the vear ended March 3 1 , 2025

3,999.80 3,999.80 3,999.80

3,999.80 3,999.80 3,999.80

Partleularg

Other
Comprehenslve

lncome -

retlrement
beneflts

Totalstatutory
Reserves

Securitles Premium
Contrlbutlon by Ultlmate
Holding Company {EsOP)

General
Res€rve

Retalned
Earnlngs

Balance as at l arch 31, 2023
Changes in accounting poticy/prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the previous
reporting period
Net profit/(toss) for the year
Transfer to Statutory Reserve

Transfer from Retained Earnings

Contribution by Uttimate Hotding Company (ESOP)

Re-measurement (gain)/loss on defined benefit plans
(net of tax)

3,047.O3

3,O47.O3

3.90

5,808.60

5,808.60

t.:,

3.46

8,970.48

8,970.48

15.45
(3.e0)

(45.4o_l

(1 45.40)

4.05

17,684.17

17,684.17

15.45
(3.e0)

3.90

4.05

Balance as at llarch ?1 - 2024 3.O50.93 5.808.60 7.46 (141.35t 17,703.67
Changes in accounting poticy/prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginnlng of the prevlous
reportlng period
Net profit/(toss) for the current year
Transfer to Statutory Reserve

Transfer from Retained Earnings

Contribution by Uttimate Hotding Company (ESOP)

Re-measurement (gain)/toss on defined benefit ptan:
(net of tax)

3,050.93

1t.16

5,808.60 3.46 8,98 2.03

11 ,267.221
(21.78)

(1 41 .3 5)

(1 6.90)

17,7O3.67

(1,267.22)
(21.78)

2't.78

(1 6.90)

Balan.c ac et llerch 31 - 2025 t.o72.71 5-808-60 1-46 7.693-O3 (1 58.251 16-419-55

t'
f-.D

*
U)
</)
*

Flelv Delhi



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Accounting Policies for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

2,1

3.1
3.1 .'1

3,1 .2

3,2
3.2,1

3,2,3

2

Corporate information
Religare Housing Devetopment Finance Corporation Limited IRHDFCL] (the'Company') is a subsidiary of Retigare Finvest Limited (RFL). RFL hotds 87.5% of the paid

up equity share capitat of RHDFCL. The Company was incorporated on June 30, 1993 as Maharishi Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited. 0n September

7, 2010 the name of the Company was changed to Religare Housing Devetopment Finance Corporation Limited. The Registered office of the Company is situated at

j4O7,14th Ftoor, Chiranjiv Tower, 43, Nehru ptace New Dethi South Dethi 110019. The Company is a Housing finance Company registered with the Nationat

Housing bank ("NHB") under section 29A of the Nationat Housing Bank Act, 1987 and primarily engaged in tending of Housing Loans.

pursuant to the requirement of the Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 the Company has been granted a new registration No''10.0088.10 dated

October 1 , 201 0 under section 29A of the National Housing Bank Act, 1 987 by the Nationat Housing Bank, consequent upon change in the name of the Company.

The financiat statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resotution of the directors on May 05, 2025.

Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance

Basis of Preparation
The financiat statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) notified under the Companies (lndian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time)'
The financiat statements have been prepared on a historicat cost basis, except for fair vatue through other comprehensive income (FWoCI) instruments, other

financial assets held for trading and financiat assets and liabitities designated at fair vatue through profit or toss (FWPL), att of which have been measured at fair

vatue, The financjal statements are presented in lndian Rupees (lNR) and att values are rounded to the nearest [acs, except when otherwise indicated'

Statement of Compliance

These financiat statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards as per the Companies (lndian Accounting

Standards) Rutes, 201 5 as amended and notified under Section 1 33 of the Companies Act, 20 1 3 and the other retevant provisions of the Act.

Presentation of financial statements
The Company presents its batance sheet in order of tiquidity. The financiat statements of the company are presented as per Schedute lll (Division lll) of the

Companies Act, 2013 , as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). An anatysis regarding recovery or setttement within 12 months after the reporting

date and more than 1 2 months after the reporting date.
Financial assets and financiat tiabitities are generauy reported gross in the batance sheet. They are onty offset and reported net when, in addition to having an

unconditionat legatty enforceabte right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settte on a net basis

jn att of the fotlowing circumstances:
-The normaI course of business

"The events of default
-The events of insotvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/ or its counter parties

Material accounting policies

Recognition of interest income
The effective interest rate method

Under lnd AS 10g interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (ElR) method for att financiat instruments measured at amortised cost, debt

instrument measured at FWOCI and debt instruments designated at FWPL. The EIR is the rate tha! exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the

expected tife of the financiat instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is catculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an

integrat part of the ElR. The company recognises interest income using a rate of return tha! represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the

expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentiatty different interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product

tife cycte (inctuding prepayments, penatty interest and charges).

lf expectations regarding the cash flows on the financiaI asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative

adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the batance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequentty amortised

through lnterest income in the statement of profit and toss.

lnterest lncome

The Company calcutates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financiat asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as 'Stage 3', the Company catculates interest income to the extent recoverable. lf the

financiat assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calcutating interest income on a gross basis.

Financial instruments-initial recognition
Date of recognition
Financiat assets and tiabitities, with the exception of toans, debt securities and borrowings are initiatty recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the

company becomes a party to the contractuat provisions of the instrument. This inctudes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financiat assets that require

delivery of assets within the time frame generalty estabtished by regutation or convention in the market place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to

the customers' account. The Company recognises debt securities and borrowings when funds disbursed to the Company

Irritial rrteasut enrent of financial instruments

The ctassifjcation of financiat instruments at initiat recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for managing the instruments. Financial

jnstruments are initiatty measured at their fair value , except in the case of financial assets and financial tiabjtities recorded at FWPL, transaction costs are added

to, or subtracted from, this amount. Trade receivabtes are measured at the transaction price.

When the fair vatue of financiat instruments at initiat recognition differs from the transaction price, the company accounts for the Day 1 profit or [oss, as described

betow.

Day 1 profit or loss

when the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair vatue is based on a vatuation technique using onty inputs

observabte in market transactions, the company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes. ln those

cases where fair vatue is based on modets for which some of the inputs are not observabte, the difference between the transaction price and the fair vatue is

deferred and is onty recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Measurement categories of financial assets and tiabilities
The Company ctassifies att of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset's contractual terms, measured at either:

Amortised cost,
Fair vatue through Other Comprehensive lncome(FWOCI)
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3.3.'t .1

3.3.1.2

3.3
3.3.1

3.3.2

3.3.3

3.3.4

Financial assets and liabilities
Bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables and financial investments at amortised cost

The company measures Bank batances, Loans, Trade receivabtes and other financiat investments at amortised cost if both of the fottowing conditions are met:

The financial asset is hetd within a business modet with the objective to hold financiat assets in order to cottect contractual cash ftows.

The contractual terms of the financiat asset give rise on specified dates to cash ftows that are solety payments of principat and interest (SPPI) on the principal

amount outstanding.
The detaits of these conditions are outlined betow.

Buslness model assessment

The company determines its business model at the tevel that best reftects how it manages financiat assets to achieve its business objective.

The company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher [eve[ of aggregated portfotios and is based on observabte

factors such as:

How the performance of the business model and the financial assets hetd within that business modet are evatuated and reported.

The risks that affect the performance of the business modet (and the financiat assets hetd within that business model) and, in particutar, the way those risks

are managed

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case' scenarios into account. lf cash ftows after

initiat recognition are reatised in a way that is different from the Company's original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining

financial assets hetd in that business modet, but incorporates such information when assessing newty originated or newty purchased financial assets going forward.

The solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) test

As a second step of its ctassification process, the Company assesses the contractual terms of financiat asset to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.
,principat, for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair vatue of the financiat asset at initial recognition and may change over the tife of the financial asset.

ln making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash ftows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes onty

consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic tending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement' Where the

contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or votatitity that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the retated financial asset is classified and

measured at fair vatue through profit or [oss.

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading
The Company ctassifies financiat assets as hetd for trading when they have been purchased or issued primarity for short-term profit making through trading

activities or form part of a portfotio of financiat instruments that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit

taking. Hetd-for-trading assets and liabitities are recorded and measured in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair vatue are recognised in net gain on fair

vatue changes. lnterest and dividend income or expense is recorded in net gain on fair value changes according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to

payment has been estabtished.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI

Debt instruments are measured at FWOCI when both of the fottowing conditions are met:

-The instrument is hetd within a business modet, the objective of which is achieved by both cottecting contractual cash ftows and setting financial assets.

-The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test
FWOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair vatue with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair vatue recognised in OCl. lnterest income and

foreign exchange gains and tosses are recognised in profit or toss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. Where the Company hotds

more than one investment in the same security, they are deemed to be disposed of on a first-in first-out basis. On derecognition, cumutative gains or losses

previousty recognised in 0Cl are reclassified from OCI to profit or toss.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds:
After initiat measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequentty measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is catcutated by taking into account

any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the ElR.

3.3.5 Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financiat assets and financiat tiabitities in this category are those that are held for trading and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition

or are mandatority required to be measured at fair vatue under lnd AS 109. Management onty designates an instrument at FWPL upon initial recognition when one

of the fottowing criteria is met. Such designation is determined on an instrument'by-instrument basis:

-The designation etiminates or significantty reduces, the inconsistent treatment that woutd otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabitities or recognising

gains / losses on them on a different basis or
-The tiabitities are part of financiat tiabitities, which are managed and their performance evatuated on a fair vatue basis, in accordance with a documented risk

management or investment strategy or
-The tiabitities containing one or more embedded derivatives, untess they do not significantty modify the cash ftows that woutd otherwise be required by the

contract, or it is ctear with littte or no anatysis when a simitar instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.

-Financiat assets and financiat tiabitities at FWPL are recorded in the batance sheet at fair va[ue. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the

exception of movements in fair vatue of tiabitities designated at FWPL due to changes in the Company's own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are recorded

through OCI and do not get recycted to the profit or loss. lnterest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FWPL is accrued in interest income or finance

on assets mandatority required to be measured at FWPL is recorded using contractuat interest rate.

3,3.6 lnvestments in associates
lnvestments in associates are measured at cost as per lnd A5 27 -separate Financial Statements less impairment losses if any

3.4 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
The Company does not rectassify its financial assets subsequent to their initiat recognition, apart from the exceptionat circumstances in which the Company

acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business tine.
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3.5
3.5.1

3.5.2
3.5.2.1

3.5.3

3.6
3.6.1

Derecognition of financial assets and tiabilities
Derecognition of financiaI assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a financiat asset such as loan to customers, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it
becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or [oss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. The

newty recognised loans are ctassified as Stage 1 for ECL/ provision measurement purposes.

When assessing whether or not to derecognise a toan to a customer, amongst others, the Company considers the fotlowing factors:
-Change in currency of the toan
-lntroduction of an equity feature
-Change in counterparty
lf the modification is such that the instrument woutd no longer meet the SPP| criterion

lf the modification does not resutt in cash ftows that are substantiatly different, the modification does not resutt in derecognition. Based on the change in cash

ftows discounted at the originat ElR, the Company records a modification gain or toss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not atready been recorded.

Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantiaI modification
Financial assets

A financiat asset (or, where appticabte, a part of a financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash ftows from the financial asset have expired. The

Company atso derecognises the financiat asset if it has both transferred the financiat asset and the transfer quatifies for derecognition.

-The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financiat asset or

It retains the rights to the cash ftows, but has assumed an obtigation to pay the received cash ftows without material detay to a third party under a 'pass-through'

arrangement.
pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash ftows of a financial asset (the'originat asset'),

but assumes a contractual obtigation to pay those cash ftows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients'), when atl of the foltowing three conditions are met:

(i) The Company has no obtigation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has cottected equivatent amounts from the originat asset, excluding short-

term advances with the right to futl recovery of the amount lent ptus accrued interest at market rates

(ii) The Company cannot setl or ptedge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients

(iii) The Company has to remit any cash flows it cottects on behatf of the eventual recipients without materiat detay. ln addition, the Company is not entitled to

reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents inctuding interest earned, during the period between the coltection date and the date

of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only quatifies for derecognition if either:
(i) The Company has transferred substantiauy att the risks and rewards of the asset or
(ii) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantiatty att the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and onty if, the transferee has the practical abitity to sett the asset in its entirety to an unretated third party

and is abte to exercise that abitity unitateratty and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantiatly att the risks and rewards and has retained controt of the asset, the asset continues to be

recognised onty to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement, in which case, the Company atso recognises an associated liabitity. The transferred asset

and the associated tiabitity are measured on a basis that reftects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Financial liabilities
A financiat tiabitity is derecognised when the obtigation under the tiabitity is discharged, cancetted or expires. Where an existing financial tiabitity is replaced by

another from the same tender on substantiatty different terms, or the terms of an existing tiabitity are substantiatty modified, such an exchange or modification is

treated as a derecognition of the originat tiabitity and the recognition of a new tiabitity. The difference between the carrying vatue of the originat financiat liabitity

and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or toss.

lmpairment of financial assets
Overview of the ECL principles

The Company records atlowance for expected credit tosses ("ECL") for att loans, other debt financiat assets not hetd at FWPL, together with loan commitments

and financiat guarantee contracts, all referred to as 'financial instruments'. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under lnd AS 109.

The ECL alowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the tife of the asset (the tifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), untess there has been no

significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the attowance is based on the 12 months'expected credit loss (12mECL)' The Company has

poticies for determining significant increase in credit risk, if any.

The l2mECL results from defautt events on a financial instrument that is possible within the 12 months from the reporting date.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit tosses resutting from att possibte defautt events over the expected life of a financiat

instrument.
Both LTECL and 12mECL are catculated on cottective basis, depending on the management's perceived credit risk over the remaining tife of the financial

instrument.
The Company has estabtished a poticy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument's credit risk has increased

significantty since initiat recognition, by considering the change in the risk of defautt occurring over the remaining tife of the financial instrument. The Company

does the assessment of sjgnificant increase in credit risk at a borrower tevet. lf a borrower has various facilities having different past due status, then the highest

days past due (DPD) is considered to be appticabte for atl the facitities of that borrower.

Based on the above process, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, as described betow:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an atlowance based on lZmECL. lt incLudes f]nanclai lnstruments that are up to 30 days past-

due. Stage 1 toans atso inctude facitities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been rectassified from Stage 2 or Stage 3.

Stage Z: When a toan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an atlowance for the LTECL. lt inctudes financial

instruments that are more than 30 but up to 90 days past due. Stage 2 toans atso inctude facitities, where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been

rectassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired. lt includes toans that are over 90 days past due. The Company records an altowance for the LTECLS.

3.6.2 The calculation of ECLs

The Company calcutates ECL based on total loans receivabte (inctuding accrued interest) which are divided into segments based upon the industry in which the

customer is operating.
The mechanics of the ECL catcutations are outtined betow and the key etements are, as follows:
pD - The Probabitity of Defautt ("PD") is an estimate of the tiketihood of defautt over a given time horizon.

EAD - The Exposure at Defautt ("EAD") is an estimate of the exposure at a reporting date, taking into account repayments of principat and interest, whether

scheduted by contract or otherwise and accrued interest from missed repayments. The EAD is sum totat of outstanding principat and accrued interest, if any, on

the reporting date.

LGD - The ("LGD") is an estimate of the loss arising in case where a defautt occurs at a given based on the difference between the

those that the tender woutd expect to receive, inctuding from the It is usuatty expressed as a

The credit losses are determined is the contractual life of a financial instru the tegat right to catl it
eartier
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The mechanism of the ECL methodotogy are summarised betow:

Stage 1 : The 1 2mECL represents expected credit toss from defautt events on a financiat instrument that are possibte within the 1 2 months from the reporting date.

These expected 12-month defautt probabilities are applied to EAD and muttiptied by the expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to the ROI as at

reporting date.
Stage 2: When a toan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an atlowance for the LTECL. The mechanism is simitar to

that exptained above, but pD and LGD are estimated over the tifetime of the instrument. The expected cash shortfatls are discounted by an approximation to the

ROI as at reporting date.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the tifetime expected credit losses for these toans. The method is simitar to that for Stage

2.

As per circutar RBI/zozo-21/73lDoR.FlN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 171h,2021, as amended HFcs are required to fottow the extant

direction on prudentiaI Norms, including on assets ctassification, provisioning etc. issued by the RBI / NHB. However, provision for impairment on loan assets

catcutated through apptication of EcL Modet is tess than as provision catcutated as per RBI / NHB Prudential norms, so the company has considered provision as per

RBI / NHB Prudentiat norms in the financial statements.

3.6.3 Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCI

The ECLS for debt instruments measured at FWOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in the batance sheet, which remains at fair value,

lnstead, an amount equat to the altowance that woutd arise if the assets were measured at amortised cost is recognised in ocl as an accumulated impairment

amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or toss. The accumutated toss recognised in OCI is recycted to the profit and loss upon derecognition of the assets.

3.6.4 Purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets (POCI)

For pOCl financial assets, the Company onty recognises the cumutative changes in LTECL since initial recognition in the loss attowance'

3.6.5 Trade receivables and contract assets

The company fottows,simptified approach,for recognition of impairment loss altowance on trade receivabtes. The apptication of simptified approach does not

require the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment toss attowance based on tifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its

initial recognition.

Forward looking information
ln its ECL modets, the Company reties on a broad range of forward tooking information as economic inputs, such as: GDP growth

The inputs and modets used for catcutating ECLs may not atways capture atl characteristics of the market at the date of the financiat statements' To reflect this,

quatitative adjustments or overtays are occasionalty made as temporary adjustments when such differences are significantty materiat'

Collateral valuation
To mitigate its credit risks on financiat assets, the Company seeks to use cottaterat (Housing Property), where possibte. However, the fair vatue of cottateral affects

the catcutation of ECLs. lt is generatty assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a annual basis for credit impaired financial assets.

To the extent possibte, the Company uses active market data for valuing financia[ assets hetd as coltateral. Other financiat assets which do not have readity

determinabte market vatues are vatued using modets. Non-financiat cottaterat, such as real estate, is vatued by company's empaneled vatues.

Write-offs
Financial assets are written off either partiatty or in their entirety onty when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery. lf the amount to be written off is

greater than the accumulated toss atlowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the atlowance, then that is apptied against the gross carrying amount'

Any subsequent recoveries are credited to statement of profit and loss.

Determination of fair value
The Company measures financiat instruments, such as, derivatives at fair vatue at each batance sheet date.

Fair vatue is the price that woutd be received to setl an asset or paid to transfer a tiabitity in an orderty transaction between market participants at the

measurement date. The fair vatue measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sett the asset or transfer the tiability takes ptace either:

> ln the principal market for the asset or tiabitity, or
> ln the absence of a principat market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or tiabitity.

The principat or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a tiabitity is measured using the assumptions that market participants woutd use when pricing lhe asset or tiabitily, assuming that

market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair vatue measurement of a non-financjal asset takes into account a market participant's abitity to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest

and best use or by setting it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses vatuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are avaitable to measure fair vatue, maximising the

use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservabte inputs.

ln order to show how fair vatues have been derived, financial instruments are ctassified based on a hierarchy of vatuation techniques, as summarised betow:

> Level 1 fjnanciat instruments -Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabitities

that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active onty if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to

the votume and tiquidity of the identicat assets or tiabitities and when there are binding and exercisabte price quotes avaitable on the batance sheet date.

> Levet 2 financial jnstruments-Those where the inputs that are used for vatuation and are significant, are derived from directty or indirectty observabte market

data availabte over the entire period of the instrument's tife. Such inputs include quoted prices for simttar assets or tiabitities in actlve markets, quoted prices for

identical instruments in inactive markets and observabte inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yietd curves, imptied votatitities, and credit

spreads. ln addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are comparabte to the

vatued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservabte inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the company witl ctassify the

instruments as Level 3.

> Levet 3 financiat instruments -Those that include one or more unobseryabte input that rs sjgnificant to the measurement as whole.

For assets and tiabjtities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between

tevets in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest tevet input that is significant to the fair vatue measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.

The company periodicalty reviews its vatuation techniques inctuding the adopted methodotogies and model calibrations. However, the base modets may not futty

capture atI factors retevant to the vatuation of the Company's financial instruments such as credit risk (CVA), own credit (DVA) and/or funding costs (FVA).

Therefore, the Company appties various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial instruments measured at fair vatue, which include a

portfotio-based approach that estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the futt tifetime of the individual assets, in order to reftect the credit

risk of the individuat counterparties for non-cottateratised financiat instruments. The Company estimates the value of its own credit from market observabte data,

such as secondary prices for its traded debt and the credit spread on credit defautt swaps and traded debts on itsetf.

The Company evatuates the levetting at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and rectassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts

3.6.6

3,7
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t can be measured at amortized cost or at fair vatue through other com that the contractual cash
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Functional and presentational currency
The financiat statements are presented in INR whjch is also functional currency of the company.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initiatty recorded in the functional currency at the spot rate of exchange ruting at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and tiabitities denominated in foreign currencies are retranstated into the functional currency at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date

and resultant differences arising are taken to other income/expense in the statement of profit and [oss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historicat cost in a foreign currency are transtated using the spot exchange rates as at the date of recognition.

3.1 1 Leases

The company has apptied lnd AS 1'1 6 using the modified retrospective approach with the date of initiat apptication being Aprit 01 , 2019 (transition date).

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to

controt the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in lnd AS 1 16.

(i) As lessee:
At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company attocates the consideration in the contract to each lease

component on the basis of its refative standalone prices. However, for leases of property, the Company has etected not to separate non - lease components and

account for the lease and non - lease components as a singte tease component.

The Company recognizes a right - of - use asset and a lease tiabitity at the lease commencement date. The right- of - use asset is initiatty measured at cost, which

comprises the initiat amount of the tease tiabitity adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date ptus any initiat direct costs incurred

and an estimate of costs to dismantte and remove the undertying asset or to restore the undertying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives

received.

The right- of - use asset is subsequentty depreciated using the straight - tine method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term, untess the lease

transfers ownership of the undertying asset to the Company by the end of the tease term or the cost of the right - of - use asset reftects that the Company witl

exercise a purchase option. ln that case the right - of - use asset wit[ be depreciated over the usefut tife of the undertying asset, which is determined on the same

basis as those of property and equipment, ln addition, the right - of - use asset is periodicatty reduced by impairment tosses, if any, and adjusted for certain

remeasurements of the lease liability.

The tease tiabitity is initiatty measured at the present vatue of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate

impticit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readity determined, the company's incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interes! rates from various external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to

reftect the terms of the lease and type of the asset teased.

Lease payment included in the measurement of lease tiability comprise the foltowing:

# Fixed payments, including in - substance fixed payments;

# Variabte lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

# Amounts expected to be payable under a residual vatue guarantee; and

# The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonabty certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewat period if the Company is

reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penatties for earty termination of a lease untess the Company is reasonabty certain not to terminate earty.

The tease tiability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. lt is premeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising

from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payabte under a residua[ vatue guarantee' if the

Company changes its assessment of whether il wjtl exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in - substance fixed lease payment.

When the tease tiabitity is premeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right - of use asset, or is recorded in profit

or loss if the carrying amount of the right - of - use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right - of - use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in 'Property, Plant and Equipment'and lease liabiUties under

the head'Other Financiat Liabitity'.

Short - term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company has etected not to recognize right - of , use assets and tease tiabitities for teases of low - vatue assets and short - term leases. The Company

recognizes the tease payments associated with these teases as an expense on a straight - tine basis over the lease term'

New Delhi N!E!^/ DFLHI
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3.12

3.12.1

3.12.2

Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue (other than for those items to which lnd AS 1 09 Financial lnstruments are appticab(e1 is measured at fair vatue of the consideration recejved or receivabte,

Other income
-Charges recoverabte from customers are recognized upon receipt of the same.

-lnterest lncome on Fixed Deposits and Bonds are recognized on time proportion basis.

-lncome from Mutual Fund lnvestment is recognised upon receipts of the same.

-The mutual funds are valued at NAV dectared by respective fund house.

-profit/Loss earned on sale of lnvestment is recognised on trade date basis, net of expenses. The cost of lnvestment is computed based on weighted average basis.

Net gain/loss on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair vatues of financial assets ctassified as fair vatue through the profit or toss, hetd by the Company on the batance sheet date is

recognised as an unreatised gain / toss. ln cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised as income and if there is a net loss the same is

disclosed as expenses.

lmmovabte assets at the leased premises inctuding civiI works, etectricat items are capitatised as leasehotd improvements and are amortised over the primary

period of lease subject to maximum of 6 years.

The residuat vatues, useful tives and methods of depreciation of property, ptant and equipment are reviewed at each financiat year end and adjusted

prospectivety, if appropriate.
property ptant and equipment is derecognised on disposat or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition

of the asset (catculated as the difference between the net disposat proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in other income / expense in the

statement of profit and toss in the year the asset is derecognised.

lntangible assets

lntangibte Assets are recognised onty if it is probabte that the future economic benefits that are attributabte to assets witt ftow to the enterprise and the cost of

the assets can be measured retiabty. lntangibte assets are recorded at cost and carried at cost tess accumutated depreciation and accumutated lmpairment losses,

1f any.
lntangibte assets are amortised on a straight tine basis over their estimated usefuI tives. lf the expected usefut tife of the asset is significantty different from

previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangibte asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

Computer software which is not an lntegral part of the retated hardware is ctassified as an intangibte asset and is being amortised over the estimated usefut life

The estimated usefut lives of intangibte assets are 5-6 years.

Repossessed Assets held for sale

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts are disctosed in the balance sheet at outstanding principat loan amount or market vatue (as per vatuation reports)

whichever is tower. ln case the market vatue of assets acquired is lower than the outstanding principat loan amount, difference is charged to the Statement of

Profit and Loss. ln case the market vatue of assets acquired cannot be determined, assets are recognised at a nominal value.

The outstanding overdue interest, other charges and interest from the date of setttement till the disposat of such assets are accounted on reatization basis' Any

money reatized over and above the principal outstanding in either of these categories such as interest or other charges etc. are booked under the respective heads

of the Statement of profit and Loss. Further, if on disposat of these assets, the sa[e proceeds are higher than the toan amount (inctuding outstanding overdue

interest, other charees and interest from the date of setttement titt the disposat of such assets), then the Company refunds the excess amount to the customers,

untess agreed otherwise at the time of acquiring assets in satisfaction of debts with the customers.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Short term employee benefit
Att emptoyee benefits payabte whotty within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits inctude short

term compensated absences such as paid annual leave. The undiscounted amount of short'term emptoyee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the

services rendered by emptoyees is recognised as an expense during the period. Benefits such as sataries and wages, etc. and the expected cost of the bonus/ex-

gratia are recognised in the period in which the emptoyee renders the retated service,

Post-employment employee benefits

Defined contribution schemes

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payabte to the

provident fund. The Company recognises contribution payabte to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an emptoyee renders the retated service. lf the

contribution payabte to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is

recognised as a tiabitity after deducting the contribution atready paid. lf the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before

3,13 Property, plant and equipment
property ptant and equipment is stated at cost exctuding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumutated depreciation and accumutated impairment in vatue.

Changes in the expected usefut tife are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodotogy, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting

estimates.
Depreciation is catcutated using the straight-tine method to write down the cost of property and equipment to their residual vatues over their estimated usefut

lives. Land is not depreciated. The estimated usefu[ lives are, as foltows:

Asset Description Useful life of
Asset (in year)
as per Schedule-

il

Usefut life of Asset (in year) as estimated by the Company

Office equipment's 5 Year 5 Year

Server and Networks 6 Year 6 Year

Laptop, Desktop, etc 3 Year 3 Year

Furniture & Fixtures 1 0 Year '10 Years

Cars - Owned 8 Year 8 Years

3.14
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(b)

3,17

Defined Benefit schemes

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity ptan in lndia, which requires contributions to be made to a separate(y administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit ptan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuariat gains and tosses, the effect of the asset ceiting, exctuding amounts inctuded in net interest on the net defined benefit

tiabitity and the return on plan assets (exctuding amounts inctuded in net interest on the net defined benefit tiability), are recognised immediatety in the balance

sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through ocl in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss

in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

> The date of the ptan amendment or curtaitment, and

) The date that the Company recognises retated restructuring costs

Net interest is catcutated by apptying the discount rate to the net defined benefit tiabitity or asset. The company recognises the fottowing changes in the net

defined benefit obtigation as an expense in the statement of profit and [oss:

;' Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and tosses on curtaitments and non-routine settlements; and

> Net interest expense or income

Provisions
provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obtigation (tegat or constructive) as a resutt of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits witt be required to settte the obtigation, and a retiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the

effect of the time vatue of money is material, the Company determines the tevet of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reftecting

the current rates specific to the liabitity. The expense retating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and toss net of any reimbursement

Taxes
Current tax
current tax assets and tiabitities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid/payabte to the taxation

authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute amount are those that are enacted, or substantivety enacted, by the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or toss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity],

current tax items are recognised in corretation to the undertying transaction either in OCl or directty in equity. Management periodicalty evaluates positions taken

in the tax returns with respect to situations in which appticabte tax regutations are subject to interpretation and estabtishes provisions where appropriate.

Appendix C, lnd AS 1 2 : Uncertainty over lncome Tax Treatment

The Appendix addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments invotve uncertainty that affects the apptication of IND AS 1 2 lncome Taxes. lt does not

appty to taxes or levies outside the scope of IND AS 1 2, nor does it specificatty inctude requirements retating to interest and penatties associated with uncertain tax

treatments. The Appendix specificalty addresses the fottowing-

- Whether the Company considers uncertain tax treatments separatety;
- The assumptions the Company makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;

- How the Company determines taxabte profit (tax toss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;

- How the Company considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Company determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments and uses the

approach that better predicts the resotution of the uncertainty

The Company appties significant judgment in identifying uncertainties over income tax treatments. Since the Company operates in a comptex environment, it

assessed whether the Appendix had an impact on its financial statements

Upon adoption of the Appendix, the Company considered whether it has any uncertain tax positions. The Appendix did not have an impact on the financiat

statements of the company,

Amendments to IND AS 12 lncome Taxes

The amendments ctarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directty to past transactions or events that generated distributabte profits

than to distributions to owners. Therefore, the Company recognizes the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or toss, other comprehensive income or

equity according to where it originatty recognized those past transactions or events.

The Company appties the amendments for annuat reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Aprit 2019, with earty apptication permitted. When the Company first

applies those amendments, it appties them to the income tax consequences of dividends recognized on or after the beginning of the eartiest comparative period'

Since the Company's current practice is in tine with these amendments, they had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and tiabitities and thejr carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes.

Deferred tax tiabitities are recognised for att taxabte temporary differences, except:

> Where the deferred tax tiabjtity/assets arises from the initiat recognition of an asset or tiabitity in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the

time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabte profit or loss

Deferred tax assets are recognised for att deductibte temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses' Deferred tax assets

are recognised to the extent that it is probabte that taxabte profit witt be avaitable against which the deductibte temporary differences, and the carry forvard of

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utitised, except:

)' When the deferred tax asset retating to the deductibte temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or tiabitity in a transaction that is not

a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or toss

> ln respect of deductibte temporary differences associated wi!h investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are

recognised onty to the extent that it is probabte that the temporary differences witl reverse in the foreseeabte future and taxabte profit witt be avaitabte against

which the temporary differences can be utitised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabte that sufficient taxabte Profit

witt be avaitabte to attow att or part of the deferred tax asset to be utitised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are

recognised to the extent that it has become probabte that future taxabte profits witt altow the deferred tax asset to be recovered'

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to appty in the year when the asset is reatised or the liabitity is settted, based

3. 18

3.1 8.1

3.1 8.2

on tax rates
Deferred tax
items

Tax

(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantivety enacted at the reporting date.

recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax

to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directty in equity

tax liabitities are offset if a tegatty enforceabte right exists to set off
taxabte entity and the same taxation authority,

a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate

change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the

information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acqui

current tax tiabitities and the

subsequentty if new
goodwit[ retated to that

retate to

resu

+{ct{}r*Ff,
about facts

that date,

)(viii) ofThe Com the Deferred Tax Liabitity (DTL) on Speciat Reserve created and maintained Tax Act, 1961
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3. 1 8.3

4

4.1

Share Based Payment
Equity-settted share.based payments to emptoyees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair vatue of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The.fair vatue determined at the grant date of the equity-settted share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the

company,s estimate of equity instruments that wiI eventualty vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the company

revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the originaI estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement

of profit and Loss such that the cumutative expenses reftects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve.

ESOPs (equity - settled share - based payments) have also been granted to the employees of:

Parent company (including ultimate parent company) whereby:

parent has considered the payment / setttement which is being made by its subsidiary as credit to 'Dividend lncome' and debit to expenses (emptoyee retated

cost);
subsidiarv has debited its'Retained Earninqs' as dividend distribution and credited 'eouitv"
The employees of the Company are recipient of equity - settled share based payments either from the parent (including ultimate Parent) .

(i) Where the transaction is with the parent, the Company has debited its expenses (employee related cost) and credited the capitat contribution from the parent;

the ditutive effect of outstanding options is reftected as additional share ditution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based Payment transactions are disclosed in Note 25.

The amount of share based payments granted to the emptoyees of

" The company is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss;

- The parent Company (inctuding uttimate parent company) is debited to the retained earnings in statement of changes in equity.

The credit in alt cases is made to ESOP reserve account.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the lnd AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and tiabitities and the accompanying disclosure and the disctosure of contingent tiabitities, at the end of the

reporting period. Estimates and undertying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which

the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. Atthough these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions,

uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resutt in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or tiabitities in

future periods.

ln particutar, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in apptying accounting poticies that have the most significant

Business model assessment

Ctassification and measurement of financial assets depends on the resutts of the SPPI and the business model test. The company determines the business model at

a tevel that reftects how its financial assets are managed together to achieve a particutar business objective. This assessment inctudes judgment reftecting a[[

relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evatuated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets.

The company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair vatue through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity

to understand the reason for their disposat and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was hetd. Monitoring is

part of the company's continuous assessment of whether the business modet for which the remaining financiat assets are hetd continues to be appropriate and if it

is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business modet and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and tiabitities within the next financiat year, are described betow. The company based its assumptions and estimates

on parameters avaitable when the consotidated financiat statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future devetopments, however,

may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the controt of the company. Such changes are reftected in the assumptions when they

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair vatue of financiaI instruments is the price that would be received to sett an asset or paid to transfer a tiability in an orderty transaction in the principat (or

most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardtess of whether that price is directly observabte

or estimated using another vatuation technique, When the fair vatues of financial assets and financial tiabitities recorded in the batance sheet cannot be derived

from active markets, they are determined using a variety of vatuation techniques that inctude the use of vatuation modets. The inputs to these models are taken

from observabte markets where possible, but where this is not feasibte, estimation is required in estabtishing fair vatues. Judgments and estimates include

considerations of tiquidity and model inputs retated to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding vatue adjustments, correlation and votatitity.

Effective lnterest Rate (ElR) method
The company's EIR methodotogy, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over

the expected behaviourat tife of toans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentiatty different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of

the product tife cycte (inctuding prepayments and penatty interest and charges).

Thjs estimation, by nature, requires an etement of judgment regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments.

4.2

4,3
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4,4 lmpairment of financial asset

The measurement of impairment losses across att categories of financiat assets requires judgment, in particutar, the estimation of the amount and timing of future

cash ftows and cottateral vatues when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a

number of factors, changes in which can resutt in different tevels of attowances.

The company,s ECL catcutations are outputs of complex modets with a number of undertying assumptions regarding the choice of variabte inputs and their

interdependencies. Etements of the ECL modets that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:

The company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so altowances for financial assets shoutd be measured on a LTECL

basis and the quatitative assessment

The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

Devetopment of ECL modets, inctuding the various formu(as and the choice of inputs

Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as cot[aterat values, and the effect on PDs, EADS and LGDs

Setection of forward-tooking macroeconomic scenarios and their probabitity weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models'

It has been the company's poticy to regularty review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.

4,5 Provisions and other contingent liabilities
The company operates in a regutatory and legat environment that, by nature, has a heightened etement of titigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is

invotved in various titigation, arbitration and regutatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of the company's business'

When the company can retiabty measure the outftow of economic benefits in retation to a specific case and considers such outftows to be probable, the company

records a provision against the case. Where the probabitity of outftow is considered to be remote, or probabte, but a retiabte estimate cannot be made, a

contingent tiabitity is disctosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probabitity and amount of tosses, the company takes into account a number of factors including [ega[

advice, the stage of the matter and historicat evidence from simitar incidents. Significant judgment is required to conctude on these estimates.

5 Standards issued but not yet effective
There are no standards that have been issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs that are not yet effective.
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2,1

3

3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3,2
3.2,1

3,2.2

2

Corporate information
Retigare Housing Devetopment Finance Corporation Limited IRHDFCL] (the'Company') is a subsrdiary of Retigare Finvest Limited (RFL). RFL hotds 87.5% of the paid
up equity share capital of RHDFCL. The Company was incorporated on June 30, 1 993 as Maharishi Housing Devetopment Finance Corporation Limited. On September
7, 2010 the name of the Company was changed to Retigare Housing Oevetopment Finance Corporation Limited. The Registered office of the Company is situated at
1407, 14lh Ftoor, Chiranjiv Tower, 43, Nehru Ptace New Dethi South Dethi 110019. The Company is a Housing finance Company registered with the Nationat
Housing bank ("NHB") under section 29A of the Nationat Housing Bank Act, 1987 and primarity engaged in tending of Housing Loans,

Pursuant to the requirement of the Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 the Company has been granted a new registration No.'10.0088.10 dated
October 1 , 201 0 under section 29A of the Nationat Housing Bank Act, 1 987 by the National Housing Bank, consequent upon change in the name of the Company.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resotution of the directors on May 05, 2025.

Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance
Basis of Preparation
The financiat statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) notified under the Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015 (as amended from time to time).
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair vatue through other comprehensive income (FWOCI) instruments, other

financial assets hetd for trading and financiat assets and tiabitities designated at fair value through profit or toss (FWPL), att of which have been measured at fair
vatue. The financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees (lNR) and atl vatues are rounded to the nearest tacs, except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the lndian Accounting Standards as per the Companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rutes, 201 5 as amended and notified under Section 1 33 of the Companies Act, 201 3 and the other retevant provisions of the Act.

Presentation of financial statements
The Company presents its batance sheet in order of tiquidity. The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule lll (Division Ill) of the
Companies Act, 2013 , as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). An anatysis regarding recovery or setttement within 12 months after the reporting
date and more than 12 months after the reporting date.
Financiat assets and financial tiabitities are generatty reported gross in the balance sheet. They are onty offset and reported net when, in addition to having an
unconditional tegalty enforceabte right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settte on a net basis
in atl of the fottowing circumstances:
-The norma{ course of business
-The events of defautt
-The events of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/ or its counter parties
Material accounting policies

Recognition of interest income
The effective interest rate method
Under lnd AS '109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (ElR) method for att financiat instruments measured at amortised cost, debt
instrument measured at FWOCI and debt instruments designated at FWPL. The EIR is the rate that exactty discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected tife of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an
integrat part of the ElR. The company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the
expected life of the toan. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentiatly different interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product
tife cycle (inctuding prepayments, penatty interest and charges).
lf expectations regarding the cash ftows on the financiat asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequentty amortised
through lnterest income in the statement of profit and toss.
lnterest lncome
The Company calculates interest income by apptying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financiat assets other than credit-impaired assets.
When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as 'stage 3', the Company calcutates interest income to the extent recoverabte. lf the
financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Financial instruments-initial recognition
Date of recognition
FinanciaI assets and tiabitities, with the exception of loans, debt securities and borrowings are initiatty recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the
company becomes a party to the contractuat provisions of the instrument. This inctudes regutar way trades: purchases or sates of financiaI assets that require
detivery of assets within the time frame generalty estabtished by regutation or convention in the market ptace. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to
the customers' account. The Company recognises debt securities and borrowings when funds disbursed to the Company.

lnitiaI measurement of financiai instruments
The classification of financial instruments at initiaL recognition depends on their contractuat terms and the business modet for managing the instruments. Fjnanciat
instruments are initiatty measured at their fair vatue , except in the case of financiat assets and financiat tiabititjes recorded at FWPL, transaction costs are added
to, or subtracted from, this amount. Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price.
When the fair vatue of financiat instruments at initiat recognition djffers from the transaction price, the company accounts for the Day 1 profit or toss, as described
betow.

3.2.3 Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair vatue at origination and the fair vatue is based on a vatuation technique using onty inputs
observabte in market transactions, the company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair vatue in net gain on fair vatue changes. ln those
cases where fair vatue is based on modets for which some of the inputs are not observabte, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is
deferred and is only recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become observabte, or when the instrument is derecognised.

3,2,4 Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities
The Company ctassifies att of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset's contractual terms, measured at either:
Amortised cost,
Fair value through Other Comprehensive lncome(FWOCI)
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3.3
3.3.1

Financial assets and liabilities
Bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables and financiaI investments at amortised cost

The company measures Bank batances, Loans, Trade receivabtes and other financial investments at amortised cost if both of the fotlowing conditions are met:
The financiat asset is hetd within a business modet with the objective to hotd financial assets in order to coltect contractuat cash ftows.
The contractuat terms of the financia[ asset give rise on specified dates to cash ftows that are solety payments of principaI and interest (SPPI) on the principat

amount outstanding,
The detaits of these conditions are outtined below.

Business model assessment

The company determines its business model at the [eve[ that best reftects how it manages financial assets to achieve its business objective.
The company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher tevel of aggregated portfotios and is based on observabte
factors such as:

How the performance of the business model and the financial assets hetd within that business model are evatuated and reported.
The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in particutar, the way those risks

are managed
The business model assessment is based on reasonabty expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case' scenarios into account. lf cash ftows after
initiat recognition are reatised in a way that is different from the Company's original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining
financiat assets hetd in that business modet, but incorporates such information when assessing newty originated or newty purchased financiat assets going forward.

The solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) test
As a second step of its ctassification process, the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial asset to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.
'Principat' for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair vatue of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset.

ln making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest inctudes onty
consideration for the time vatue of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the
contractuat terms introduce exposure to risk or votatitity that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the retated financiat asset is ctassified and
measured at fair value through profit or [oss.

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading
The Company ctassifies financiat assets as hetd for trading when they have been purchased or issued primarity for short-term profit making through trading
activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit
taking. Hetd-for-trading assets and tiabitities are recorded and measured in the balance sheet at fair vatue. Changes in fair vatue are recognised in net gain on fair
vatue changes. lnterest and dividend income or expense is recorded in net gain on fair vatue changes according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to
payment has been established.

Debt instruments at FWOCI

Debt instruments are measured at FVTOCI when both of the fottowing conditions are met:
-The instrument is hetd within a business modet, the objective of which is achieved by both coltecting contractual cash ftows and setting financiat assets.
-The contractual terms of the financiat asset meet the SPPI test
FWOCI debt instruments are subsequentty measured at fair vatue with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value recognised in OCl. lnterest income and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. Where the Company hotds
more than one investment in the same security, they are deemed to be disposed of on a first-in first-out basis. On derecognition, cumutative gains or losses
previousty recognised in OCI are rectassified from OCI to profit or [oss.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds:
After initiat measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequentty measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is catcutated by taking into account
any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the ElR.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financiat tiabitities in this category are those that are hetd for trading and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition
or are mandatority required to be measured at fair vatue under lnd AS 1 09. Management only designates an instrument at FWPL upon initial recognition when one
of the fotlowing criteria is met. Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:
-The designation etiminates or significantty reduces, the inconsistent treatment that woutd otherwise arise from measuring the assets or tiabilities or recognising
gains / tosses on them on a different basis or
-The tiabitities are part of financiaI tiabitities, which are managed and their performance evatuated on a fair vatue basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy or
-The tiabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, untess they do not significantty modify the cash flows that woutd otherwise be required by the
contract, or it is ctear with tittte or no anatysis when a simitar instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.
-Financiat assets and financiat tiabitities at FWPL are recorded in the batance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair vatue are recorded in profit and loss with the
exception of movements in fair vatue of tiabitities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company's own credit risk. Such changes in fair vatue are recorded

through OCI and do not get recycted to the profit or loss. lnterest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FWPL is accrued in interest income or finance

cost, respectivety, using the ElR, taking into account any discount/ premium and quatifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument. lnterest earned
on assets mandatority required to be measured at FWPL is recorded using contractua{ interest rate.

3.3.6 lnvestments in associates
lnvestments in associates are measured at cost as per lnd AS 27 -Separate Financiat Statements less jmpairment tosses if any

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
The Company does not rectassify its financiaI assets subsequent to their initiat recognition, apart from the exceptionaI circumstances in which the Company
acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business tine.

3.3.1 . 1
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3.5
3.5. 1

3.5.2
3.5.2.1

3.5.3

3.6
3.6.1

3.6.2

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions
The Company derecognises a financiat asset such as loan to customers, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantialty, it
becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or [oss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not atready been recorded. The
newty recognised loans are ctassified as Stage 1 for ECL/ provision measurement purposes.
When assessing whether or not to derecognise a loan to a customer, amongst others, the Company considers the foltowing factors:
-Change in currency of the loan
-lntroduction of an equity feature
-Change in counterparty
lf the modification is such that the instrument woutd no longer meet the SPPI criterion
lf the modification does not resutt in cash ftows that are substantiatly different, the modification does not resutt in derecognition. Based on the change in cash

flows discounted at the original ElR, the Company records a modification gain or [oss, to the extent that an impairment toss has not atready been recorded.

Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification
Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where appticabte, a part of a financiat asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash ftows from the financiat asset have expired. The
Company atso derecognises the financiat asset if it has both transferred the financiat asset and the transfer quatifies for derecognition.
-The Company has transferred its contractuat rights to receive cash flows from the financiat asset or
It retains the rights to the cash ftows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash ftows without materiaI detay to a third party under a 'pass-through'
arrangement.
Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'originat asset'),
but assumes a contractual obtigation to pay those cash ftows to one or more entities (the'eventual recipients'), when alt of the fottowing three conditions are met:
(i) The Company has no obtigation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients untess it has collected equivatent amounts from the original asset, exctuding short-
term advances with the right to futt recovery of the amount tent plus accrued interest at market rates
(ii) The Company cannot setl or ptedge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients
(iii) The Company has to remit any cash ftows it cottects on behatf of the eventual recipients without materiat detay. ln addition, the Company is not entitted to
reinvest such cash ftows, except for investments in cash or cash equivatents including interest earned, during the period between the cottection date and the date
of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
(i) The Company has transferred substantiatty att the risks and rewards of the asset or
(ii) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantiatty all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset
The Company considers controt to be transferred if and onty if, the transferee has the practical abitity to setI the asset in its entirety to an unretated third party
and is abte to exercise that abitity unilateratty and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.
When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantiatty alt the risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be
recognised onty to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated tiabitity. The transferred asset

and the associated tiabitity are measured on a basis that reftects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
Financial liabilities
A financial tiabitity is derecognised when the obtigation under the tiabitity is discharged, cancetted or expires. Where an existing financiat tiabitity is replaced by

another from the same tender on substantiatty different terms, or the terms of an existing tiabitity are substantiatty modified, such an exchange or modifjcation is

treated as a derecognition of the originat tiabitity and the recognition of a new tiabitity. The difference between the carrying vatue of the original financiat liabitity
and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or [oss.

lmpairment of financial assets
Overview of the ECL principles
The Company records attowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for atl loans, other debt financial assets not hetd at FWPL, together with toan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts, all referred to as 'financiat instruments'. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under lnd AS 109.

The ECL attowance is based on the credit tosses expected to arise over the tife of the asset (the tifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), untess there has been no

significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the altowance is based on the 12 months'expected credit toss ('12mECL). The Company has
policies for determining significant increase in credit risk, if any.
The 1 2mECL results from defau(t events on a financial instrument that is possibte within the 1 2 months from the reporting date.
Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resutting from atl possibte defautt events over the expected tife of a financial
instrument.
Both LTECL and 12mECL are catcutated on coltective basis, depending on the management's perceived credit risk over the remaining tife of the financial
instrument.
The Company has estabtished a poticy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument's credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. The Company
does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower levet. lf a borrower has various facitities having different past due status, then the highest
days past due (DPD) is considered to be applicabte for atl the facitities of that borrower.
Based on the above process, the Company categorises its toans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, as described betow:
Stagel: Whentoansarefirstrecognised,theCompanyrecognisesanatlowancebasedonl2mECL.ltinctudesfinanciatinstrumentsthatareupto30dayspast
due. Stage 1 loans atso inctude facitities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been rectassified from Stage 2 or Stage 3.

Stage 2: When a toan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an attowance for the LTECL. lt inctudes financiaI
instruments that are more than 30 but up to 90 days past due. Stage 2 loans also inctude facitities, where the credit risk has improved and the toan has been

rectassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans consjdered credrt-impaired, lt rnctudes loans that are over 90 days past due. The Company records an altowance for the LTECLS.

The calculation of ECLs

The Company catculates ECL based on total toans receivabte (inctuding accrued interest) which are divided into segments based upon the industry in which the
customer is operating.
The mechanics of the ECL catcutations are outlined below and the key etements are, as fotlows:
PD - The Probabitity of Defautt ("PD") is an estimate of the tiketihood of defautt over a given time horizon.
EAD - The Exposure at Defautt ("EAD") is an estimate of the exposure at a reporting date, taking into account repayments of principaI and interest, whether
scheduted by contract or otherwise and accrued interest from missed repayments. The EAD is sum totat of outstanding principat and accrued interest, if any, on

the reporting date.

Loss Given Defautt ("LGD") is an estimate of the loss arising in case where a defautt occurs at a on the difference between the
cash ftows due and those that the tender would expect to receive, including from the It is usuatty expressed as a

thc EAD.

period for which the credit losses are determined is the contractual tife of a financial i the tegat right to calt it

tosses and releases are accounted for and disctosed separatety from modification losses or
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The mechanism of the ECL methodology are summarised betow:
Stage 1 : The l 2mECL represents expected credit loss from defautt events on a financial instrument that are possibte within the 1 2 months from the reporting date.
These expected 12-month defautt probabitities are applied to EAD and muttiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to the ROI as at
reporting date.
Stage 2: When a toan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an attowance for the LTECL. The mechanism is simitar to
that exptained above, but PD and LGD are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash shortfalts are discounted by an approximation to the
ROI as at reporting date.

Stage 3: For toans considered credit"impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime expected credit tosses for these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage

2.

As per circutar RBI/2020-21l73lDOR.FlN.HFC.CC.No.'120l03.'t0.136/2020-21 dated February 171h,2021, as amended HFCs are required to foltow the extant
direction on Prudential Norms, including on assets ctassification, provisioning etc. issued by the RBI / NHB, However, provision for impairment on loan assets

catcutated through apptication of ECL Model is less than as provision catculated as per RBI / NHB Prudentiat norms, so the company has considered provision as per

RBI / NHB Prudential norms in the financiat statements.

3.6.3 Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCI

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FWOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in the batance sheet, which remains at fair vatue.

lnstead, an amount equal to the auowance that would arise if the assets were measured at amortised cost is recognised in OCI as an accumulated impairment
amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or [oss. The accumutated loss recognised in OCI is recycted to the profit and loss upon derecognition of the assets.

3.6.4 Purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets (POCI)

For POCI financial assets, the Company onty recognises the cumutative changes in LTECL since initiat recognition in the toss allowance.

3.6.6

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Company fotlows'simptified approach'for recognition of impairment loss altowance on trade receivabtes. The apptication of simptified approach does not
require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss altowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its
initiat recognition.

Forward looking information
ln its ECL modets, the Company reties on a broad range of forward looking information as economic inputs, such as: GDP growth

The inputs and modets used for catcutating ECLs may not atways capture atl characteristics of the market at the date of the financial statements. To reftect this,
quatitative adjustments or overtays are occasionatty made as temporary adjustments when such differences are significantty materiat,

Collateral valuation
To mitigate its credit risks on financiat assets, the Company seeks to use cotlaterat (Housing Property), where possibte. However, the fair value of cotlateral affects
the catcutation of ECLS. lt is generatly assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a annual basis for credit impaired financial assets.

To the extent possibte, the Company uses active market data for vatuing financial assets held as cottaterat. Other financial assets which do not have readity

determinabte market vatues are vatued using models. Non-financial cottaterat, such as real estate, is valued by company's empaneted vatues.

Write-offs
Financial assets are written off either partiatty or in their entirety onty when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery. lf the amount to be written off is

greater than the accumutated loss atlowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance, then that is apptied against the gross carrying amount.

Any subsequent recoveries are credited to statement of profit and loss.

Determination of fair vatue
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair vatue at each batance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that woutd be received to selt an asset or paid to transfer a liabitity in an orderty transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair vatue measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to selt the asset or transfer the tiabitity takes ptace either:
> ln the principat market for the asset or tiabitity, or
) ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or tiabitity.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessibte by the Company.

The fair vatue of an asset or a tiabitity is measured using the assumptions that market participants woutd use when pricing the asset or tiabitity, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financiat asset takes into account a market participant's abitity to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest

and best use or by setting it to another market participant that woutd use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are avaitable to measure fair vatue, maximising the
use of relevant observabte inputs and minimising the use of unobservabte inputs.
ln order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised betow:

) Level 1 financiat instruments -Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabitities
that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active onty jf there are sufficient trading activities with regards to
the votume and tiquidity of the identical assets or tiabitities and when there are binding and exercisabte price quotes avaitable on the balance sheet date.

) Levet 2 financial instruments-Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectty observabte market
data availabte over the entire period of the instrument's life. Such inputs inctude quoted prices for simitar assets or liabitities in active markets, quoted prices for
identicat instruments in inactive markets and observabte inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, imptied votatitities, and credit
spreads. ln addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or tocation of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are comparable to the
vatued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company witl ctassify the
instruments as Levet l.
) Level 3 financiat instruments -Those that inctude one or more unobseryabte input that is significant to the measurement as whote.
For assets and liabitities that are recognised in the financiat statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between

levets in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest [eve[ input that is significant to the fair vatue measurement as a whote) at the end of
each reporting period.

The Company periodicatty reviews its vatuation techniques inctuding the adopled methodotogies and modet catibrations. However, the base modets may not futty
capture atl factors retevant to the vatuation of the Company's financial instruments such as credit risk (CVA), own credit (DVA) and/or funding costs (FVA).

Therefore, the Company appties various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financiat instruments measured at fair vatue, which inctude a
portfotio-based approach that estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the futt tifetime of the individual assets, in order to reftect the credit
risk of the individuat counterparties for non-cottateratised financial instruments. The Company estimates the vatue of its own credit from market observabte data,
such as secondary prices for its traded debt and the credit spread on credit defautt swaps and traded debts on itsetf.

3.7

3.8

3.9

The Company evaluates the levetting at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and instruments when necessary based on the facts
end of the reporling period

to IND AS 109: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

109, a debt instrument can be measured at amortized cost or at fair vatue through provided that the contractual cash

payments of principat and interest on the principal amount outstanding' (the SPP| t is hetd within the appropriate
for that classification. The amendments to IND AS 109 ctarify that a financial asset of an event or circumstance

the early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or
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3.10

3,11

Foreign currency translation
FunctionaI and presentational currency
The financiat statements are presented in INR which is atso functional currency of the company.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initiatty recorded in the functiona( currency at the spot rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and tiabitities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the functional currency at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date

and resultant differences arising are taken to other income/expense in the statement of profit and toss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are transtated using the spot exchange rates as at the date of recognition,

Leases

The Company has apptied lnd AS 1 1 6 using the modified retrospective approach with the date of initial apptication being Aprit 01, 2019 (transition date).
At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a tease. A contract is, or contains a tease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a tease in lnd AS 1 1 6.

(i) As lessee:
At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a tease component, the Company altocates the consideration in the contract to each lease

component on the basis of its retative standatone prices. However, for leases of property, the Company has etected not to separate non - lease components and

account for the lease and non - lease components as a singte lease component.

The Company recognizes a right - of - use asset and a lease tiability at the tease commencement date. The right- of - use assel is initiatty measured at cost, which

comprises the initiat amount of the lease liabitity adjusted for any tease payments made at or before the commencement date ptus any initiat direct costs incurred
and an estimate of costs to dismantte and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is tocated, tess any lease incentives
received,

The right- of - use asset is subsequentty depreciated using the straight - tine method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease

transfers ownership of the undertying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right - of - use asset reftects that the Company witl
exercise a purchase option. ln that case the right - of - use asset witt be depreciated over the usefuI life of the undertying asset, which is determined on the same

basis as those of property and equipment. ln addition, the right - of - use asset is periodicatty reduced by impairment tosses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the tease tiabitity.

The lease tiabitity is initialty measured at the present vatue of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
impticit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readity determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
The Company determines its incrementat borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external fjnancing sources and makes certain adjustments to
reftect the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.

Lease payment inctuded in the measurement of tease liabitity comprise the following:

# Fixed payments, inctuding in - substance fixed payments;

# Variabte lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initiatty measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

# Amounts expected to be payabte under a residuat value guarantee; and

# The exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonabty certain to exercise, tease payments in an optionat renewat period if the Company is

reasonabty certain to exercise an extension option, and penatties for earty termination of a lease untess the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease tiabitity is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. lt is premeasured when there is a change in future tease payments arising

from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residua[ vatue guarantee, if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it wilt exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in substance fixed tease payment.

When the tease tiability is premeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right - of - use asset, or is recorded in profit
or toss if the carrying amount of the right - of - use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right - of - use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in 'Property, Plant and Equjpment' and tease tiabititjes under

the head 'Other Financiat Liabi(ity'.

Short - term leases and leases of low value assets
The Company has etected not to recognize right - of - use assets and lease tiabitities for leases of low - vatue assets and short - term leases. The Company

recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight - line basis over the lease term.
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3.12 Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue (other than for those items to which lnd AS 1 09 Financiat lnstruments are applicable) is measured at fair vatue of the consideration received or receivabte.

3,12 Other income
-Charges recoverabte from customers are recognized upon receipt of the same.

-lnterest lncome on Fixed Deposits and Bonds are recognized on time proportion basis.
-lncome from Mutual Fund lnvestment is recognised upon receipts of the same.
-The mutuat funds are valued at NAV dectared by respective fund house.
.Profit/Loss earned on sate of lnvestment is recognised on trade date basis, net of expenses. The cost of lnvestment is computed based on weighted average basis

3.1 2,2 Net gain/loss on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financiat assets classified as fair vatue through the profit or [oss, held by the Company on the balance sheet date is

recognised as an unreatised gain / toss. ln cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised as income and if there is a net loss the same is

disctosed as expenses.

3.'13 Property, plant and equipment
Property ptant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in vatue.

Changes in the expected useful tife are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodotogy, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting

estimates.
Depreciation is catculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property and equipment to their residuat vatues over their estimated usefut

lives. Land is not depreciated. The estimated usefut lives are, as foilows:

Asset Description I Useful life of
lAsset (in year)

las per Schedule-

l"

Useful tife of Asset (in year) as estimated by the Company

Office equipment's l5 Year 5 Year

Server and Networks l6 Year 6 Year

Laptop, Desktop, etc | 3 Year 3 Year

Furniture & Fixtures 110 Year '10 Years

Cars - Owned l8 Year 8 Years

3.14

3.15

lmmovable assets at the leased premises including civil works, electrical items are capitatised as teasehotd improvements and are amortised over the primary

period of lease subject to maximum of 6 years.

The residuat values, useful tives and methods of depreciation of property, ptant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted

prospectivety, if appropriate.
Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or toss arising on derecognition

of the asset (catcutated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in other income / expense in the
statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

lntangible assets

lntangibte Assets are recognised onty if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributabte to assets witt ftow to the enterprise and the cost of
the assets can be measured retiabty. lntangibte assets are recorded at cost and carried at cost tess accumulated depreciation and accumutated lmpairment losses,

if any.

lntangibte assets are amortised on a straight tine basis over their estimated useful lives. lf the expected useful tife of the asset is significantty different from
previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.
Gains or tosses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangibte asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

Computer software which is not an lntegrat part of the retated hardware is ctassified as an intangibte asset and is being amortised over the estimated usefut life.
The estimated useful lives of intangibte assets are 5-6 years.

Repossessed Assets held for sale

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts are disctosed in the batance sheet at outstanding principal loan amount or market vatue (as per valuation reports)

whichever is lower. ln case the market value of assets acquired is tower than the outstanding principal loan amount, difference is charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss. ln case the market vatue of assets acquired cannot be determined, assets are recognised at a nominat vatue.

The outstanding overdue interest, other charges and interest from the date of settlement titt the disposat of such assets are accounted on reatization basis. Any

money realized over and above the principal outstanding in either of these categories such as interest or other charges etc. are booked under the respective heads

of the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, if on disposaI of these assets, the sate proceeds are higher than the toan amount (inctuding outstanding overdue

interest, other charges and interest from the date of setttement titt the disposal of such assets), then the Companv refunds the excess amount to the customers,

untess agreed otherwise at the time of acquiring assets in satisfaction of debts with the customers.

3.16 Retirement and other employee benefits
Short term employee benefit
At[ emptoyee benefits payable whotly within twetve months of rendering the service are ctassified as short-term emptoyee benefits. These benefits inctude short

term compensated absences such as paid annual' leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by emptoyees is recognised as an expense during the period. Benefits such as sataries and wages, etc. and the expected cost of the bonus/ex-
gratia are recognised in the period in which the emptoyee renders the retated service.

Post-employment employee benefits
(a) Defined contribution schemes

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obtigation, other than the contribution payabte to the
provident fund. The Company recognises contribution payabte to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the retated service. lf the
contribution payabte to the scheme for service received before the batance sheet date exceeds the contribution atready paid, the deficit payabte to the scheme is

recognised as a liabitity after deducting the contribution atready paid, lf the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before

New Delhi
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(b)

3,17

Defined Benefit schemes

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity ptan in lndia, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, exctuding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit

tiability and the return on ptan assets (exctuding amounts inctuded in net interest on the net defined benefit tiabitity), are recognised immediatety in the batance

sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss

in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
> The date of the ptan amendment or curtaitment, and

) The date that the Company recognises retated restructuring costs

Net interest is catcutated by apptying the discount rate to the net defined benefit tiability or asset. The Company recognises the foltowing changes in the net

defined benefit obtigation as an expense in the statement of profit and [oss:

) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine setttements; and

> Net interest expense or income

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obtigation (tegal or constructive) as a resutt of past events, and it is probabte that an outftow of

resources embodying economic benefits witt be required to settte the obtigation, and a retiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the

effect of the time vatue of money is materia[, the Company determines the tevet of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reftecting

the current rates specific to the tiabitity. The expense retating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

3.18 Taxes
3.18.1 Current tax

Current tax assets and tiabitities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid/payabte to the taxation

authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute amount are those that are enacted, or substantivety enacted, by the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to ilems recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Current tax items are recognised in corretation to the undertying transaction either in OCI or directty in equity. Management periodicatty evatuates positions taken

in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and estabtishes provisions where appropriate.

Appendix C, lnd AS 1 2 : Uncertainty over lncome Tax Treatment

The Appendix addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments invotve uncertainty that affects the application of IND AS 1 2 lncome Taxes. lt does not

appty to taxes or tevies outside the scope of IND AS 12, nor does it specificatty inctude requirements retating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax

treatments. The Appendix specificatly addresses the fotlowing-

- Whether the Company considers uncertain tax treatments separatety;
- The assumptions the Company makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
. How the Company determines taxable profit (tax [oss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;
- How the Company considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Company determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separatety or together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments and uses the

approach that better predicts the resotution of the uncertainty

3.18.2

The Company applies significant judgment in identifying uncertainties over income tax treatments. Since the Company operates in a complex environment, it
assessed whether the Appendix had an impact on its financial statements

Upon adoption of the Appendix, the Company considered whether it has any uncertain tax positions. The Appendix did not have an impact on the financial

statements of the Company.

Amendments to IND AS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments ctarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directty to past transactions or events that generated distributabte profits

than to distributions to owners, Therefore, the Company recognizes the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or toss, other comprehensive income or

equity according to where it originalty recognized those past transactions or events.

The Company appties the amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Aprit 2019, with early application permitted. When the Company first
appties those amendments, it appties them to the income tax consequences of dividends recognized on or after the beginning of the eartiest comparative period.

Since the Company's current practice is in line with these amendments, they had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reportinq date between the tax bases of assets and tiabitities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes.

Deferred tax tiabiuties are recognised for atl taxabte temporary differences, except:

) Where the deferred tax tiabitity/assets arises from the initiat recognition of an asset or tiabitity in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the

time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabte profit or loss

Deferred tax assets are recognised for att deductibte temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets

are recognised to the extent that it is probabte that taxabte profit witl be avaitabte against which the deductibte temporary differences, and the carry forward of

unused tax credits and unused tax tosses can be utilised, except:
) When the deferred tax asset retating to the deductibte temporary difference arises from the initiat recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not

a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabte profit or loss

> ln respect of deductibte temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are

recognised onty to the extent that it is probabte that the temporary differences witt reverse in the foreseeable future and taxabte profit wil[ be avaitabte against

which the temporary differences can be utitised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabte that sufficient taxable profit

witt be avaitabte to attow alt or part of the deferred tax asset to be utitised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are

recognised to the extent that it has become probabte that future taxabte profits witI attow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is reatised or the tiabitity is settted, based

rates (and tax [aws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
retating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other or in equity). Deferred tax

in corretation to the undertying transaction either in OCI or directty in equity
assets and deferred tax tiabilities are offset if a tegatty enforceabte right exists to set off tax tiabitities and the

retate to the same taxabte entity and the same taxation authority
red as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate subsequentty if new

t facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the goodwit[ retated to that

if they resutt from new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisi

New
Tax

assets

[iRvus6ttu
period

continues to create the Deferred Tax Liability (DTL) on Speciat Reserve created and maintained u/s Tax Act, 1961
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3. 1 8.3

4

4.1

Share Based Payment
Equity-settted share-based payments to employees and others providing simitar services are measured at the fair vatue of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settted share-based payments is expensed on a straight-tine basis over the vesting period, based on the

Company's estimate of equity instruments that witt eventualty vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company

revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement

of Profit and Loss such that the cumutative expenses reftects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve.

ESOPs (equity - settled share - based payments) have also been granted to the employees of:

Parent company (including ultimate parent company) whereby:

Parent has considered the payment / setttement which is being made by its subsidiary as credit to 'Dividend lncome' and debit to expenses (employee retated

cost);
Subsidiarv has debited its'Retained Earninqs'as dividend distribution and credited 'eouitv'.
The employees of the Company are recipient of equity - settled share based payments either from the parent (including ultimate Parent) .

(i) Where the transaction is with the parent, the Company has debited its expenses (emptoyee retated cost) and credited the capital contribution from the parent;

the ditutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share ditution in the computation of dituted earnings per share.

The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 25,

The amount of share based payments granted to the emptoyees of
- The Company is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss;

- The Parent Company (inctuding uttimate parent company) is debited to the retained earnings in statement of changes in equity.
The credit in att cases is made to ESOP reserve account.
Significant accounting Judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financiat statements in conformity with the lnd AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and tiabitities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent tiabitities, at the end of the

reporting period. Estimates and undertying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which

the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. Atthough these estimates are based on the management's best knowtedge of current events and actions,

uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resutt in the outcomes requiring a materiat adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabitities in

future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in apptying accounting poticies that have the most significant
Business model assessment

Ctassification and measurement of financial assets depends on the resutts of the SPPI and the business modet test. The company determines the business modet at

a tevel that reftects how its financiat assets are managed together to achieve a particutar business objective. This assessment inctudes judgment reftecting at[

relevant evidence inctuding how the performance of the assets is evatuated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets.

The company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair vatue through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity

to understand the reason for their disposat and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was hetd. Monitoring is

part of the company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financiat assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it
is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business modet and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Estlmates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty a! the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and tiabitities within the next financial year, are described betow. The company based its assumptions and estimates

on parameters availabte when the consotidated financial statements were prepared, Existing circumstances and assumptions about future devetopments, however,

may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the controt of the company. Such changes are reftected in the assumptions when they

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financiat instruments is the price that woutd be received to selt an asset or paid to transfer a tiabitity in an orderty transaction in the principal (or

most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardtess of whether that price is directty observabte

or estimated using another vatuation technique. When the fair vatues of financtal assets and financiat tiabitities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived

from active markets, they are determined using a variety of vatuation techniques that inctude the use of vatuation modets. The inputs to these modets are taken

from observabte markets where possibte, but where this is not feasibte, estimation is required in estabtishing fair vatues. Judgments and estimates inctude

considerations of tiquidity and modet inputs retated to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding vatue adjustments, corretation and votatitity.
Effective lnterest Rate (ElR) method
The company's EIR methodotogy, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over

the expected behaviourat life of toans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentiatty different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of

the product tife cycle (inctuding prepayments and penatty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an etement of judgment regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycte of the instruments.

4.2

4.3
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4.4 lmpairment of financial asset
The measurement of impairment losses across att categories of financiat assets requires judgment, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows and cotlaterat values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a

number of factors, changes in which can resutt in different tevets of allowances.

The company's ECL calcutations are outputs of comptex modets with a number of undertying assumptions regarding the choice of variabte inputs and their
interdependencies. Elements of the ECL modets that are considered accounting judgments and estimates inctude:

The company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so attowances for financiat assets shoutd be measured on a LTECL

basis and the quatitative assessment

The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a cotlective basis

Devetopment of ECL models, inctuding the various formulas and the choice of inputs

Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as coltateral vatues, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDS

Setection of forward-tooking macroeconomic scenarios and their probabitity weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL modets'

It has been the company's poticy to regutarty review its modets in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary'
4,5 Provislons and other contingent liabilities

The company operates in a regulatory and legat environment that, by nature, has a heightened etement of titigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is
invotved in various titigation, arbitration and regutatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of the company's business.

When the company can retiabty measure the outftow of economic benefits in retation to a specific case and considers such outftows to be probable, the company

records a provision against the case. Where the probabitity of outflow is considered to be remote, or probabte, but a retiabte estimate cannot be made, a

contingent tiabitity is disctosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probabitity and amount of losses, the company takes into account a number of factors inctuding legal

advice, the stage of the matter and historica( evidence from simitar incidents. Significant judgment is required to conclude on these estimates.
5 Standards issued but not yet effective

There are no standards that have been issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs that are not yet effective.
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6 Cash and cash equivalents

7 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents

7.1

-Ptedged Against Deposit

111

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Cash in hand
Balances with banks

On current accounts

Stamp Papers in hand

0.02

396.58

0.06

0.02

498.19

0.67
Total cash and cash equivalents 396.66 498.88

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or security against
the borrowings, guarantees, other commitments*

10.00 112.00

Total 10.00 112.0O

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March2O24

Fixed Deposits balance with Banks*
Upto 12 months maturity from the date of Acquisition (More than 3 Months)
Upto 12 months maturity from the date of Acquisition (within 3 Months) 10.00

112.00

Total (A) 10.00 112.OO
Maturity more than 12 months from the date of acquisition but after 12

months from Reporting date
Total (B)

Total (A+B) 10.00 1 12.00
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8 Loans

Notes:
(i) Housing and Non-Housing (Loan against property) loans are secured by equitabte mortgage of properties.

(ii) Secured loans are further ctassified into Standard, Sub Standard, Doubtfut and Loss assets in accordance with the
Non-Banking Financial Company -Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 after considering
subsequent recoveries.

(iii) Even though a portion of interest/instattment is overdue exceeding 90 days as per the prudentiat norms, the entire
balance outstanding after reversing unrealised interest is ctassified as Non-Performing Assets.

(iv) TheCompanyhasnopoticyforgrantingtoanagainstthecollateratof gotdJewettery,Ason3l'tMarch,2025,the
Company did not have any loan against collaterat of gotdi Jewettery.

(v) During the financial year 24'25 Rs. 64.17 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 60.50) disbursed by the Company as processing fee
and othercharges along with loan disbursement and same has been regrouped from housing loan to non-housing loan.

(vi) During the financial year24'25, the Company has received nil towards lnterest Subsidy and nit processing fees under
Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY)- Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme(CLSS) through National Housing Bank (NHB)
(Previous year Rs. nil).

(vii) For the Current Financial Year 24-25, the Company has detected Nit toan account/cases as fraudulent. For the
year23-24, the Company has detected Nit loan account/ cases as fraudutent. As on date, RHDFCL has

8 fraudutent loan accounts, 6 were reported on May 04,ZO1B and 2 were

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

As at
3l March 2024

Loans:
Housing Loans
- Standard Assets
- Sub-Standard Assets
- Doubtful Assets
- Loss Assets

Non-Housing Loans
- Standard Assets
- Sub-Standard Assets
- Doubtful Assets
- Loss Assets

12,410.41

237.46
205.75

3.99

5,6'16.56

118.97
1 00.51

13.29

14,224.31

136.49

431.37
56.79

6,273.47
93.38

1 80.1 8

18.29
Total - Gross 18,706.94 21,414.28
Less: nce
Housing Loans
- Standard Assets
- Sub-Standard Assets
- Doubtful Assets
- Loss Assets

Non-Housing Loans
- Standard Assets
- Sub-Standard Assets
- Doubtful Assets
- Loss Assets

41.90
3 5.66
66.64

3.99

22.89
17.99

36.87
13.29

48.68
20.50

146.64
56.79

25.43
14.03

46.60
18.29

Total - Net 18,467.71 21,O37.32

Secured by tangible assets
Unsecured

Less: Ioss attowance

18,682.17
24.77

239.23

21,395.72
1 8.56

376.96
18,467.71 21 ,037.32

Loans in
Others 18,706.94 21,414.28
Total Gross 18,706.94 21,414.28

I 239.73 376.96

18,467.71 21 ,437.32
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8.1 Housing Loans
8.1.1 Credit Quality of Assets

The table below shows the credit quatity and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company's internal credit and risk poticy / classification defined as per INDAS

8.1 ,2 An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding Provisions allowances in relation to Housing Loans is, as follows:

8.1.3 Reconciliation of Provisions in relation to Housing Loan is given below:

l.t^.., n^t!i

</> i{: \, if '-Fii
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As at 31 March 2024
Total

14,224.31

136.49
43't.37

56.79

14,848.96

Stase 3

136.49
431 .37
56-79

624,65

Staae 2

1,735.92

1,735.92

Stage I

12,488.39

12,4E6.39

As at 31 March 2025

Total

12,410.41

237.46
705.75

3.99
12,857,61

Stase 3

237.46
205.75

3.99

447.20

Stare 2

1,478.27

1,47E.27

Staqe 1

10,937-.14

10,932.14

Particulars

Performing
Standard Grade

Non- performing

Sub-standard qrade

DoubtfuI grade

Loss qrade
Total

at
Total

18,021.80
1,411.55

(4.583.54)

(0.00)

(0.85)

14,848.96

Staee 3
785.35

(142.381
(1 32.e0)
(21.06)
136.49

(0.8s)

624.65

Staee 2
2J22.49

(246.28)
(747.66)
688.38
(81.01)

1,735.92

Stase 1

15,113.96
1,411 .55

(4.194.88)
880.56

(667.32)
(ss.48)

12,488,39

As at 31 l arch 2025

Total
14,848.96

897.52

Q.644.07\
0.00

(244.80)

12.817.61

Staee 3

624.65

(148.28)
(3.171

228.80
Q44.801
447.20

Staee 2
1.735.92

25.55
(250.271
(459.31 )

561.20
(134.82\

1,478.27

Stace 1

12.488.39
871 .97

Q.245.521
472.48

(561.20)
(93.98)

10,932.14

Particutars

Gross carMnq amount openinq balance
New assets orieinated or purchased
Assets derecognrsed or repard (exctudlng wn1:e offs)
Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage Z
Transfers to Stage 3

Amounts written off
Gross carMng amgunt Closine batance

Total
460.32
94-89

(282.60)

272.61

Stare 3
399.1 8

91 .36
(266.61)

223.93

Staee 2
7.79

(1.3e)

6.40

14.60

3

Stage I
53.35

3.53

42.28

Total
272-61

102.89
(227.30

14E.ZO

Staee 3
223.93
100.65

(218.29)

106.29

Stase 2
6.40
0.06

(1.12)

5.34

As at 3'l March 2025
Staqe 1

42.28
7.18

(7.8e)

36,57

F,qaesfers to Stage 3

PrOyFpn - closing balance TIV- \C^\
.,"4 ii:t;}\AqqUI\ts written off

Particulars

Provision - opening balance
New assets originated or purchased

Assets derecoqnised or repaid (excludine wriie offs)
Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2
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8.2 Non-Housing Loans
8.2.1 Credit quality of assets

The tabte below shows the credit quatity and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company's internal credit and risk pol.icy / ctassification defined as per INDAS

8.2.2 An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding Provisions allowances in relation to Non-Housing loans is, as follows:

8.2.3 Reconciliation of Provisions in relation to N loans is given below:

As at 31 liarchZA24
Total

6,273.47

93.38

1 80.1 8

18.29

6,565.32

Staee 3

93.38
180.18

18.29

291.85

Stage 2

660.84

660.84

Staee I

5,612.63

5,612.63

As at 31 ltarch 2025

Total

____:,616i1

't18.97

1 00.51
13.29

5,849.33

Staee 3

118.97
1 00.51

13.29
232.77

Stage 2

709.63

709.63

Staee I

___l9o6lL

4,906-93

Particutars

lnternal rating grade

Performing
Standard Grade

Non- performing
5ub-standard grade

Doubtful grade

Loss qrade
Total

at
Total

8,159.04
1 ,797.62

(3,31 3.94)

(77.40)
6,565.32

Staee 3

442.70
9.50

(89.24\
(ss.1 6)
(16.68)
78.13

(77.4O)

291.85

Staee 2

709.66

(1'18.01)

195.74)
292.24
(27.31)

660.84

Stare I
7,006.68
1,788.12

(3,1 06.69)
250.90

17t5.561
(s0.82)

5,612.63

As at 31 tlarch 2025

Total

6,565.32
830.04

(1,536.36)

0.01

(e.68)
5,849.33

Stase 3

291.85

1 55.75

{12.62)

118.97

232.77

Stage 2

660.84

0.95
(134.s7)
(146.20\
365.52
(36.e1)

709-53

Stare 1

5,612.63
829.O9

(1,246.04\
1 58.82

(365.52)

(82.0s)

4,906.93

Particulars

Gross carrying amount opening balance
New assets originated or purchased
Assets derecognised or repaid (exctuding wril:e offs)
Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Amounts wntten off
Gross carrying amount Closing balance

Total
1 66.38

60.90

(122.e3)

104.35

Staee 3
1 35.31

53.75

(110.14\

78,92

Stase 2
2.85

(0.20)

2.65

Staee 1

As at 31 lvlarch 2024

28.27
7.15

(12.5e)

22.78

Total
104.35

61 .57

(74.88)

91.O4

Staee 3
78.92
58.25

(6e.02)

68.1 5

Stare 2
7-65

0.32

2-97

tu at 31 March 2025
starc 1

22.78
3.32

(6.1 8)

19.92Provif,gn - Closing balance l'<

to
to Stage 2

1to

Particulars

Provision - opening balance
New assets originated or purchased
Assets derecognrsed or repald
(excluding write offs)



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limitecl
Notes forming part of the Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

8.3Disclosureinaccordancewith RBI/2019-2Ol17ODOR(NBFI:).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.1A6n}fi-20datedMarch13,2020

As at March 31,2025

Difference between lnd AS 109
provisions and IMCP norms

(7) = (4)-(6)(6)

Provisions required as
per IRACP norms

56.48
8.31

64.79

53.65

54.34
49.17

1 03.51

17.28

174.44

56.48
8.31

174.44

239.23

239.23

(s)=(3)-(4)

Net Carrying Amount

15,782.59
2,179.59

17.962.18

302.78

129.25
73.50

202.75

505.53

15,782.59
2,179.59

50 5.53
18-467.71

18,467.71

Loss Allowances (Provisions) as
reouired under lnd AS 109

(4)

64.79

56.48
8.31

53.65

54.34
49.17

't03.51

17.28

174.44

56.48
8.31

174.44

239.23

239.23

Gross Carrying Amount
as per lnd AS

(3)

1 5,839.07
2.187.90

18,026,97

356.43

1 83.59
122.67

306.26

17.28

679.97

1 s,839.07
2,187.90

679.97

18,706.94

18,706.94

Asset classification as
per lnd AS 109

(2)

Stage I
Stage 2

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Stage 1

Stage 2
Stage 3

--:-*, ,-.l':--

Asset Classlfication as per RBI Norms

(1)
Assets

Standard

for

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Doubtful - up to 1 year
1 to 3 years

than 3 years

ard (a)

)Loss

NPA

Other items such as guarantees, loan
commitments, etc. which are in the scope of
lnd AS 109 but not covered under current
lncome Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning (IMCP) norms

Total

T

t:; ,,

-C)c



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limitec
Notes forming part of the Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

S.3Disclosureinaccordancewith RBI/2019-z1t17oDOR(NBFC).CC.pD.No.,l09/22.10.1}6na1g-2odatedMarch13,202o

As at March 31,2024

Difference between lnd AS 109
provisions and IRACP norms

(7) = (4)-(6)

Provisions required as
per IRACP norms

(6)

65.0s
9.06

74.11

34.53

85.89
1 07.35

193.24

75.08

302.8s

65.05
9.06

302.85

376.96

376.96

Net Carrying Amount

(5)=(3)-(a)

18,O35.97
2,387.70

20.423.67

195.34

257.59
160.72

41 8.31

61 3.65

18,O35.97
2,387.70

61 3.65
21,037.32

21,O37.32

Loss Allowances (Provisions) as

required under lnd AS 109
(41

65.05

9.06
74.11

34.53

85.89
1 07.35

193.24

75.08

302.85

65.05
9.06

302.85

376.96

376.96

Gross Carrying Amount
as per lnd AS

(3)

1 8,1 01 .02
2,396.76

20,497.78

229.87

343.48

268.07

61 1.55

75.08

9 1 6.50

'18,101 .02
2,396.76

91 6.50
21 ,414.28

21,414.28

Asset classification as

lnd AS 109

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 'l

Stage 2

Stage 3

Stage 1

Stage 2
Stage 3

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms

(1)
Performing Assets

Standard

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard (a)

Doubtful - up to 1 year
1 to 3 years

than 3

Loss

items such as guarantees, loan
commitments, etc. which are in the scope of
lnd AS 109 but not covered under current
lncome Recognition, Asset Ctassification and
Provisioning (IRAC norms

Total

New Delhi

riEt-l
i,.i \,-,
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

9 lnvestments

1O Other Financial Assets

1 1 Current Tax Assets (Net)

12 Deferred Tax Assets/Liability (Net)

per company future ptans, management is assured that company earn sufficient profits and they witt be able to set off the carry forward
losses in future.

(B) Recognition of deferred tax asset to the extent of deferred tax tiabitity

(A)

-As

Particulars As at
3'l March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

lnvestments measured at fair value through Profit or loss
MutuaI funds
Security Receipts

909.68
590.95

200.89
1,039.26

Total - Gross 1,500.63 1,240.15
(r) lnvestments outsrde lndia
(ii) lnvestments in lndia

1 , s00.63 1,240.15
Total - Gross 1,s00.63 1,240.15
Less: Atl,owance tor lmpairment loss (309.41 ) (401.40)
Total - Net 1,191.22 838.7s

Particulars As at
31 ldarch 2O25

As at
31 March 2024

Security Deposits

lnterest Accrued on Fixed Deposits
Excess lnterest Spread Receivable (Refer note 44(3))
Receivabte - lnter company
Other Receivabtes - including assignment

75.88
0.62

256.60
12.89

18.14

73.26

4.89
589.93

4.80
14.81

total - gross 364.13 6U7.69
Less: lmpairment Ioss atlowance (on El5 Receivabte assets) 4.66 1 0.89
Total - Net 359.47 675.80

Particulars As at
31 ltarch 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Advance payment of Taxes and Tax Deducted at Source (net of provisions amounting Rs. Nit (31

Match2024i Rs. 1,239.19 Lacs) 4.17 191.68

TOTAI 4.17 191.58

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Deferred Tax retates to the foltowing:
Deferred Tax Assets
Expected credit tosses Altowance
Provision on lnvestments
Provision for emptoyee benefits
Unamortized Processing fee
Lease LiabiIity
Security Deposit
Loss as per income tax.
Property, Plant and Equipments

60.21

77.88
1 8.85
26.93
88.30
4.05

527.84
7.85

94.87
101 .03

1 6.58
29.54

104.76

5.23

341.87
8.49

811 .91Assets(A) toz.37
Deterred Tax Liability
SpeciaI Reserve u/s 36(1) (viii) of lT Act 1961

Right of Use Assets

lnvestments measured at fair value through Profit or Loss

Excess interest spread

670.29
75.76
2.45

63.41

670.29
93.42
0.23

145.73
I otal Deferred Tax Liability (B) a1 1.91 909.67

Particulars As at
31 ilarch 2025

As at
31 March2024

Balance sheet
Deferred Tax Asset (A)

Qeferred Tax Liabitity (B)
81 1.91

81 1 .91

702.37
909.67

Rrred tax assets/ (tlability),(NetXA-B)

New Delhi

DFIH//v€tv

Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabitities have been offset as they relate to the same governing taxation taws.



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the )'ear ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

13 Property, plant and equipment

Net amount

As at
31 March 2024

15.08

32.51

2.40

49.99

As at
31 ilarch 2025

10.97

27.81

4.73

43,51

Acqumulated

As at
31 lrtarch 2025

53.62

1 08.80
3.00

1.60

167.02

Deductions/
Adjustments

0.82

8.76

0.30

9.88

For the
year

4.79
17.23

0.75

22-77

As at
1 April2024

0.82

57.59

91.57

2.55

1.60

154.13

Gross carrying amount

As at
31 March 2025

64.59
136.61

7.73

1.60

210-53

Deductions /
Adjustments

0.82

8.92

0.34

10.08

Additions /
Adjustments

0.84
12.53

3.'t2

16.49

As at
1 April?O24

0.82
72.67

124.08

4.95

1.60

204.12

Particulars

Leasehotd lmprovements

Office Equipment
Data Processing Machines
Furniture and Fixtures

Net amount

As at
31 March 2023

1 6.38

27.38

1.88

45.64

As at
31 March 2024

15.08

32.51

2.40

49.99

Accumulated Depreciation

As at
31 March 2024

0.82

57.59

91.57

2.55

1.60

1 54.1 3

Deductions/
Adjustments

3.91

0.95

4.86

For the
Year

4.92

14.70

0.45

20-o7

As at
1 April 2023

0.82

56.58

77.82

2.10

1.60

138.92

Gross carrying amount

As at
31 March 2024

0.82

72.67

124.08

4.95

1.60

204.12

Deductions /
Adjustments

4.30

0.93

5.23

Additions /
Adjustments

4.01

19.81

o.97

24.79

As at
1 April 2023

0.82
72.96

105.20

3.98

1.60

184.56

Particulars

Leasehotd lmprovements

Office Equipment

Data Processing Machines
Furniture and Fixtures

VehicIes

Total

Nerv Delhi
oc

it
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Retigare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial statements for the yaar ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

14 lntangible assets

Net carrying amount
As at

31 March 2024

1.16

1.16

As at
31 March 2025

24.47

24.47

Accumulated Depreciation

As at
31 March 2025

28.04

28-O4

Deductions/
Adjustments

For the
year

5.54

5.54

As at
1 April2024

72.50

22.50

Gross carrying amount

As at
31 March 2025

52.51

52.51

Deductions/
Adjustments

Additions/
Adjustments

28.85

28.8s

As at
1 Aprillo?4

23.66
23.66

Particulars

Computer Software
Total

Net amount

As at
31 March 2023

2.05

2.Os

As at
31 March 2024

1.16

1.16

Accum ulated Depreciation

As at
31 March 2024

22.50

22.50

Deductions/
Adjustments

For the
Year

0.89

0.89

As at
1 April 2023

21.61

21-61

Gross amount

As at
1 April2023

Additions/
Adjustments

Deductions/
Adjustments

As at
31 l{arch 2024

23.66

23.66

23.66
23.66

Particulars

Computer Software
Total

14.1 There are no adjustments to lntangible Assets on account rf borrowing costs and exchange differences. There is no revaluation of lntangibte Assets during the year
14.2 The Company does not have any internally generated intangibte assets.

15 Right-of-use-Asset

Net carrying amount
As at

31 March 2024

371 17

371 .17

As at
31 March 2025

301.00

301-OO

Accumu

As at
31 March 2025

372.23

322.23

Deductions/
Adjustments

60.22

60.22

For the
year

123.57

123.57

As at
1 April 2024

258.88

258.88

Gross carrying amount

As at
31 March 2025

623.23

623-23

Deductions /
Adjustments

74.80

74.80

Additions /
Adjustments

67.98

67.98

As at
1 April2O24

630.05

630.05

Particulars

Right-of-use - Land &. Building*
Total

**Duetoimplementationof INDAS-116, w.e.f April l,2OlgAssettakenonFinanceLease-VehicleshavebeenregroupedunderRightof UseAssets-Vehictes

amount
As at

31 March 2023
416.25

3.73

419.98

As at
31 March 2024

371.17

371.17

As at
31 March 2024

258.88

258.88

Deductions/
Adjustments

25.01

9.78

34.79

For the
Year

122.71

1.37

124-O8

As at
1 April 2023

161 .18

8.41
't 69.59

Gross carrying amount
As at

31 March 2024
630.05

630.05

Deductions /
Adiustments

25.01

12.14

37.1 5

Additions /
Adjustments

77.63

77.63

As at
1 April 2023

5//.43
12.14

589.57

Particulars

-use

of Use Assets -Vehicte

Total

New Delhi
i :t'. D3LHI
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

1 5.1 lntangible Assets under development

Assets under development schedule as at March 31 2025

progress new as new core

Assets under schedule as at A arch 31, 2024

16 Other Non Financial Assets

17 Trade Payables

Trade les schedule as at March 3'l 2025

Trade bles as at March 2024

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 l arch 2024

Opening Balance as on Aprit 01, 2024
Additions

the

191.33

60.71

28.84

29.75
161.58

as on 223^24 191.33

aParticular
Less tnan I year 1-Zyea6 2 - 3 vear3 MOre tnan J yearr Total

Projects in progress* 49.20 144.25 29.75 223.20
Projects temporarity suspended
Total aq ?a 144-25 29-7' 223.24

next

Partlcular a
TotalLess than I vear I . 2 years z . 3 years More than 3 y€ars

Projects in progress 1 61 .58 29.75 191.33
Projects temporarity suspended
Totat t 6r ^58 2q_7a t9r -33

Particulars As at
3l llarch 2025

As at
31 March2024

government a

expenses
to Vendor

hetd for sate note 43)

342.41

134.96

87.76

255.52
92.33

1.39
87.76

565.1 3 437.OO

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 lrtarch 2024

Totat outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smalI enterprises
TotaI outstanding dues ol creditors other than micro enterprises and smatI enterprises

6.12
5.30

4.42
5.40

11.42 9.az

Outstandlnp' from ofParticular Unbilled Not due
Less than I Year 1 to 2 vears 2 to 3 veers l{orE than 3 vears

Total

(i) MSME 6.L2 5.12
(ii) others 5.30 5.30
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

date of transactionParticular Unbllled Not due
Less than t Year I to 2 vearj 2 to 3 vears More than 3 vears

Total

(i) MSME 4.42 4.42
(ii) Others 5.40 5.40
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others

NE\^/ DELHI

New Delhi



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 3.1 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

18 than Debt

18.1 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from activities in accordance with INDAS - 7

18'2 The quarterty returns or statements of current assets fited by the company during FY ended2024 with banks and or financiat institutions are in agreement with the
books of accounts and there is no materiat discrepancies. No quarterty return or statements of current assets fi(ed by the company, during Fy ended on 31 March 2025,
on account of nil borrowing avaited from the banks or financial institutions against standard business receivabtes and current assets in the form of cash and cash

18.3 Term Loans from Banks and advance nst

Repayment Term Sanctioned Tenor
As at

31 March 2025
As at

31 llarch 2024*
Annuatly 0 to 12 Months 100.76
Total too.76

.The above Advance Against Deposit is secured against the ptedge of Fixed Deposit of Rs.1 1 2.00 tacs. The rate of interest on the facitity was Deposit Rate + 1 .00% p.a
i.e. 7.80% p.a.

18,4 Term Loans from Others

Company Term Loan re Enterprises
Limited and the same was repaid during the Financial yeat ZO24-25

out U

Particulars As at
3t ,?tarch 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Borrowings measured at Amortised Cost

Secured
Advance Against Deposits
(i) from banks. (refer note 18.1, 18.2 & 18.3)
Unsecured
(i) from Retatedparties (refer note 18.4)

100.76

1,000.00
I Otat 1,19O.76

ngs in lndia
outside lndia

1,100.76

1,1OO.76

Partlculars As at
31 A,tarch 2O25

As at
31 

^,tarch 
2024

Borrowings (other than debt securities)

than debt securities)
Closing balances

Item
Cash ltem

1,100.76

(1,100.76)

5,307.04

(4,207.28',)

1.00

1,100.76

Repayment Term Sanctioned Tenor
As at

31 lvlarch 2025
As at

31 March 2024*
n 0 to 12 Months 1,000.00

1,000.00

f'.!cw Dellti
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

19 Other Financial Liabilities

20 Lease Liability

21 Provisions

22 Other Non Financial Liabilities

23 Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 A,tarch 2024

Expenses payable
Security Deposits
Payabte - lnter Company
Book Overdraft
lnterest accrued but not due on borrowings - ICD

Other Liabitities - Miscel[aneous

353.67

0.93
147.99

78.60

484.98

0.93
26.06

139.24

9.84
96.84

Total 581.1 9 757.89

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

As at
31March2o24

Lease Liabitity on Land & Buitding 350.86 416.26
Total 350.86 416.26

Particulars As at
31 March 2O25

As at
31 March 2024

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 47)
Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment

50.91

74.89
30.84

65.88
Total 1 25.80 96.12

Particulars As at
31 lilarch 2025

As at
31 March2024

Statutory dues payable
State Cheques

Others

41.46

56.46

48.04

0.22

65.60
Total 97.97 1 13.86

Particulars As at
31 March 2O25

As at
31 March 2024

Details of authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

Authorized

60,000,000 (31 March 2024:60,000,000 ) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 6,000.00 6,000.00
Total 6,000.00 6,OOO.OO

lssued, subscribed and paid up

39,998,000 (31 March 2024:39,998,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each futty paid 3,999.80 3,999.90
Total 3,999.80 3,999.69

New Delhi
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

23,'l Reconciliation of number and amount of Shares

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Number of Shares (Amount in INR lacs) Number of Shares (Amount in INR lacs)

Batance as at the beginning of the year

Add: lssued during the year
39,998,000 3,999.80 39,998,000 3,999.80

Balance as at the end of the year 39,998,000 3,999.80 39,998,000 3,999.80

23,2 Termsl rights attached to equity shares

The Company has onty one ctass of equity shares having par vatue of INR 10 per share. Each hotder of equity shares is entitted to one vote per
share. The company declares and pays dividends in lndian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approvat of the
sharehotders in the ensuing Annuat Generat Meeting except in case of interim dividend, if any dectared by the Board of Directors.

ln the event of liquidation of the company, the hotders of equity shares witt be entitted to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of att preferential amounts. The distribution witt be in proportion to the number of equity shares hetd by the sharehotders.

23.3 Shares held by

23.4 Shares held romoters at March 31, ZO25

Shares held at March 3 I 2024

23.5 Detailsofsharesheldbysharehotdersholdingmorethan5%oftheaggregatesharesintheCompany

23.6 No ctass of shares have been issued as bonus shares or for consideration other than cash by the Company during the period of five years
immediatety preceding the current year end.

23.7 No class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of five years immediatety preceding the batance sheet date.

23.8 There are no securities that are convertibte into equity/ preference shares.

23.9 There are no catt unpaid

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Religare Finvest Limited, the holding Company and its nominees

34,998,750 (31 March 2024:34,998,250) equity shares

3,499.83 3,499.83

Promoter Name
No of Shares % of total Shares % Change during the

year

Retigare Finvest Limited, the hotding Company and its nominees 34,998,250 87.50%

Promoter Name
No of Shares % of total Shares % Change during the

year

Retigare Finvest Limited, the hotding Company and its nominees 34,998,250 87.50%

Name of the shareholder

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 l\ arch 2024

Number of
shares

% of hotding in the
class

Number of
shares

% of holding in the
class

Retigare Finvest Limited (Hotding Company) and its
nominees

Maharishi Housing Devetopment Trust

34,998,250

4,963,160

87.50%

12.41%

34,998,250

4,963,160

87.50%

12.41%

New Delhi
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

24 Other Equity

Nature and purpose of Reserves

Securities premium account:
The amount received in excess of face vatue of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium . The reserve
can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Statutory reserve:
Every year the Company is required to transfers at least twenty per cent of its net profit of that year as disclosed in
the statement of profit and loss to its Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 29C in The National Housing Bank Act,
1987.
No appropriation of any sum from the reserve fund including any sum in the special reserve which has been taken
into account for the purposes of reserve fund in terms of sub-section (1), shatt be made by such housing finance
institution except for the purpose as may be specified by the Nationat Housing Bank from time to time.
Retained earnines:
Retained earnings are the profits that thc Company has earned ti[[ date, less any transfers to statutory ieserye,
debenture redemption reserye, generat reserye, dividends distributions paid to shareholders and transfer from
debenture redemption reserve.

Other Comprehensive lncome:
Remeasurement gain/[oss retated to defined benefit liability/assets is recognised as other comprehensive income.

Contribution bv Ultimate Holdine Companv (ESOP)

Represents fair value of ESOPs issued by the Ultimate Hotding Company to the employees of the Company

Particulars
As at

31 March 2025
As at

31 March 2024

Securities premium
Opening balance
Add : Securities premium credited on share issue

5,808.60 5,808.60

Closing balance 5,808.60 5,808.60

Statutory Reserye
Opening balance
Add : Additions/ Deductions/ Regrouping

3,050.93

21.78
3,047.03

3.90
Closing balance 3,072.71 93
Retained Earnings
Opening batance
Add: Profit for the current year
Less: Transfer/ Regrou pi n g to Statutory Reserve

8,982.03
(1,267.22)

21.78

8,970.48
15.45

3.90

Other Comprehensive lncome
Opening balance
Add: Reclassification of Actuarial gain/(Loss)

(141.3s)
(1 6.e0)

(145.40)
4.05

closlng balance (1 56.25) (141.35
Contribution by Ultimate Holding Company (ESOP)

Opening balance
Addition during the Year

3.46 3.46

Closing balance 3.46 3.46

Total Other Equity 16,479.55 17,7O3.67
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 3'l March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

25 Disclosure on Share Based Payments as per INoAS 102 (Employee Stock Option Scheme)

A. Details of the Scheme:

RHDFCL Emptoyee Stock Option Scheme 201 9 was approved by the Eoard of Directors of the Company on February 06, 2019 and by sharehotders of the Company on March 05, 20l 9.

B Details of Srants approved in ESOP Scheme 2019 for employees of the Company and ultimate Parent in accordance with the Stock Option Scheme:
(i) To the employees of the Company

GEnt datc
Ex€rclia

prl.e (fu.)

No, of Optloru outstanding
aon

Aprll 01, 202.1

OptloE iranted durl.E th.
yeal

I 

mrrotton. auanr ttr" v"".
Optlonr vcated rnd

exerclsabl€
Optlont unvelted

Option!
ex€rclged/E el.ed

Optlonr c.n.elled
dlrlnt thc y6a.

Numbcr of Optlonr
oubtanding s on
Ltarch 31, 2025

20.Mav.1 ! 6l-00 al? 5no 7lo ono 32.500 7AO 000
21-.\n-)( 61 04 1,235.200

974.700 974_700 978.700

7 716 ano ! 066 6m l1a 164 32- 500
..................,'..........................:..e

3 tat 900

(ii) To the employees of the Ultlmate lloldin! Company (Religare Enterprises Ltd)

Gcnt dat6
Erercbe

prlcc {tu.}

No. of Options out3tedinS
40n
Aprit 01, 2024

Opttqns grant.d durlnt thr
yed frffentioro aurte the Vcul

OptloB veit€d and
cxercliabla OptloB unveltcd

Optlons
cxercbedlExplred

Optlont <.n.elled
dlrlni the yed

Numbc. of Optionj
outstandlng d on

March 31, 2025
2l-lrn.7C 61 04 93 800

351.800 351.800 351.800
5I5-200 441 400 93.800 421.106

Partlculn
For tho Year ended

,,larch 31, 2025
Fo. th. Ye{ ended

ltaEh 31, 2024

Number of Optlom Granted
durlng the year

lWcishtod de.agc fair vrlue

le.r
Number of Optlon!
Gantcd dsrlng thc yad

lWelghted.vc.ate f.lr
lvalue (Rr.)

6rant date I

C. Weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the year is ar followsi

teble contractual life

Total for all gr.nt! No. ofoptlon3 R.nge of eercire prlcei
(Rs )

Weithtcd avorago
exerche prlce {Rr.}

Welghted !vc..g€ rcmtinlnt
contractual llfe (yaar3]

year
during the year
/migration during the year

during the year

during the year
at the end of the year

at the end of the

3,73't,600

126,300

3,605,300
3.474 OOO

51.69 to 63

51.69 to 63

51.69 to 63

60.97 1.09

Method used for accounting for share ba5ed payment plan

The key as5umPtions used in Black - Schole5 Model for calculating fair value ai on the date of respective grants are:
i Grant date
ii Risk free interest rate
iii Expected tife
iv Expected votatitity
v Dividend yietd

vi Price of the undertying share in the mar ket at the time of the option qrant

the

Partlculart

For the Year ended
i{a.ch 31,2025

For thc Ye.r ended
lrlarcb 31, 2024

Number of Optlont
Outgta.dlnl Amourt

Number of Optlgnr
OuEt!ndlng Amourt

The Company hasi
Credited ESOP reserue on:
Debiting the empLoyee reLated cost being ESOP expenses on jts own emptoyees
Debiting retained earnings being ESOP expenses on its Uttimate parent employees
Credited 'equity' E debited emptoyee re(ated cost being ESOPs granted to the employees of the Company by its
parent

Credited 'equity' & debited emptoyee reLated cost being ESOps granted to the empLoyees of the Company by its

3,183,900
421 ,400
275,000

7 40,000

3,216,400
515,200

300,000

7 40,0oo
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financialstatements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

26 lnterest lncome

27 Fees and commission lncome*

note 48

ZB Gain / (Loss) on Fair Value Changes*

ue changes in this sc are other than those arising on account accrued interest income expense
* Refer note 48

29 Net gain on de-recognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category*

* Refer note 48

30 Other lncome

alr

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 tlrtarch 2024

On Financial at Amortised cost

with Banks

r note
lnterest on loans
lnterest on Fixed

3,005.3 1

3.04
3,777.16

5.43

3,008.35 3,782.59

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2O24

Miscellaneous lncome inctudi Bounce Charges

Foreclosure 17.19

99.39

18.59

154.04

Total 1 1 6.58 172.63

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Net Gain / (Loss) on Financial lnstruments at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss

On Trading Portfotio
- lnvestment 41.15 16.84

41.15 16.84
f a

Reatised

Unrealised
31.43

9.72

15.94

0,90
41.15 16.84

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2O24

on n na u er
category

330.92

330.92

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 l{arch 2024

n on
Profit on sale of fixed assets

lncome includes interest income on income tax refund

6.94
0.20

s8.80

5.99

3.66

19.88
65.94 29,53

New Delhi
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

31 Finance Costs

32 Fees and Commission Expenses

33 Employee Benefits Expenses

34 lmpairment on financial instruments made / (reversed)
The below table show impairment loss on financial instruments charge to statement of profit and loss based on category of
financiaI instrument.

35 Depreciation, Amortization and lmpairment

Particulars Year ended
31 i{arch 2025

Year ended
31 iiarch 2024

un Frnancrat ltabrlrttes measured at Amortised Cost
lnterest on borrowings
lnterest on lnter Corporate Loan

Loan review charges
lnterest on others
lnterest expense On lease tiabitities

2.35
56.1 0

0.06
0.04

42.35

437.77
134.43

7.49
0.28

47.51
Total 100.90 627.4E

Particulars Year ended
31 ldarch 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Fees and commission expenses 0.24 0.22
Total s.z4 4.72

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2O25

Year ended
3t tlarch 2A24

Sataries and wages

n to provident and other funds
Recruitment & Training
Staff welfare expenses

G and compensated absences expenses

2,690.72

148.07

7.59
112.58

73.88

2,536.22
136.40

12.35

1 00.3 5

79.74
3,O32.E4 2,855.06

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2O24

On financial lnstruments measured at Amortised cost
Provisions
Loans

Standard Provision
Non-Performing Assets Provision - Housing Loan
Non-Performing Assets Provision - Non Housing Loan

lnvestment
ECL on Excess lnterest Spread
Actual
Bad debt & loans written off
Less:- Bad debts recovered

(e.32)
(117.64)
(10.77)
(e1.ee)

I A 'r1\

254.48
(37.111

(1 8.1 0)
(175.25)

(56.3e)
(288.90)

/o 5qr

79.48
(319.69)

Total (1 8.56) 1779.44

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment's (refer note 13)
Amortization on lntangibte Assets (refer note 14)
Depreciation on Right-of-use (refer note 15)

22.77
5.54

123.57

20.07
0.89

124.08
I otal 151.EE 145.O4
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the FinancialStatements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

36 Other Expenses

36.1 Payment to Auditors

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 lvtarch 2O24

AS auoltor
Audit fee
Tax Audit Fee

ln other capacity
Certification Fee

Out of pocket/Reimbursement of Expenses and other certification, if any

17.25

1 .50

5.85

2.17

17.25

1 .50

6.30

0.61
Total 26.77 25.66

36.2 Details of CSR Expenditure:
For the year ended on March 31, 2025, the provisions of the Section 1 35 of the Companies Act, 201 3 are not applicable on the
Company.

37 Disclosure under "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development ('MSMED') Act, 2006"

Based on the intimation received by the Company, some of the supptiers have confirmed to be registered under "The Micro,
Sma[[ and Medium Enterprises Devetopment ('MSMED')Act, 2006". Accordingly, the disctosures retating to amounts unpaid as at
ihe year ended together with interest paid i payabte are furnished below:

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Rent, taxes and energy costs
Repairs and maintenance
Facitity Attendant Expense

Communication Costs

Printing and stationery
Advertisement and pubticity
Director's fees, allowances and expenses
Legal and Professional charges
lnsurance
Auditor's fees and expenses (refer note 36.1 )

Rating Expenses

Travel and conveyance
Electricity and water
lT-Expense

Bank charges

Loss on sale of fixed assets

Goods and Services Tax Expense

Miscetlaneous Expenses

107.02

38.12

141.52

5.51

8.64
18.97

28.50
235.31

24.81

26.77
18.94

114.21

35.64
435.75

16.92

0.17
128.56

45.98

83.62

55.22

164.03

5.52
10.80

35.98

25.50
355.39

27.10
25.66

19.63

129.60

33.73

259.86

14.57

0.28
124.84

83.06
I otal 1,431.34 1,454.39

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the Vear
The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at
the end of the year

The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16, along with the amount of
payment made to the supplier bevond the appointed dav durins the vear
The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without addinq the interest specified under this Act
The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid at the end
of the year
The amount of further interest remaining due and payabte even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
sma[[ enterprise for the purpose of disatlowance as a deductibte expenditure
under section 23 of the Micro, Smatl and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

38 lncome tax

Partlculars Year ended
31 darch 2025

Y6ar ended
11 ltarch2O24

The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024 are:

Current tax

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior year
Deferred tax retating to origination and reversaI of temporary differences

7.92

(207.30)

0.92

3.39

Total tax charge (19e.381 4-31

Current tax
Deferred tax

7.92
(207.30)

0.92
3.39

lncome tax recognls€d in Other Comprehensive lncome (OCl)
Year ended

31 ilarch 2025
Year ended

31 fitarch 2O24
Re-measurement of defined benefit ptans

38.1 Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that woutd appty if att profits had been charged at lndia corporate tax rate. A

reconcitiation between the tax expense and the accounting profit muttiptied by lndia's domestic tax rate for the years ended 31 March 2025 and2024 is, as fottows:

Partlculars Year ended
3l itarch 2025

Year ended
3'l A^arch 2024

Accounting profit/(toss) before tax (A)

Appticabte Tax Rate (B) (%)

Computed Tax Expense (A X B)

Tax Effect of :

Deductions Ctaimed / Expenses atlowed under tax
provisions
Disaltowance / Expenses not altowabte
Current year losses

lncome taxes retated to prior years

Current Tax Provision (C)

Deferred tax Provision (D)

Taxes Charged in profit and loss account [C]+(D)=(E)

(1,466.60)

25.17
(369.1 1 )

(134.45]'

144.06

359.51

7.92

7.97
(207.30)

(1 99.38)

19.76

25.17
4.97

(258.77',)

60.85
192.95

0.92

0.92
3.39

4.31

I ne eltectrve income tax rate ( vA x loo) 13.59 21.41%

38.2 Deferred tax

The foltowing tabte shows deferred tax recorded in the batance sheet and changes recorded in the lncome tax expense:

Deferred tax Assets Deferred tax liabilities Statement of profit & loss oct
Partlculars

31 l{arch 2O25 31 trtarch 2025 31 ilarch 2025 31 ilarch 2025
Provision tor emptoyee benefits
Property, Ptant and Equipments
Speciat Reserve uis 36(1) (viii) of lT Act 196'1

Right of Use Assets

Expected credit Iosses Atlowance
Unamortized Processing fee
Lease Liabitity
Security Deposit
Loss as per lncome Tax
Provision on lnvestments

lnvestments measured at fair vatue through Profit or

Excess lnterest Spread
Loss

60.21

26.93
88.30
4.05

527.84
77.88

1 6.U)
7.85

670.29
75.76

2.45

63.41

17.66

(34.66)
(2.611

(16.461
(1.18)

185.97
(23.1 s)

(2.22\

t.t I

82.32

(0.64)

Total 81 1.91 81 1.91 207.30

a matter creation of deferred tax asset (DTA) on current year losses of the extent of Deferred Tax Liabitity (DTL)

considering the avaitabitity of future taxabte profit against which the deductibte temporary differences and unused tax losses can be utitised.

Deferred tax Assets Deferred tax liabilities Statement of profit & loss ocrParticulars

31 lvtarch 2024 31 lilarch 2024 31 itarch 2024 31 lilarch 2024

Delhi

on

lnterest

Property, Ptant and Equipments
Special Reserve ui s 16(1) (viii) of lT Act 1961

Right of Use Assets

Expected credit losses Attowance
Unamortized Processing fee
Lease Liabitity

at fair vatue through Profit or

94.87
29.54

104.76

5.23

341.87
1 01 .03

1 6.58
8.49

670.29

93.42

0.23

145.73

17.28
(62.85)

(s.8e)
(7.87)
(0.se)

179.14
(72.40)

(0.23)

(44.83)

0.96
(1.11)

f\'EWDFLHt

b)"L -/,.n7 702.37 909.67 (3.3e)
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

39 Contingent liabilities and commitments
To meet the financial needs of customers, the Company enters into various irrevocable commitments, which primarity
consist of undrawn commitment to lend. Further the Company is also exposed to contingent tiabitities arising from tegat
ctaims.

Legal claims
The Company operates in a regutatory and Legat environment that, by nature, has a heightened etement of titigation
risk inherent in its operations. As a result, the Company is involved in various titigation, arbitration and regulatory
proceedings in the ordinary course of its business. The Company has formal controts and policies for managing legat
claims. Based on professional legal advice, the Company provides and/or discloses amounts in accordance with its
accounting policies. At year end, the Company had several unresotved tegal claims however individuatty any of the
ctaim is not material.

Note 1 : Out of I Rs. Nit (Previous year ), Rs. Nit (Previous year Rs. 1

adjusted with tax refunds due to the Company.

Commitments

Partlculars As at
31 itarch 2025

As at
3l March20?4

(a) Ctaims against the Company not acknowtedged as debts
(b ) Disputed lncome Tax Demands not provided for*

17"t.68 162.81

204.47
Total 121.68 367.28

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

(a) Undisbursed Loans - Housing
(b ) Undisbursed Loans - Non-Housing

119.94
9.91

140.25

Total 129.85 140.25

New Delhi
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

40

40.1

Risk Management

lntroduction and rlsk profile

Company has operations in lndia. Whitst risk is inherent in the Company's activities, it is managed through an integrated risk management framework, including ongoing
'identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk timits and other controts. This process of risk management is critical to the Company's continuing
profitabitity and each individuat within the Company is accountabte for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Company is exposed to credit risk,
tiquidity risk and market risk. lt is atso subject to various operating and business risks.

40.1,1 Risk Management Structure

The Board of Directors are responsible for the overatl risk management approach and for approving the risk management strategies and principtes.

The Risk Committee has the overatl responsibitity for the devetopment of the risk strategy and implementing principles, frameworks, poticies and timits. The Risk

Committee is responsibte for managing risk decisions and monitoring risk tevets and reports to the Supervisory Board.

The Risk Management Unit is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk retated procedures to ensure an independent control process is maintained. The unit
works ctosely with and reports to the Risk Committee, to ensure that procedures are comptiant with the overatt framework.

The Risk Controtling Unit is responsibte for monitoring comptiance with risk principtes, poticies and timits across the Company. Each business Company has its own unit
which is responsibte for the control of risks, inctuding monitoring the actuat risk of exposures against authorised limits and the assessment of risks of new products and
structured transactions, lt is the Company's poticy that this unit atso ensures the complete capture of the risks in its risk measurement and reporting systems.

The Company's Treasury is responsibte for managing its assets and tiabitities and the overau financial structure. lt is atso primarity responsible for the funding and

tiquidity risks of the Company.

The Company's poticy is that risk management processes throughout the Company are audited annuatty by the lnternat Audit function, which examines both the
adequacy of the procedures and the Company's comptiance with the procedures. lnternal Audit discusses the resutts of att assessments with management, and reports
its findings and recommendations to the Supervisory Board and Audit Committee.

40.1.2 Risk Mitigation and Risk culture

As part of its overaLl risk management, the Company can use instruments to manage exposures resutting from changes in interest rates, equity risks and credit risks.

40.1.3 Risk measurement and reporting systems

The Company's risks are measured using a method that reftects both the expected toss tikety to arise in normal circumstances and unexpected losses, which are an

estimate of the ultimate actual loss based on statisticat modets. The models make use of probabitities derived from historicat experience, adjusted to reflect the
economic environment. The Company atso runs worst-case scenarios that woutd arise in the event that extreme events which are untikety to occur do, in fact, occur.

Monitoring and controtling risks is primarily performed based on timits estab(ished by the Company. These [imits reftect the business strategy and market environment
of the Company as well as the |'eve[ of risk that the Company is witting to accept, with additionat emphasis on setected industries. ln addition, the Company's poticy is
to measure and monitor the overatl risk-bearing capacity in relation to the aggregate risk exposure across att risk types and activities.

lnformation compiled from atl the businesses is examined and processed in order to analyses, controt and identify risks on a timety basis. This information is presented
and exptained to the Board of Directors, the Risk Committee, and the head of each business division. The report inctudes aggregate credit exposure, credit metric
forecasts, hotd timit exceptions, VaR, tiquidity ratios and risk profile changes.

At all levets of the Company's operations, specificatty tajtored risk reports are prepared and distributed in order to ensure that att business divisions have access to
extensive, necessary and up-to date information.

Stress testing is a fundamental pitlar of the Company's risk management tootkit, to simutate various economic stress scenarios to hetp the Company set and monitor risk
appetite and to ensure that the Company maintains a conseryative risk profile. The outcome of tests is embedded into the individuat credit, tiquidity and funding risk
profites through limits and mitigation contingency ptans and inctudes both financiat and regutatory measures.

It is the Company's poticy to ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded jn its organizational risk cutture. Emptoyees are expected to take ownership and be
accountabte for the risks the Company is exposed to that they decide to take on. The Company's continuous training and development emphasises that emptoyees are
made aware of the Company's risk appetite and they are supported in their rotes and responsibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within the Company's
risk appetite Iimits. Compliance breaches and internal audit findings are important elements of employees' annuaI ratings and remuneration reviews.

40.1.4 Excessive riskconcentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in simitar business activitjes, or activities in the same geographical region, or have simitar economic

indicate the retative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particutar industry or geographical locatjon.

ln order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's poucies and procedures inctude specific guidetines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio.
ldentified concentrations of credit risks are controtted and managed accordingty.

New Delhi N[W DELHi
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR [acs, unless otherwise stated)

4O.2 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Company witt incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fait to discharge their contractual obtigations. The Company manages

and controts credit risk by setting timits on the amount of risk it is witting to accept for individuat counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and

by monitoring exposures in retation to such timits.

Credit risk is monitored by the credit risk department of the Company's independent Risk Controtting Unit. lt is their responsibitity to review and manage credit risk,

inctuding environmental and sociat risk for a[ types of counterparties. Credit risk consists of tine credit risk managers who are responsible for their business lines and

manage specific portfolios and experts who support both the tine credit risk manager, as wetl as the business with toots tike credit risk systems, poticies, modets and

reporting.

The Company has estabtished a credit quaLity review process to provide early identification of possibte changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties, inctuding

regutar cottaterat revisions. Counterparty timits are estabtished by the use of a credit risk ctassification system, which assigns each counterparty a risk rating. Risk

ratings are subject to regutar revision. The credit qual.ity review process aims to attow the Company to assess the potential loss as a resutt of the risks to which it is

exposed and take corrective actions.

40.3 Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk that the fair vatue or future cash ftows of financial instruments witt ftuctuate due to changes in market variabtes such as interest rates,

foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The Company invests surptus funds in tiquid mutuaI funds on the basis of the pre-defined selection criteria'

40.4 Liquidlty risk

Liquidity Risk arises where the Company is unabte to meet its obtigations as and when they arise. Liquidity risk may be measured at a structurat tevet and cash flow

tevet, To manage structural tiquidity tevet, the Asset Liabi(ity Management Poticy (ALM Poticy) envisages adherence to certain key ratios and gap timits in normal

business and under stressed market conditions. To monitor the short-term tiquidity on a dynamic basis over a time horizon spanning from 1 day to 6 months, the

Company estimates its short-term tiquidity profites on the basis of business projections and other commitments for planning purposes as per the format prescribed by

the RBI/ NHB. Maintaining an optimal batance sheet structure and cash ftow patterns shall be the cornerstone of the tiquidity risk management strategy (Refer Note'

50) for Assets Liabitity Management (Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabitities)).

40.5 lnterest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk which is tikety to arise due to a fundamentat duration mismatch of assets and liabitities, on account of short term lag

between disbursements and raising the matching tiabitity. Additionalty, mismatches between ftoating and fjxed assets and tiabitities are expected to enhance interest

rate risk. Containing duration mismatches and maintaining an equitable mix of fixed - floating assets and tiabitities shatt be the cornerstone of interest rate risk

management strategy.

40.6 Prepayment rlsk

Prepayment risk is the risk that the Company wit[ incur a financial loss because its customers and counterparties repay or request repayment earlier or Later than

expected, such as fixed rate mortgages when interest rates fatt.
The Company projects the impact of varying teve(s of prepayment on its net interest income. Further, it makes a distinction between the different reasons for

repayment (e.g., retocation, refinancing and renegotiation) and takes into account the effect of any prepayment Penatties.

40.7 Operational and business risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems faiture, human error, fraud or external events. When controts faiI to operate effectively, operational risks can

cause damage to reputation, have tegat or regutatory imptications, or lead to financiat toss. The Company cannot expect to etiminate alt operationat risks, but it
endeavours to manage these risks through a control framework and by monitorjng and responding to potentiat risks. Controts inctude effective segregation of duties,

access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such as the use of internal audit.

40.8 CapitalManagement

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management poucy are to ensure that the Company complies wjth regutatory capital requirements and maintains

strong credit ratings and heatthy capitat ratios in order to support its business and to maximise sharehotder value.

Being an HFC, the Company is required to maintain a minimum capital to risk weighted assets ratio ("CRAR") consisting of Tier I and Tier ll capitat of 15y. of aggregate

rjsk weighted assets, Further, the totat of Tier ll capitat cannot exceed 100% of Tier I capitaL at any point of time. The Tier'l capitat, at any point of tjme, shatt not be

tess than '10 per cent. The capital management process of the Company ensures to maintain a heatthy CMR at atl the times.

The Company maintains a capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and meeting the regutatory capital requirements which incLudes share capitat, securities

premium and other reserves attributab(e to sharehotders. The Capital is adequatety capitatize with CRAR 140.09% as at 31 March, 2025.

Nevr Dcltri
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporatlon Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

41 Fair value measurement
This note describes the fair vatue measurement of both financiat and non-financial instruments and is structured as fotlows:

41.1 Vatuation Principles
41.2 Assets and tiabitities by fair vatue hierarchy and Movements in level 3 financiat instruments measured at fair vatue
41,3 Vatuation Techniques
41.4 Fair Vatue of financiat instruments not measured at fair vatue
41.5 Vatuation methodotogies of financiaI instruments not measured at fair vatue

41.1 ValuationPrinciples

current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directty observabte or estimated using a valuation technique.

41 .2 A5set5 and liabilities by fair value hierarchy
Fair vatue of the financial instruments is ctassified in various fair vatue hierarchies based on the foltowing three tevels:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identicat assets or tiabitities.

rety as [ittte as possible on entity"specific estimates. lf significant inputs required to fair vatue an instrument are observabte, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: lnputs for the assets or tiabitities that are not based on obseryabte market data (unobseruable inputs).

inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparty.

41.2.1 Financials lnstruments
Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
FinanciaI instruments

Paruculffi
As at 3t ,{ilch 2025 ,6 at 3l nilch 202rt

FVTPL FVTOCT Amo*i5ad Cost FVTPL FVTOCT
&nortised

Co<t
Financial As5et5

Cash and cash equivatents

Bank Batance other than cash and cash equivatents
Loans

lnvestments
Other FinanciaI assets

'I,191.22

396.66

1 0.00
18,467.71

359.47

838.75

498.88

112.00
21,037.32

676.80
I otal 1 ,191.22 lY,133.64 c3a,75 22.325,OO
irnanclal Liabilrhes
Trade Payabtes

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
0ther financiat liabitities
Lease Liabitity

11.42

581.19
350.86

5.40
1,100.76

757.89
416.26

I otal 945,4t 2.28O.31

Fair value hierarchy

underneath the tabte.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 3I ltarch 2024
Leval-3 Levdl-l Lavel- 2 Level-3

Financial Assets

lnvestment in Mutual Fund

Securitv ReceiDts -RARC

909.68

281.54

200.89

637.86

Total 909.68 281.54 200.89 637.86
Financial Liabititie5
Total

the best estimate of fair value,

hierarchy. There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

Valuation Technique5

Non-current assets and tiabilities held for sale

treated as non-current assets/liabilities held for sale.

fair value measurements

41.3

41 4 Fair yalue of financial in5truments not measured at fair valuc

not include the fair vatues of non-financiat assets and non-financial tiabitities.

Particulars A3 at ll i,larch zo25 Ar at 3t Ma.ch 2024
Carrvint amount Lovel-3 Falr Value Catlvint amoun!

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank Batance other than cash and cash equiva(ents

lnvestment

Loans

0ther Financial assets

396.66

1 0.00

18,467.71

359.47

396.66

1 0.00

18,467.71

359.47

498.88

117.00

21 ,037.32
676.80

498.88

112.00

21 ,037.32
676.80

Total I 9,233.84 r 9,233.84 22.t23.OO 22,t25,OO
Financial Li.bilitles
Trade Payabtes

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Other financiat tiabitities
Lease Liabitity

11.42

581.19

350.86

1 1.42

581.19

350.86

5.40

1,1O0.76

757.89

416.26

5.40

1,100.76

757.89

416.26
I otal 943.47 94!-47 2,Zag.t1 z.zao.31

of financial instruments not measured at fair value
and assumptions used to determine fair vatues for the above financiat instruments which are not recorded and measured at fair value in the Company's financial

values were catculated for disclosure purposes onty.
and liabitities

financial tiabi{ities that have a short-term maturity (tess than twelve months), the carrying amounts, which are net of impairment, are a reasonabte approximation of their
include: cash and batances, Trade receivabtes, Contract assets, batances other than cash and cash equivatents, trade payabtes and contract liabitity without a specific

N[ll.,/ D{-Ll{l

maturity. Such

Short-term

41.5

have been ctassified as Levet 3 on the basis that no adjustments have been made to the balances in the batance sheet.



Religare Housing Devetopment Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

42 Leases

IND AS 116: Details ofassets taken on lease are as under:
The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

assets

- Lease Liability -

A3 at 31 ,{arch 2025 As at 31 ,vlarch 2024

Particulars Asset on Lease -

Land & Buildlng
Aset on Lease-

Vehlcles
Total Asset on Lease -

Land & Building
Asset on Lease-

Vehlcles
Total

Beginning of the year

Additions/ (Terminations) (Net)

Closing of the year
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of the year

Charge during the financiat year
Less: lncome from subleasing right-of-use asset

Ctosing of the year
Carrying value
Beginning of the year
Closing of the year

630.05

(6.82].

623.23

322.23

371 .17
301.00

258.88

63.35

322.23

630.05
(6.82)

623.23

258.88

63.35

371.17
301.00

577.43

52.62
630.05

258.88

161.18
97.70

416.25
371.17

(8.41 )

3.73

8.41

12.14

112.14]|

258.88

589.57

40.48
630.05

169.59

89.29

419.98
371.17

Partlculars

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Asset on Lease -

Land & Bullding
Asset on Lease-

Vehicles
Total Asset on Lease

Land & Bullding
Asset on Lease-

Vehlcles
Total

Current
Non Current

94.64
256.22

94.64

256.22
108.76
307.50

108.76
307.50

Total t50.a6 ?5(1 a6 416.26 116.26

Amounts in the 'Profit and Loss Statement':
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 lilarch 2024

Particulars Asset on Lease -

Land & Brdlding
Asset on Lease-

Vehlcles
Total Asset on Lease -

Land & Building
Asset on Lease-

Vehicles
Total

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (Refer Note 15)

Add: Interest Expense (inctuded in Finance Cost) (Refer Note 3l)
Add: Exoense retatins to short-term leases (Refer Note ]61

123.57

42.35
107.02

123.57

42.35
107.02

172.71

47.19
83.62

1.37
0.37

124.08

47.51
83.62

Total 27) -9a )77 94 ?17 1) 1.69 255.21

- Total Cash outflow the

-the Company has leases liabilities which fall due as follows

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Asset on Lease - Asset on Lease-

Vehlcles
Total Asset on Lease -

Land & Bulldlne
Asset on Lease-

Vehicles
Total

. Payments for the principal portion of the lease tiabitity (Financing

Activities)

. Payments for the interest portion of the lease tiabitity (Financing

Activities)

. Short-term lease payments, payments for teases of low-vatue assets
and variabte tease payments not inctuded in the measurement of the
tease tiabitity (Operating Activities)

1 1 1.68

42,35

107.02

111.68

42.35

107.02

99.70

47.19

83.62

6.82

0.32

106.52

47.51

83.62

Partlculars
As at 31 ldarch 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Asset on Lease -

Land & Building
Asset on Lease-

Vehlcles
Total Asset on Lease -

Land & Building
Asset on Lease-

Vehicles
Total

Maturity Analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Within 1 Year

1 Year to 2 Years
2 Years to 3 Years
I Years to 4 Years

4 Years to 5 Years

After 5 Years
Total undiscounted tease liabilities
lmpact of discountinq

1 28.35
93.98

73.82

64.1 I
56.41

28.42

445.16

94.30

128.35

93,98
73.82

64.18
56.41

28.4?
445.16

94.30

148.79
1 20,01

75.88

57.87
55.63

81 .12
s 39.32
123.06

148.79

1 20.01
75.88

57.87
s5.63

81.12
539.3 2

123.06
Lease Liablllties lncluded ln the batance sheet 350.E6 350.85 416-26 416.f6

New Delhi
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR [acs, unless otherwise stated)

43 Non-current assets and disposal Company's held for sale

During the financial year 2024-25, The Company has not sold any assets acquired in satisfaction of debts. (However, during the
previous financia[ year 2023'24, The Company had so(d assets acquired in satisfaction of debts at total consideration of Rs. 205.68
lacs. The principal amount outstanding in respect of these debts was Rs. 168.72 [acs, the excess of Rs. 36.96 lacs was booked
towards outstanding overdue interest, other charges and interest from the date of settlement titt the disposal of asset on sale of
Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts. Further, assets acquired in satisfaction of debts during the year amount to Rs. Ni[ (31 March
2024: Rs. Nit)).

Particulars As at
3'l March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Property
Assets held for sale

Opening Balance

Sotd

Written off

87.76 256.48
(168.72)

Ctosing 61.t6 6t. t6

44 Transfer of financial assets
Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety but where the Company has continuing involvement

4E

46

(1) During the Financial year2023-24, the Company had transferred financial assets aggregating to INR 2047.'12 lacs (total poot size:
INR 2274.58 [acs) comprising Home Loan and Loan Against Property to DMI Housing Finance Private Ltd (DMl) under assignment
transaction where DMI witt be entitted to receive: (i) 90% of the principal cottections from the ldentified PooU (ii) interest calcutated
on the principal entitlement of the DMI based on the agreed ftoating yietd of 3 (Three) Month 5Bl MCLR ptus agreed spread subject to
the minimum of ftoor rate, payable out of the interest cottect'ions from the ldentified Poot and (iii) 90% of the miscetlaneous charges
from the ldentified Poot. RHDFCL witt be entitted to receive: (i) 10% of the principat collections from the ldentified Poot; (ii) batance
interest cottections over and above DMI's agreed floating yietd (known as excess interest spread) from the ldentified Poot; and (iii)
10% of the miscellaneous charges from the ldentified Poot.

(2) During the Financial year 2023'24, the Company had transferred financial assets amounting to INR 1143,17 lacs (totat pool size:
INR 1270.19 tacs) comprising Home Loan and Loan Against Property to Ambit Finvest Private Ltd (Ambit) under assignment
transaction where Ambit witl. be entitled to receive: (i) 90% of the principal coltections from the ldentified Poot; (ii) interest
catculated on the principal entittement of Ambit based on the agreed fixed yietd, payabte out of the interest cottections from the
ldentified Poo[ and (iii) 90% of the misceltaneous charges from the ldentified Poot. RHDFCL will be entitted to receive: (i) 10% of the
principal collections from the ldentified Poot; (ii) batance interest cottections over and above Ambit's agreed fixed yietd (known as

excess interest spread) from the ldentified Pool; and (iii) 10% of the misceltaneous charges from the ldentified Poot.

(3) As per RBI Master Directions - Reserve Bank of lndia (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions ("MD-TLE'), 2021 dated September
24,2021 (updated as on December 28, 2023), RBI has advised for provisioning in respect of investment in Security Receipt (SRs).

Accordingly, the company is carrying an investment value of Rs 281.54 Lacs (Net of provisions of Rs.309.41 Lacs on Rs. 590.95 Lacs)

as on March 31,2025 in respect of two separate transactions with RARC Trust in terms of ctause 77A of the aforesaid MD-TLE.
Further, balance provision of Rs.'184.91 takhs shatt be provided in the books of accounts over the remaining period, as per applicabte
guidetines.

The Company has derecognized the NPA [oan receivables and has recognized SRs as investments in the books of accounts. The
Company sha[[ recognize profit/loss on the SRs based on the evaluation by independent rating agency as stipulated under RBI

Regutations.

scPtrql

The Company maintains an activety managed capitat base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capita[ adequacy
requirements prescribed in "Non-Banking Financial Company- Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,2Q2l'dated 17th
February, 2021". The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regutat'ions issued by
Reserve Bank of lndia (" RBl") Company has cornplied in futt with a[[ its externatty imposed capitat requirements over the reported
period.

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management poticy are to ensure that the Company complies with externalty
imposed capital requirements and maintains strong and heatthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise

Nevu Delhi
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

47
47.'l

Retirement Benefits Plan
Defined Contribution Plan

statement of Profit and Loss account as incurred.

47.2 Defined Benefits plan

the investment strategy.

Trustees aim to keep annual contributions re(ativety stable at a level such that no plan deficits (based on vatuation performed) witt arise.

for the respective plans:

(A)

Partlculffi

at u24
Detlned
benetlts
obligadon

Falr value of
plan asFtj

Beneflts llablllty Detined
bemfft!
cbllgatlon

Falr value of
plan ass€tg

Benefits
llablllty

273.60
32.95

17.94
(27.14\

1 3.10

5.86

242.76

16.88

(27.-'14)

2.06

30.84

30.84

32.95

1.06

12.06l
1 3.10

5.86
(30.84)

255.64
33,50
17.O8

(30.02)

17.38

(1e.e8)

216.34

'15.69

(30.02)

1.45

39.30

33.50

1.39

(1.4s)
1 7.38

(1 e.e8)
(39.30)

'6ent value ot DBO / Fair value of plan 6sets at the end of the year Jl6.Jt 265-4lJ 50,91 z, t,nu LqL f6 JU.g4

PartlculaE

asat 31 l,arch zoz4
Defined
benefft3
obligation

E€nefits
llablllty

Dafined b€neflts
obngatlon

Beneffts
liabillty

Present value of DBO at the beginning of the year
Current 5ervice Cost
Net interest expense
Benefits / Settlement paid
lmmediate recosnition of (eains)/losses - other lonq term emolovee benefit plans

Actuariat (gain) / loss - demographic assumptions
Actuariat (gain) / loss - financial assumptions
Actuarial (gain) / loss - experience

65.88
28.82

3.48
(30.86)

1.32

6.25

65.88
28.82

3.48
(30.86)

1.32

62.08

29.15

2.95
(41.0s)

(4.56)
17.31

62.08
29.15

2.95
(41.05)

(4.s6)
17.31

74.49 O}.UU 6t.6U

(8) of Plan asset as of total asset

current cost net expense year expenses tn and compensated absences expenses" . The remeasurements
of the net defined benefit tiabitity are included in Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in Statement of change in Equity.

in the deflned benefit obligation and fair value of assets

Exp€ct€d payment for future yea6 Gratuitv

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 3t ttarch 2025 31 ilarch 2024
Within the next 12 months (next annuat reporting period)
Between2and5years
Between 5 and 10 vears

6U.1 6

243.90
232.46

713.65

206.08

B.4a
69.74

41.53

22.22

66.43

39.74
fotal expected Daynents )44.f2 4/9.50 134,r5 124-

(c)

lovstments quoted ln actlve markets; 3t l,tarcl ZOZ5 31 Atarch ZO24

Quoted equity investments
Manufacturing and consumer products sector
Telecom sector
Cash and cash equivalents
Unquoted investments;
Bonds issued by lndia Government
Schemes of lnsurance - Conventionat Products 100.0091 100.00?{

Total 100,00t( 100.00t6

New Delhi
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Religare Housing Development Flnance Corporation Limited
Notes formjng part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

(D) Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets (Gratuity)

Partlcularg 3l lilarch 2025 31 l arch 2024
Fair vatue of Ptan Asset at the beginning of the Year
Acquisition Adjustment
lnterest income on Plan Asset
Return on Ptan Assets greater / lesser than discount rate
Emptoyer Contributions
Benefits Paid

242.76

16.88

2.06
30.84

(27.141

t16,34

15.69

1.45

39.30
(30.02)

Fair Value ot Plan Asset at the end of the Ye* 26r.40 242.76

tE) ActuarialAslumptions

Financial

lmpact on d€tined beneflts obllgations Grat!ltv I Leave Encashment
3l lrlarch 2025 | 31 lrlarch 20241 31 ttrdtch 2025 | !1 llarch 2024

Discount Rate

Salary Escatation

6.40%1 6.90"^1 6.40%l

s.oo%l 5.ooz"l s.oo%l

6.90%

5.0V/i

Assumption

lmpact on defined benellts obligatlons GratuiW L€ave Encashnent
ll ilarch 2025 Xl ,idrcl^2OZ4 31 March 2021 31 l,tarch 2024

Mortality rate
lndian Assured

Lives Mortality
(2006-08) uu.

lndian Assured

Lives Mortatity
(2006-08) utt.

lndian Assured

Lives Mortality
(2006-08) utt.

lndian Assured

Lives Mortality
(2006-08) utt.

Withdrawat Rate 20.00% 20.00% 20.0v/" 20.OO"t

Sensitivitv Analvsis

obtigation presented above. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of sensitivity anatysis from previous year.

tmpact on detined beneffts obligations
31 lrlarch 2025 31 ,ilarch 2024 JI trarcn zuz5 t1 Mfch 2024

Discount Rate
lncrease by 0.5%

Decrease by 0.5%

Future salary increases
lncrease by 0,5%

Decrease by 0,5%

(5.86)
6.09

6.16
(s.98)

(5.05)
5.24

5.33
(5.1 8)

(1.32)
1.37

1.39
(1.35)

(1 .1 s)

1.20

1.22

{'1.18)

Risk Analvsis

as fotlows

Salarv Growth Rate

the ptan participants witt increase the ptan s liabitity.
Life expectancv/ Lonsevitv risks

participants witt increase the plan's tiability.
lnterest rate risks

The defined benefit obliSation uses a discount rate based on government bonds. lf bonds yields fatt , the defined benefit obligation witt tend to increase.
lnflation risk
Higher than expected increases in salary witl increase the defined benefit obligation

New Delhi
NEIV DELHI
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

48 Revenue from contract with customers

Betow is the disaggregation of the company revenue from contracts with customers and reconciliation to profit and loss account

Partlculars
Year ended 31 March 2025

Housing Non-Housing Totat
Type of Services or service

lnterest lncome

Foreclosure Charges

Miscettaneous lncome including Bounce Charges
Net Gain on Fair Vatue Changes

Net qain on de-recognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category

2,015.99
8.82

33.63

992.36

8.37
65.76
41.15

3,008.35
17.19

99.39
4't.15

Total revenue from customers 2,058.44 1 ,147.64 3,1 66.06

Geographical markets
lndia
Outside lndia

2,058.44 1,107.64 3,1 66.08

Total revenue from customers 2,Q56.44 1 ,"lu/.64 J,166.06

Particulars Year ended 31 i{arch 2024
Housing Non-Housing Totat

Type of Services or service

lnterest lncome
Forectosure Charges

Miscetlaneous lncome inctudes Bounce Charges

Net Gain on Fair Value Changes

Net eain on de-recoenition of financial instruments under amortised cost catesorv

2,442.35
8.62

49.41

167.95

1,340.24
9.97

104.63

16.84
162.97

3,782.59
18.59

154.04

16.84
330.92

Total revenue from customers 2,668.33 1,634.65 4,3Q2.98

Geographical markets
lndia
Outside lndia

2,668.33 1,634.65 4,302.98

Total revenue from customers 2,668.33 1,634.65 4,3O7^9E

49 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calcutated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity share holders of Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Dil,uted EPS is catculated by dividing the net profit attributabte to equity share holders of Company (after adjusting for interest on the convertible
preference shares and interest on the convertibte bond, in each case, net of tax) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year ptus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of att the ditutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

The fottowing table shows the income and shares data used in the basic and dituted EPS calcutations:

Continuing operations:
Particulars Year ended

31 March 2025
Year ended

31 itarch 2024

Net profit from continued operation attributabte to equity share holders

Net profit from continuing operation attributable to ordinary equity share holders adjusted for the effect of
dilution

(1,267.22) 15,45

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share 39,998,000 39,998,000

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2O25

Year ended
31 March 2024

Earnings per share
Equity shareholders for the year:

Basic earnings per share
Di tuted e4niagapgr share

(3
(3

1

1

7)
7)

0.04
0.04

NEW DELHI

New Delhi
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

50 Maturity analysis of assets and liabitities
The tabte betow shows an analysis of assets and liabilities anatysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or
settled. With regard to loans and advances to customers, the Company uses the same basis of expected repayment behaviour as

used for estimating the ElR.

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Within 12
months

After 12
months

Total
Within 12

months
After 12

months
Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivatents
Bank Batance other than cash and cash

equivatents

Loans

lnvestments
Other FinanciaI assets

Non-financial Assets

Current Tax assets (Net)
Deferred tax Assets (Net)

Property, Ptant and Equipment
lntangible assets under devetopment
Other Intangible assets
Right-of-use - Asset

Other non-financia[ assets

396.66

10.00

1,452.15

1 ,149.56
172.48

4.17

565. 1 3

17,015.56

41.66
186.99

43.51

223.20

24.47
301.00

396.66

10.00

18,467.71

1,191 .22
359.47

4.17

43.5'l
223.20
24.47

301.00

565. 1 3

498.88

112.00

1,532.71

585.61

213.75

191.68

435.92

19,504.61

253.14

463.05

49.99

1 91 .33
1.16

371.17
1.08

498.88

1 12.00

21,037.32
838.75
676.80

191.68

49.99
1 91 .33

1.16

371.17
437.00

I otal Assets 3,750.1 5 17,836.39 21,586,54 3,570.55 20,835.53 24,406.08

LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables

(i) totat outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and smatl enterprises

(ii) totat outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and sma[[
enterprises

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Other financiat tiabitities
Lease Liability

Non-Financial Liabilities
Deferred tax tiabitities (Net)
Provisions

Other non-financiaI tiabitities

6.12

s.30

580.26
94.64

73.67
97.92

0.93

256.22

52.13

6.17

5.30

581 .1 9

350.86

1 25.80
97.92

4.42

5.40

1,100.76

756.96
108.76

52.33
113.86

0.93
307.50

207.30

44.39

4.42

5.40

1,100.76
757.89

416.76

207.30
96.72

113.86
lotal llabilities 857.91 309.28 1,167.19 2,"t42.49 560.12 2,702.61

Nef 2o,419,35 21 ,7O3.47

51 Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged in the business of providing loan for purchase , Construction , repair and renovation etc., of houses /
ftat to individual and corporate bodies and has its operation with in lndia. There being only one 'business segment' and
'geographical segment'the segment information is not provided.

52 Audit Trail
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued a notification (Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2021) which is

from 1 st Apri[ 2023, states that every company which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account
the accounting software where there is a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, and

an edit log of each change made to books of account along with the date when such c were made and
audit trail cannot be disabted. The Company has used an accounting software its books of
feature of recording audit trail (edit tog) facitity and the same has operated

recorded in the software and the audit trail has been preserved by thelevant

rther

NEW DELHI

as per t
record retention
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes formlng part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Disclosures:
Related Party Type Nature of Relationshlp Name of the Related Party

Parent Company

a(ii) Subsidiaries/Step down Associates/ Joint Ventures of
Uttimate Parent Company

lnsurance Web Aggregator Private Limited [Retigare Enterprises
(REL) has acquired 100% stake of MIC lnsurance Web Aggregator Private
(MlC) on December 08, 2023, accordingty, MIC has become a whotty

Limited
Credit Advisor Pvt Limited
GtobaI Asset

Limited with REL w.e.f June
Advisors Limited with REL w.e.f June

Markets

Pte Limited
Limited

Markets Ltd.
Markets

Retigare Securities (P [Merged BTCL w.e.f August 21,

Limited
Research Limited

lnvestment Management Private Limited (Joint Venture of REL; REL

Bartteet And Company Private Addition since Bartleet
Limited merged with BCPL (intimation received on August 21, 2023)l
to amalgamation of Bartteet Transcapital Limited (BTCL),thotding 5096 share
Bartteet Religare Securities (Pvt.) Limited] with Bartteet & Company (Pvt)
(BCPL), Bartleet ReLigare Securities (Pvt.) Ltd, be directty hetd by BCPL,

Transcapitat Limited (hotds 5096 of voting power in Bartteet
down

Eartteet Weatth Management (Private) Limited (formerty Retigare

B Finmart Private [Cotlectivety holding more than 20"; voting
202

Associates Private Limited lcottectivety holding more than 2096 voting
in REL w-e-

Enterprises Private Limited more than 20i6

Mitky lnvestment and Trading Company lcottectivety holding more than
in REL w.e.f

(b) Associates and Joint Ventures of the Retigare Housing Retigare Care Foundation IRHDFCL hold 24.5%]

(c) lndividuals owning directly or interest in voting power Nil
them controt or significant influence and their Retatives

Executr've Non lndependent Director of the Company w.e,f., September 21

Non-Executive Director

Director (ceased to be NonAshok Mehta . Non'Executive Non-

Dr. Rashmi Satuja- Non-Executive Chairperson & Non.Executive Non-

l(Designated as Non - Executive Chairperson) - Retigare Finvest Limited
06, 2024 | (ceased to be Non - Executive Chairperson in RFL w.e.

25, 2025 ) (ceased to be Chairperson cum Managing Director w.e.
05,2024) (ceased to be Non-Executive Chairperson of RHDFCL w.e.
05,2024)l

Non-Executive lndependent Director I Cease to beMr. Hamid

Director -

in RH

Non Executive
Dr, Ravindra Kumar Srivastava - Non Executive lndependent Director
w.e.f. 05 September 2024 and Cease to be Director w.e.f., March 01, 2025

R\

(d)
I 
Persons who are the members of the Key Management Personnet' of
the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity

i'lLVl UlLt-ll

CFO pursuant to tendering of his resignation w.e.f. Novembe|I2, 20241

Aggaruat lcroup CFO] - Retigare Enterprises Limited lceased to

New Delhi



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

53 Related Dlsclosures:

* lnctuding any director (Executive/non Executive Director)

of Party

Prakash Chandra Jejani - Chief Financiat Officer - Retigare

Limited
l'is. Preeti Madan - lndependent Director - Religare Enterprises

Anit Prasad Verma - Non- Executive lndependent Director

Executive lndependent - Retigare Enterprises Limited (appointed w.e.f. 21

Shrikant Shreeniwas Somani - Additionat Director (Appointed as

as NonRajender
lndependent - Re{igare Enterprises Limited (appointed w.e.f. 21 February

(e)

significant influence and with whom transactions have taken

over any person in (c) or (d) is abte to

Benefits Ptans Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited Group

New Delhi

MEH
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2OZ5
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

53.1 Following transactions were carried out with related parties at Arm's Length Basis and in the ordinary course of business during the year
ended l,larch 31, 2025

9.No. Nature of Transactions Name of the Related Party
RP

Tme
Year Ended

31 ilrrch 2025
Year Ended

tl ttrrch airit

I OTHER RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS

Group lnsurance Premium Paid

Care Health lnsurance Limited
(Former(y known as Religare Heatth
lnsurance ComDanv Ltd )

a(ii) 84.12 72.52

Group lnsurance Premlun Paid Total 44.12 72,52

Group lnsurance Premium Received Eack

Care Heatth lnsurance Limited
(Formerty known as Religare Heatth
lnsurance ComDanv Ltd )

a(ii)
4.67 5.38

rouD lnsurance Premium R€celved Back Totel 4.67 5.38

Short Term Loan Taken

Retieare EnterDrises Limited ali) I,U00.00
Reticare Commodities Limited a(ii ) 500.00

Short Term L@n Taken Total t,5qr,q,

Short Term Loan Taken Paid

Retiaare EnterDrises Limited a(i) i,000.00 1,1 00.00
Retieare Commodities Limited afii) 500.00

Short Tam l-oan Taken Paid Total 1.0@.oo t,6qr.(x,

Securitv DeDosits Received

Reugare Finvest Limited a(i) 0.93
ecurltv Deooslts Recelved Total 0,93

Securitv DeDosits Paid

Retieare Brokine Limited aliil 't 50 0.40
Securlty DeDoslts Pald Total 1,50 o.40

Security Deposits Received back

Retigare Finvest Limited a(i ) o.16
Securltv DeDosits Recelved back 0.16

lnterest Paid on Short Term Loan

Relieare EnterDrises Limited ali ) 60.37 11R 4A

Retieare Commodities Limited aliil 0.15
lnterest Paid on Short Term Lan Total 50.32 I 18.63

Purchase of Fixed Asset

Reliqare Finvest Limited a(i) o.77 3- 11

Pu.chase of Fixed Asset Total o.77 3.1 I

Pavments made bv RHDFCL on behalf of RFL

Retiqare Finvest Limited ali) 257.80
Payments made by RHDFCL on behalf of RFL Total 257.40

2 INCOME#

Expense Reimbursement By other Companies

Retieare Finvest Limited a(i) 10.33 13.44
Expense Reimbursement By other Companies Total 10.33 1J.44

3 EXPENSE#

Remuneration to Key Manaqerial Personnel
Satary and remuneration Kev Manaeeriat Personnel (d) 742.50 262.29
Sittinc Fee to Directors Mr, Matav Kumar Sinha (d) 11 00 10.50

Mr. Hamid Ahmed (d) 10.50 10.50
Mr. Ravindra Kumar Srivastava (dt 1.00
Mr. Praveen Kumar TriDathi {d) 4.00 4.50

271,(m 247,79Rmuneration to Key ldanagerial Personnel Total

Remuneration to Key ManageriaI Personnet (ESOP

perquisite vatue)
Key Manageriat Personnet

(d)
256.68

Remuneration to Key Llanagerial Personnel (ESOP

pergutsite value) Total
256.68

Post Emptoyment Benefits Ptans

Religare Housing Devetopment Finance
Corporation Limited Group Gratuity t 30.84 39.30

rost EmDlovment Benefits Plans Total 30,E4 39.30

Atlocation of Expenses bv other ComDanv
Retrqare tnterpnses Limited ali) 86.62 6U.50

Fi-l\ Alltration of ExDenses Bv other ComDanv Total E6.62 60.50

New Delhi
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporatlon Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 ,rtarch 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwlse stated)

53.1 Following transactions were carried out with related parties at Arm's Length Basis and in the ordinary course of business during the year
ended I'tarch 31, 2025

800 (ESOPS) 31, 2025 to the Key Management Personnel of the Company.

53.2

.. 2,75,000 shares granted titl March'31, 2025 to the emptoyees of Company by the Retigare Finvest Limited and out of this NIL ESOPS Granted
to Key Management personnet of the Company.

No. of Options Granted and Live is 740,000 issued to the employees of Company by the Retigare Enterprises Limited (Uttimate Hotding
Company) and out of this 5,00,000 ESOPS (Live) Granted to Key Management personnet of the Company.

# lncome and Expenses do not inctude appticabte lndirect taxes
Key Management Personnel Compensation as per lnd AS-24

ParticulaE Year Ended
3l ,'{erdh 2O2t

Year Ended
t1 tlerch 7.J21

Short Tem Employee Benefits
Post -emptoyment benefits
Long term emptoyee Benefits
Termination Benefits
Emptoyee Share based payments (refer note 25)*

z3l.6a
1 0.82

15I.A6
4.43

Total 242.50 26Z..29

tn

not to year

3.No. Nature of Translctlons Namo of tho Relatad Party
RP

Twe
Ysr Ended

3l ,ilarch 2025
Year End€d

lt ilerch 2024

lnterest ExDense on lnter aomorate Deborit
Reticare Enterorises Limited a(i ) 56.10 134.26

Relieare Commodities I imited a(ii) o.17
nteEt Ebense dn lhiar Cdmoreta Dehdqlt T6tal 55.tO 134.4t

ExDense Reimbursement to other ComDanies

Retigare linvest Limited a(i) 257.47 117.91

Retiqare Enterorises Limited ali) 17.34 20.58

Retigare Brol(ing Limited a{ii) 13.73 1.50

ExDense nelmbursement to othor ComDanles Total 28t.04 t39.9t

4 Balnce Outstandln!

Receivables
Securitv DeDosit Receivable

Retigare tsrol(ing Limited a(ii ) 1.90 o-J9
gecurltv DeDoslt Receivable Total 1.90 o.39

Other Receivables

Care Health lnsurance Limited

(Formerly known as Religare Health

lnsurance Cdmoenv I fd I

a(ii)

6.73 4.41

Relisare EnterDrises Limited a{i ) 4.26
Other Recelvables Total lU.rt 4.11

Pavables
Securitv DeDosit Pavable

Retieare Finvest Limited a(i) 0.93 0.93

Secudw Deo6lt Pavable Total (r.t, 0.93

Pavabtes
lnter Coroorate DeDosit Pavable lincludino lnterestl

Retiqare t nterpnses Limited a(i ) 1,009.E4

lnter Corporate Depogit Payabte (lncludlng lnterest)
fTottl) l.(x)9.8/t

0ther Pavabtes
Relicare Finvest Limited a{i} I 46. JU

Retiqare Lnterpnses Limited a(i) 0.19
Retigare tsrol(ing Limited alii) 't.69 1-09

Other Prvables Totel 141 -99 26.lr5

Nlelv Deliti
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

54 Other Notes

Additionat disctosures required in terms of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

RB72O2O-21t73|DOR.FtN.HFC.CC.No.120t03.10.13612020-21 dated 17 February,2021 issued by RBl, as amended from time to time.

1 Capltat

Partlcularr As at
3t March 2025

As at
3l March 2O24

(i) CRAR (%)

(ii) CRAR - Tier I Capitat (%)

(iii) CRAR - Tier ll Capitat (%)

(iv) Amount of Subordinated Debt raised as Tier-ll capitat
(v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt lnstruments

't40.o9%

139.63%

0.46%

't t4.J0Yo

133.82%

0.48%

2 Reserve Fund u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987

Partlcularg As at
31 March 2025

As at
3t March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of lncome Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the

purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

387.55

2,663.28
383.75

2,663.28

c) Total 3,O5O.91 J,g4 t.uJ
Additlon / Appropriation / wlthdrawal during the year
Add:

a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, '1987/Regrouping

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of lncome Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the
purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Less:

a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

b) Amount withdrawn from the Speciat Reserve u/s 35(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into
account which has been taken into account for the purpose of provision uls 29C of the NHB Act,
1987

Balance at the end of the year

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

. . Amount of speciat reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of lncome Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for theD) 
purposes of Statutory Reserve under section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

21.78

409.43

2,663.28

3.90

387.55

2,663.28

c) Total J,U r2, tt 3,O50.93

3 lnvestments

PaftlculNrs A5 at
31 March 2025

As at
31 llarch 2O24

3.1
(i)

(ii)

(iii )

3.2
(i)
(ii )
(iii )
(iv)

Value of lnvestments
Gross vatue of lnvestments"

(a) ln lndia
(b) Outside lndia

Provision for depreciation
(a) ln lndia
(b) Outside lndia

Net vatue of lnvestments
(a) ln lndia
(b) Outside lndia

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
Opening batance

Add: Provisions made during the year

Less: Write"offl Written-back of excess provisions during the year

Ctosinq batance

1 ,500.63

309.41

1,191.22

401 .40

(91.99)

309.41

1,240.15

401.40

838.75

690.30

(288.90)
401.40

as per

Nevr Delhi

NEwoetsr



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

4 Derivatives

4.1 Forward Rate Agreement (FM)/lnterest Rate Swap (lRS)

(i) Nature and terms of the swaps inctuding information on credit and market risk - Ni[
(ii) Accounting poticies adopted for recording the swaps - Not appticabte
$ Examptes of concentration coutd be exposures to particular industries or swaps with highly geared companies.
@ lf the swaps are linked to specific assets, tiabitities, or commitments, the fair vatue would be the estimated amount that the HFC woutd

receive or pay to terminate the swap agreements as on the balance sheet date.

4.2 Exchange Traded lnterest Rate (lR) Derivative

4.3

Qualitative Disclosure
As the Company has not entered into derivative transactions during current year and previous year, there is no risk exposure in
derivatives. Accordingty, Quatitative Disctosure is not applicabte.

a) The structure and organization for management of risk in derivatives trading-Not appticabte
b) The scope and nature of risk measurement, risk reporting and risk monitoring systems -Not applicabte
c) Poticies for hedging and/ or mitigating risk and strategies and processes for monitoring the continuing effectiveness of hedges/

mitigates-Not appticabte

d) Accounting poticy for recording hedge and non-hedge transactions; recognition of income, premiums and discounts; vatuation of
outstanding contracts; provisioning, cottateral and credit risk mitigation. - Not appticab[e

B QuantitativeDlsclosure

Note:

on

A

Partlculars As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

(i) The notional principat of swap agreements
(ii) Losses which woutd be incurred if counterparties faited to futfitt their obtigations under the

agreements

(iii) Coltaterat required by the HFC upon entering into swaps
(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps 5
(v) The fair vatue of the swap book @

Partlculars As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March. 2424

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded lR derivatives undertaken during the year (instrument
wise)

(a)

(b)

(c)
(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded lR derivatives outstanding as on 31st March 2025/31st

March 2024 (instrument wise)

(a)

(b)
(c)

(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded lR derivatives outstanding and not "highty effective"
(instrument wise)
(a)

(b)

(c)
(iv) Marked-to-market vatue of exchange traded lR derivatives outstanding and not "highty effective"

(instrument wise)
(a)

(b)
(c)

Partlculars
Curroncy Derivatives lntere3t Rate DeriYatives

(i)
(ii)

Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
Marked to Market Positions [1]
(a) Asset 1*1

(b) Liabitity (-)
Credit Exposure [2]
Unhedeed Exoosures

(iii )
(iv)

New Delhi
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

55 Assets Liability Management (Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities)

Total

18,467.71

1,191 .22

Over 5 years

12,214.03

Over 3 to 5
vears

2,379.72

Over 1 year to 3
yeaffi

2,421 .91

41-66

Over 6 rnonths
to I vear

670.88
159.57

Over 3 months
to 6 months

323.73
53.19

Over 2 months
uoto 3 months

95.06
27.12

Over one month
uoto 2 months

94.76

l5 days to 30/31
davs

32.07
909.68

8to14
davs

181.44

1 dayto 7
davs

54.21

Particulars

As at
31 March 2O25
Liabilities
Deposits
Borrowings from Bank/Others
Market Borrowing
Foreign Currency Liabitities
Assets*
Advances**
lnvestments
Foreign Currency Assets

lncome
**Net of Provision for Standard and Non-Performing Assets (NpA)

New Delhi NEVi D:LHI



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

56 Exposure

56.'l Exposure to Real Estate Sector

.TotaI Exposure principat & interest accrued net of unamortised processing fee.

56.2 Exposure to Capital Market

56.3 Details of financing of parent company products
No product of its parent company has been financed by the Company during the current and previous year.

56.4 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / croup Borrower Limit (GBL)exceeded by the HFC

There has been no breach of singte Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBt) by the Company during the current year

56.5 [1p63tl1s 1e group companies engaged in real estate business (refer to Paragraph 2'1 of RBI HFC directlons)

S.No. Partlcular As at
31 ,{arch 2025

As at
3t ldarch 2024

Amount ln
Lac fund

Amdnt ln Lac % of owned
lund

(i) Exposure to anv sjnete entitv in a srouo ensased in real estate business
ail) Exposure to all entities in a group enqaqed in reat estate business

56.6 Unsecured Advances
Company has unsecured advances of Rs. 24.77 Lakhs (previous year: Rs. 18.56 Lakhs ) and The

Category As at
3l Atarch 2025

As at
tt Mardl 2021

a) Dir€ct Exposure
(i) ResidentialMortgages*

Lending futty secured by mortgages on residentiat property that is or witt be
occupied by the borrower or that is rented. Exposure woutd atso inctude non-fund
based (NFB) timits;

(ll) Commercial Real Estate*

Lending secured by mortgages on commercia[ rea( estates (office buitdings, retait
space, mutti-purpose commercial premises, mutti-famity resjdential. buitdings,
mutti-tenanted commerciat premises, industriat or warehouse space, hotets, tand
acquisition, devetopment and construction, etc,). Exposure woutd also inctude non
fund based (NFB) timits;

(iii) lnvestments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other Securitised exposures
(a) Residentiat
(b) Commerciat ReaI Estate

b) lndirect Exposure

Fund based and non fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and
Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

18,652.79

29.38

590.95

21,100.27

295.45

1,039.26

fotal Exp6ure to Real Estate Sector 19,273.12 22,434.98

Fartlculars A3 at
31 March 2025

As at
3l March 2O2d

(i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertibte bonds, convertible debentures and
units of equity-oriented mutuat funds the corpus of which is not exctusivety
invested in corporate debt;

(ii) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on ctean basis
to individuats forinvestment in shares (including lPOs / ESOPS), convertible bonds,
convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutuaI funds;

(iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertibte bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutuat funds are taken as primary security;

(iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the cottaterat security
of shares or convertible bonds or convertibte debentures or units of equity
oriented mutuat funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares /
convertibte bonds / convertibte debentures / units of equity oriented mutual
funds'does not futly cover the advancesi

(v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behal.f
of stockbrokers and market makers;

(vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds /
debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's
contribution to the equity of new companies jn anticipation of raising resources;

(vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity ftows / issues;
(viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the HFCS in respect of primary issue of

shares or convertibte bonds or convertibte debentures or units of equity oriented
mutuaI funds

(ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading
(x) Att exposures to Atternate lnvestment Funds

(a) Cateqory |

(a) Category ll
(a) Cateqory lll

Iolqt Exposure to Capltal Market

New Dolhi
NEU/ DELHI
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Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

57 Miscellaneous

57.1 Registration obtained from other financial sector regutators
There are no registration/ License/ authorization obtained from other financial sector regutators during the current and previous Financial year

57.2 Group Structure
Refer note number 62

57,3 Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year

Note 'l On 25th Aprit 2025, ICRA upgraded long-term rating to ICRA]BBB- (Outtook: Stabte) from IICRAIBB (outtook: Stabte) and short-term rating to
!CRA]A3 from flCRAI A4 for the bank tines of Rs.40000 Lacs.

Note 2 On 30th September 2024, lnfomerics Ratings has assigned the rating of IVR BB8-(Outtook: Stabte) to the proposed Non-Convertibte Debentures

57.4

57,5

57.6

57.7

Management
The required disctosure shalt be covered in the Directors' Report under Management Discussion and Anatysis report.

Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies

There is no prior period transaction during the current year and atso there is no change in accounting poticies during the current year.

Revenue Recognition

There have been no instances in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending the resotution of significant uncertainties.

Consotidated Financial Statements (CFS)

As there is no subsidiary of the Company in current financial year as wetl as previous financiat year, hence as per appticab(e accounting standards on
RHDFCL, Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) is not appticable to the Company.

58 AdditionatDisctosures

58.1 Provisions and Contingencies

SL. No. lnstrument Rating Agency Rating as on
March 31, 2025

Migration of Rating
during the year, if any

Date of l,ligratlon of
Rating, if applicable

Amount

1 Long Term / Short Term
Bank Lines

ICRA Limited IICRAIBB (Stabte)/

lrcRAlA4
(Refer Note 1 )

IICRAIBB (Stabte)/

llCRAlAa; long term
rating upgraded from

IICRAIBB- (Stabte) and

short term reaffirmed

30th Aprit 2024 40,000.00

7 Long Term / Short Term
Bank Lines

ICRA Limited Withdrawn ICRAIBB (Stabte)
upgraded from [CRA]BB-

(Stabte) and [CRA]A4
Reaffirmed; ratings

withdrawn

30th Aprit 2024 80,000.00

3 Short Term Debt
Proqramme

ICRA Limited Withdrawn llCRAlAa; reaffirmed and

withdrawn
30th Aprit 2024 1 0,000.00

4 Long Term Bank

Facilities
CARE Ratings Limited ICAREI BB+ (Stabte) ICAREI BB+ (Stabte);

Reaffirmed; Outtook
revised from Nesative

05th Juty 2024 50,000.00

5 Proposed Non-

Convertible Debentures
(NCDs)

lnfomerics Vatuation and
Rating Private Limited

llvRl BBB-(Stabte)
(Refer Note 2)

1 0,000.00

Break up of'Provisions and Contingencies'shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

(i) Provisions for depreciation on lnvestment
(ii) Provision made towards lncome tax (Current Tax, Deferred Tax and Eartier Years Taxes)
(iii) Provision towards NPA

(iv) Provision for Standard Assets (with details [ike teaser toan, CRE, CRE-RH etc.)
(a) Provision for Standard Assets on teaser loan
(b) Provision for Standard Assets on CRE

(c )Provision for Standard Assets on CRE - RH

(d) Provision for Standard Assets on Housing Loans (other than CRE-RH)
(e ) Provision for Standard Assets on Non-Housing Loans

(v) Other Provision and Contingencies (with detaits)
(a) Gratuity
(b) Leave Encashment
(c) ECL on Excess lnterest Spread

--=(d.lOther Financial & Non-Financial Assets

0.30

(e1 .ee)
( 1 ee.38)
(178.41],

(6.e6)
(2.66)

34.01

39.87
(6.23)

(288.90)

4.31
(231.64)

(0.62)
(1 1.84)
(5.64)

34.89

44.85
(0. se)

Neyr Delhi

AIEVV DFLHI



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Break up of Loan & Advances and Provisions thereon
Houslng Non-Housinq

As at
31 ,{arch 2025

As at
37 llarch 2O24

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Standard Assets
a)
b)--

Sub-Standard Assets

a)
b)

Doubtful Assets - Category-l
a)
b)

Doubtful Assets - Category-ll
a)

b)
Doubtful Assets - Category-lll

a)
b)

Loss Assets
a)
b)

TotaI Outstanding Amount.
Provisions made

TotaI Outstanding Amount-
Provisions made

TotaI Outstanding Amount*
Provisions made

Totat Outstanding Amount.
Provisions made

TotaI Outstanding Amount*
Provisions made

TotaI Outstanding Amount.
Provisions made

12,410.41

41.90

237.46

35.66

104.47

26.11

101.33

40.53

99

99

14,224.31

48.68

136.49

20.50

172.83

43.22

258.54

103.42

56.79
56.79

5,616.56
22.89

118.97

17.99

79.17
28.24

21.34
8.63

13.29

13.29

6,773.47
25.43

93.38
14.03

170.66

42.67

9.52

3.93

18.29

18.29

Total
a)
b)

Total OuBtanding Amount'
Provislons made

12,857.61
148.19

14,848.96
272.61

5,849.33
91.O4

6,565.32
r04.35

Note:
1

7

The totat outstanding amount mean principal + accrued interest + other charges pertaining to loans without netting off
The of Doubtful Assets witl be as under:

amount lnc pn + accrued interest net of unamortized processing fees.
.. The provision on Standard Assets consists of Contingent Provisions against Standard Assets of Rs. 64.79 Lacs (Previous Year 74.1 1 Lacs)

3

4

58.2

58.3

58.3.1

Draw Down from Reserves

The company has not drawn down any reserve during the current and previous year

Concentration of Pubtic Deposits, Advances, Exposure and NPAs

Concentration of Pubtic Deposits (for Public Deposit taking/hotding HFCs)

The Company is Non-Deposit accepting HFC and it does not hotd any Pubtic Deposits, hence, this disctosure is not applicable

58.3.2 Concentration of Loans & Advances

The loan outstanding inctudes principal and accrued interest net of unamortized processing fees.

58.3.3 Concentration of all Exposure (inctuding off-balance sheet exposure)

The loan outstanding includes principal and accrued interest net of unamortized processing fees.

58.3,4 Concentration of NPAS

Up to one year

One to three years

More than three years

Category-l
Category-ll
Category-lll

Partlculars As at
31 l{arch 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Tota[ Deposits of twenty targest depositors
Percentage of Deposits of twenty [argest depositors to Total Deposits of the deposit taking HFC

Not Appticabte
Not App[icabte

Not Appticabte
Not Aoolicable

As at
31

857.24 198.1 1

As at
31 March 2O24

Particulars

Loans & Advances to
4.58%of Loans & Advances to twenty targest borrowers to Total Advances of

HFC

Particulars As at
31 March 2O25

As at
31 March 2024

Tota[ ExDosure to twentv larg,est borrowers / customers 870.98 1,205.61

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers to Totat Exposure of
the HFC on borrowers/customers

4.62% 5.59%

6!lParticulars hr Asat
{dl}arch 2025

Ar at
31 ,rtarch 2024

NPA \.r\ 218.59 623.12

AJEW DFIHI
New Delhi

top ten accounts on roup norms.



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

58.3.5 Sector-wise NPAS (Percentage of NPAS toTotal Advances in that sector)

58.4 Movement of NPAS

Overseas Assets

The Company does not have any overseas assets as on March 31,2025 as we[[ as March 31, 2024.

Particulars As at
31 ilarch 2025

As at
31 litarch 2024

58.6 Off-balance sheet SPVS sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms)
The Company does not have off-batance sheet SPVs sponsored which is required to be consolidated as per accounting norms.

58.5

Sl. No. Sector As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 tAarch 2O24

A.
1

2

3

4

B.

1

z

3

4

Housing Loans:
lndividuals
Builders/Project Loans

Corporates
Others (specify)
Non-Housing Loans:
lndividuats
Buitders/Project Loans

Corporates
Others (specify)

3.48%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

3.99%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

2.26%

I 00.00%

0.00%

0.00%

4.45%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

Particulars A3 at
31 tltarch 2025

A5at
31 tfiarch2O24

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Net NPA to Total Loans & advances (%)

Net NPAS to Net Advances (%)

Movement of NPAs (Gross)

a)
b)

c)

d)
of Net NPAs

a)

b)

c)
d)

Opening balance
Additions during the year
Reductions during the year
Closing balance

Movement

Opening batance
Additions during the year
Reductions during the year
Ctosing balance

Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
a) Opening balance
b) Provisions made during the year
c) Write-off/write-back of excess provisions
d) Ctosing batance

2.70%

2.73%

91 6.50
760.47

997.00

679.97

61 3.65

601.56

709.68

50s.53

302.85

1 58.90
287.31

174.44

2.87%
2.91%

1,228.05

709.67

1,021.22

91 6.50

693.56

564.56

644.47
61 3.65

534.49
145.11

376.75
302.85

Domestic Overseas
Nit Nit

New Delhi

NEW DELIII



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

59 Public disclosure on liquidity risk as on 31 March, 2025

Disclosure as required in terms of Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core lnvestment Companies vide
circutar RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102i 03.10.001 /2019-20 dated November 04,2019:

(i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings) -

Sr. No. Number of Signlficant Counterparties' Amount % of Total deposits % of Total Liabilities
1 0 Not Aooticabte 0.00%

Note : Total Liabitities has been computed as Tota[ Liabilities less Equity share capital and Other Equity

. Significant counterparty is as defined in RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.No.102 /03.10.001/7019-20 dated November 04,2019 on

Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non Banking Financial Companies and Core lnvestment Companies

(ii) Top 20 large deposits (amount in Lacs and % of total deposits) - Not Appticabte

(iii) Top 10 borrowings (amount in Lacs and % ol total borrowings)

5.No Amount % ofTotal Liabilities
1 0.00%

(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

Sr. No, Name of the instrument/Droduct' Amount % ofTotal Liabilities
I Term Loan- Secured 0.00%

7 Short Term Loan- Unsecured 0.00"4

Note : Totat Liabilities have been computed as Total Liabilities less Equity share capital and Other Equity

- Significant instrument/product is as defined in RBI Circutar RBI/2019"20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.No.102 /03.10.001 /2019-20 dated November 04,7019
on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core lnvestment Companies

(v) Stock Ratios

Sr. No. Stock Ratio
Percentage
FY2024-25

1

7

3

4

5

6

7

8

I

Commercial papers as a % of total liabitities
Commercial papers as a % of total assets

Commercial papers as a % of total pubtic funds

Non-convertibte debentures (originat maturity of less than one year) as a % of total liabilities

Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of totat assets

Non-convertibte debentures (orig'inal maturity of less than one year) as a % of total pubtic
funds

Other short-term liabiUties as a % of totat liabilities
Other short-term liabitities as a % of totat assets

Other sho!'t-term tiabitities as a % of total pubtic funds

73.51%

3.97v"

(vi) lnstitutional set-up for liquidity risk management
The Company's Board of Directors has the overalt responsibitity for the estabtishment and oversight of the risk management framework. The Board of
Directors has constituted the Risk Management Committee (RMC) and the Asset and Liabitity Management Committee (ALCo). The Board approves

strategies, poticies and procedures of the Company to manage tiquidity risk. The RMC evaluates the overatl risks faced by the Company including

tiquidity risk. The position of a[[ perceived risks is periodicatty put up to the RMC which criticatly evatuates the same and provides operational
guidance to the Company which paves way for an effective risk management so as to safeguard the interest of the Company. The ALCO is responsible

for ensuring adherence to the Asset Liabitity Management poticy parameters as we[[ as implementing the tiquidity risk management strategy of the
Company. The ALCO periodicalty reviews the management of tiquidity and interest rate risks from time to time by monitoring various aspects and

parameters relating to tiquidity risk, interest rate risk and asset/ tiabitity profite of the Company. The ALCO, accordingly, provides guidance to the
Company for taking appropriate steps and fottows thereafter for imptementation. The ALCO is responsibte for putting in ptace a comprehensive and

dynamic framework to measure, monitor and manage the tiquidity and interest rate risks of the Company and also closety integrating the ALM

New Delhi
[JEW DELHI r--U

t:

lvl

O)
u)*

framework with the business strategy of the Company



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

60 Other Notes

Balance Sheet disclosures as required under Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)

Directions,2021 dated February L7,2021" (as amended) issued bythe Reserve Bank of lndia.

Liabilities Sider
Particulars Amount Outstanding Amount Overdue

1)

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

c)

Loans and advances availed by the HFC inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not paid:
Debentures: Secured

: Unsecured
(other than falling within the meaning of Public deposits*)
Deferred Credits

Term Loans

lnter-Corporate loans and borrowings
Commercial Paper

Public Deposits

Other Loans - Advance Against Deposits
* Please see Note 1 below

2l

c)

a)

b)

Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid):
ln the form of Unsecured debentures
ln the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a

shortfall in the value of security

Other public deposits
* Please see Note 1- below

Assets Side:
Particulars Amount Outstanding

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included in (4) below]
Secured

Unsecured

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards asset financing
activities

Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
a) Financial Lease

b) Operating Lease

Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
a) Assets on hire

b) Repossessed Assets

Other loans counting towards asset financing activities
a) Loans where assets have been repossessed

i)

ii)

iii)

3)

4l

a)

b

Loans other than above

1,8,682.L7

24.77

1G

1

2

s) Break-up of lnvestments:
Current lnvestments:

Quoted:
i) Shares: a) Equity

b) Preference

ii) Debentures and Bonds

iii) Units of mutual funds

iv) Government Securities

v) Others

Unquoted:
i) Shares: a) Equity

b) Preference

ii) Debentures and Bonds

iii) Units of mutual funds

iv) Government Securities

Splhers (Security Receipts-RARC)

909.68

New Delhi



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes:

1 As defined in Paragraph 4.1.30 ofthe RBI HFC Directions.

2 Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions.

3 All notified Accounting Standards are applicable including for valuation of investments and other assets as also assets acquired in

satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect of quoted investments and break up / fa,r value / NAV in respect of unquoted
investments shall be disclosed irrespective of whether they are classified as long term or current in (5) above.

Particulars Amount Outstanding
s)

L

2

Long Term lnvestments:

Quoted:
i) Shares: a) Equity

b) Preference

ii) Debentures and Bonds

iii) Units of mutual funds

iv) Government Securities

v) Others

Unquoted:
i) Shares: a) Equity

b) Preference

ii) Debentures and Bonds

iii) Units of mutual funds

iv) Government Securities

v) Others (Secu rity Recei pts-RARC) 590.95

6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above
(Please see Note 2 below)

Category Amount Net of Provisions
Secured Unsecured Total

t

2

Related Parties

a) Subsidiaries

b) Companies in the same group

c) Other related parties

Other than related parties 18,467.7I L8,467.71,

Total t8,467.7r L8,457.7L

7l lnvestor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted) :

(Please see Note 3 below)

Category Market Value/Break-up or
fair value or NAV

Book Value
(Net of Provisionsl

I

2

Related Parties **
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group

(c) Other related parties

Other than related parties 1,500.63 1,,L91,.22

Total 1,500.63 1,L9t.22
** As per notified Accountins Standard (Please see below Note 3l

8) Other information
Particulars Amount

(i )

(i i)

(iii)

Gross Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related parties
(b) Otlrer tharr related pariies

Net Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related parties

(b) Other than related parties

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts (Net of Provision)

679.97

505.53
87.76

Nov,r Dolhi NE'V D:LIII



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR laca, unless otherwise stated)

6l Details on Principal Business Criteria (PBC)

Principal Business Crjteria for the company to be classified as " Housing Finance Company" as per the paragraph 4.1.17 of l\4aster Direction - Non Banking Financial Company -
Housing Finance Company (Reserue Bank) Directions, 2021 RBU2020-21173lDOR. FIN.HFC.CC. No. I 20103.1 0.1 3612020-21 daled 1 7 February, 202'l issued by RBI is given below:

Pertlculers As at
3l March

2A2S

As at
3l March

2ma
Financial Asseu Total Assets (Net of lntangible Assets)*

lncome From Financial Assets/ Gross lncome

Housing Finance/ Total Assets (Net of lntangible Assets)*

Housing Financ€ for individual / Total Assets (Net of lntangibl6 Ass6ts)*

94.41Vo

98.08%

60.56%

60.55%

93.48o/o

99.33%

61.56%
6032%

Note:- Above details provided as per PBC format provided by National Housing Bank (NHB).
*lntangible assets includes prepaid expense, Deferred Tax Assets (DTA), lntangible Assets under development and Software.

62 Group Structure

al50%

50r/. Structure of the Religare
Capital lvlarkets ("RCNI")

1000/0

100%

{ioi:dh

RCM lnc.
(usA )

1000/0

100%

100%

1000/0

100%

RCr\,l (UK) Ltd
(UK)

Tobler(UK) Limited
(UK)

Prcmotets:25.67Yo
Public:74.33%

Rellgare Ent€rpilses Limit€d i3 a

list€d€ntity

1m% 67.961%

Religare
Broking LinitedLimited

Care Health

Religare capital

underRCML

MIC lnsurance Religare Credit

Limited

5Vo
Rellgare HousinS

Oevelopment Finance
corporation Limited

5t.oo%

lEOF lnve*ment
Management Private

Limited {lV) Beligare Olgital

24.5%24.5%

Religare Care

(sec-8 company)

Dted subd.r 7 {7 lndia) - MIC became WO5 on Dec 08, 2O?3

Indk€ct subsl.:15(3 lndia + 13 lnternational)
lVr 1 {lndia)
Total subsidiary:23 (10 hdia + 13 lnt€rnatlonal)

@

Religare Enleerises Limited

Religare Capital Malkets
Limited(lndia)

Badleet Religare Securilies (Pvt) Ltd,Sri Lanka
(Holding 100% in BadleetAsset ilanagement (P) Ltd

Skategic Research Limited and BadleetWealth
Management (P) Ltd.

Lrd.

LtdRCtl (Europe) Limited
(UK)'

Kie Manaqement Limlted
(Brilish Vngin Islands)

RcM (Hong Kong) Ltd
(Hong Kong)

RCM Pte.

New Delhi

NEVV DELHI

HMI



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

63 lnformation namely, area, country of operation and joint venture partners with regard to joint ventures and overseas subsidiaries
The company does not have any joint ventures and subsidiary abroad.

64 Loans to Senior Officers and relatives of Directors

65 Structured Products
The Company doesn't have structured products, ptease refer note number 69 for securitization/ assignment transactions

66 Additional information pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated March 24,2021 with respect to
amendments in Schedule lll of Companies Act, 2013

(i) There are no proceedings which have been initiated or pending against the company for hotding any Benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) The company is not a witfuI defautter as dectared by any bank or financial lnstitution or any other lender.

(iii) The company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560

of Companies Act, 1956 except with one company as on March 31, 2025 for hotel booking and which is not material and thus has not
been reported.

(iv) There are no charges or Satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory period.

(v) There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts that have been surrendered or disctosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, '1961 (such us, search or surveyor any other retevant provisions of the
lncome Tax Act, 1961).

(vi) The company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

(vii) Utitisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The Company, as part of its normal business, grants loans and advances, makes investment, provides guarantees to and accept from
its customers, other entities and persons. These transactions are part of Company's normal housing finance business, which is
conducted ensuring adherence to a[[ regutatory requirements.
other than the transactions described above, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
("lntermediaries") with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shatl lend or invest in
party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Uttimate beneficiaries). The Company has atso not received any fund from any
parties (Funding party) with the understanding that the Company shatl whether, directty or indirectty [end or invest in other persons or
entities identified by or on behatf of the funding party ("Uttimate beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(viii) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the retated parties (as

defined under the Companies Act, 201 3), either severalty or Jointty with any other person that are:
(a) Repayabte on demand; or
(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

(ix) Since, the Company does not have any immovable property, clause related to titte deeds of property not held in the company's own

name is not applicable.
(x) During the financial year 2024-25 and 2023-24, The Company has not invested with number of tayers of Companies as prescribed under

ctause (87) of Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rutes, 2017.

67 The Code on Social Security, 2020 (the Code) has been enacted, which woutd impact contribution by the Company towards appticable social
security schemes. The Min'istry of Labour and Emptoyment has atso released draft rules thereunder on November 13, 2020 and has invited
suggestions from stakehotders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The actual impact on account of this change will be

evaluated and accounted for when notification becomes effective.

Particulars
As at

31 March 2025
As at

31 March 2024
Directors and their retatives
Entities associated with directors and their relatives
Senior Officers and their retatives

New Delhi

o

NEW D::LFtI



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

68 (A) (1) Sectoral exposure

Previous Year

Percentage of Gross NPAs

to total exposure in that
sector

4.45%

2.24y.

2-92%

99.12o/o

Gross NPAs

291.84

329.21

621.O5

295.45

Total Exposure (includes
on balance sheet and off.
balance sheet exposure)

6,565.32

14,691.13

21,256.45

298.08

Current Year

Percentage of Gross NPAs

to total exposure in that
sector

3.99%

3.45%

3.61%

o.oo%

Gross NPAs

232.77

447.20

679.97

Total Exposure (includes
on balance sheet and off-
balance sheet exposure)

5,840.83

12,965.77

29.38

1 8,835.98

o.81

Sectors

1 and Allied Activities
2. lndustrv
1...

11....

Others
Total of lndustry (i+ii+...+Others)

il...
Others
Total of Services (i+ii+...+Others)

4. Personal Loans
I Consumer Credit (Non Housine)
2 Loans given for creation/ enhancement of
immovable assets (Housing Loan)
Others
Total of Personal Loans (i+ii+...+Others)

5. Others, (loan to corporate/Builder)

Note:

Credit'.

exposure to specific sub-sector/industry is less than 10 per cent of Tier I Capitat, such exposures shatt be ctubbed and disctosed as ,,Others,' within that sector.

31-tAar-2431-ttar-25

-nlEU/ DELHITotal amount <t)

) roup i'e of the HFC on customersto

Nevl Delhi

5E (A) (2) Intra-group exposures

exposuresTotal amount



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

68 (A) (3) Unhedged foreign currency exposure

68 (B) Related Party Disclosure

1 83-88
78.41
39.30

1 39.99

25.50

73.94

4.80
71.70

1,009.84

26.98
3.11

134-43

257.80

vpar
Previous

1-OOO-00

1,600.00

166.71
75.79
30.84

283.O4

28.50

98.45

12.89
83-29

148-92
o.77

56-10

Total

vear
Current

1,000.00

39.30

1.50

25.50

71 .70

1,09

o.17

Previous Year

500.00

4.80

30.84

13.23

28.50

1.50

Current
vear

8.63
83.29

1.69

Others

I-\

vear
Previous

ttS/
vt
n[ Nt\ t L/l

@

Relatives of Key

Management Personnel

vear
Current

I 83.88
78.41

vear
Previous

166.71

75.79

Key Management

Current
vearvear

Previous

a

Associates/ Joint
ventures

Current
vear

i\ /'\- 
,,-

/ \-'io

f-- -}\4 ,1,- r_/^ \

|ie'r.' Deihi

,:----.1S
or,: 

" - -r].Y'-.'
--:.ji.-z

vear
Previous

l<i t
t--'6
a

Subsidiaries

vear
Current

1 38.49

73.94

1,009.84

25.89
3.11

134.26

257.80

Previous
vear

1.000.00
1,100.00

96.95

147.23
0.77

56.1 0

269.81

Parent (as per
ownership or control)

Current
vear

1,000.00

4.26

Directors Sittins fee
Retatives of directors
Others

Other oavabte
Purchase of fixed/ other
assets

Sate of fixed/other assets
lnterest oaid
lnterest received
Others

Payments made by RHDFCL

on behalf of RFL

KMP Remuneration
- Directors
-Other KMPs

Post Employment Benefits
Plans

Expense Reimbursement to
other Comoanies

Related Party

Items

Borrowinps
-Outstandins at vear end

Maximum during the year"

Deposits
Ptacement of deposits
Advances
Outstandins at vear end
Maximum durine the vear
lnvestments
-Outstandine at vear end
Maximum durine the vear
lnter corporate deposit
oavable

"The amount of Rs. 500.00 lacs pertain to feltow subsidiaries in previous financial year 2023-24



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

68 (C) Disclosure of complaints
1) Summary information on complaints received by the HFC from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

3 1 -rrtar- 24
received the customers

9

9
3.1 0f the HFC

31-Mar-25

8

Particulars

Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year
Number of complaints received during the year
Number of complaints disposed durinq the vear

Number of comptaints pending at the end of the year
i\,laintainable complaints received by the HFC from Office of Ombudsman
Number of maintainabte complaints received by the HFC from Office of Ombudsman

Of 5, number of comptaints resotved in favour of the HFC bv Office of Ombudsman
Of 5, number of comptaints resotved through conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman
Of 5, number of comptaints resotved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman aqainst the HFC

Number of Awards unimptemented within the stiputated time (other than those aooealed)

5.1

5.2
5.3

S, No.

1

7

3

4

5.

6.

* The Reserve Bank - lntegrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 notification is not appticabte on HFCs as on March 31,2025

2) Top five grounds of complaints received by the HFCS from customers

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Of 5, number of
complaints pending

beyond 30 days

6

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Number of complaints pending at the end of the
year

5

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

% increase/ decrease in the number
of complaints received over the

previous year
4

Current Year
33%

50%

o%

1 00%

100%

OYo

NA

Previous Year
200%

NA

80%

NA

0%

NA

o%

9

0

qI

r

Number of complaints
received during the

year
3

2

1

1

0

2

1

1

8

3

2

1

1;:\

IFI HIt\lF'\,rjv)

Number of complaints
pending at the beginning

of the year
2

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL /
NIL l

f d'.{ Rol reta'betl.\
Pf^o#ib,-paiJ&^)etated

1J56rvice orlcer bFfud

\6_\ Total lsl
t.;l NlewotRu,it lgl

Grounds of complaints, (i.e. complaints
relating to)

1

Settlement related
Loan disbursement retated
LeeaI oroceedines related
ProDertv Daoers related

ROI related
Service officer retated

Others

Total

Settlement retated
Loan disbursement related
Leealgrol'Fdiaes re tated



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

68 (D) Corporate governance

Disctosures in retation to corporate governance is disctosed in corporate governance section of Director reports.

68 (E) Breach of covenant
As on 31st March 2025, the Company had no borrowings and was not in breach of the toan covenants. (As on 3'lst March 2024, the Company was not in

breach of the toan covenants).

68 (F) Divergence in Asset classification and Provisioning

For Fy2024-25 andFyZ0Z3-24, no instance of divergence in asset classification and additional provisioning requirements was assessed and advised by the

Nationat Housing Bank (NHB) to the Company. Accordingty, any additionat disclosures in this regard are not applicabte on the Company.

69 Disclosures pursuant to RBt Notification - RBI 1DOW2O21-22/86 DOR.STR.REC.S1 121 .04.04812021-22 dated 24 September 2021

(a) (i) The Company has not transferred through assignment in respect of loans not in default during the financiat year ended 31 March 2025

Detaits of transfer th ment in of loans not the financiaI 31 March 2024.

(b) The Company has not acquired loans through assignment (not in defautt)/ novation and loan participation during the financial year ended 31 March

2025 and 31 March 2024

(c) Details of stressed toans transferred du the financiaI ended 31 March 2025

(c Details of stressed loans transferred d the financial year ended 31 March 2024

(d) The Company has not acquirecl any stressecl loans during the financial year ended 3'l March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

(e) pursuant to the Master Direction - RBI (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions, 202'1, during the Financiat Year 2024-7025 and Financial Year 2023-

Z0Z4 , the Company has no instances of reptace loans from transferred to transferee(s) or pay damages arising out of any representation or warranty.

Details of Receipt held and credit

As at
3{ lrtarch 2024

As at
31 March 2025

Amount in LacsAmount in Lacs

Particulars

3 1 90.30
127.00

69.00
10%

100"/.

NA

Aggregate amount of loans transferred

Weighted average maturity (residual maturity in months)

Weighted average hotding period (in months)

Retention of beneficiat economic interest by the originator
Tangibte security coverage
Ratinq-wise distribution of rated [oans

To Asget Reconstruction
Companies (ARC)

To permitted transferees & To
other transferees

NPA strA NPA srA

No. of
outstandi of loans transferred

Wei residuat tenor of the loans transferred ln

Net book value of loans transferred the time of transfer)#

regate consideration

Additionat consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in eq4]qliqql!

Particularc To Asset Reconstruction
Companies (ARC)

To permitted transferees & To
other transferees

NPA s^{A NPA sfiA

No. of
of [oans transferred ln Lacs)

Weighted residuat tenor of the toans transferred months

Net book vatue of loans transferred the time of transfer)#

consideration ln

Additionat consideration reatized in respect of accounts transferred in eartier years

Particulars Rating Agency 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

- RARC 059 TRUST Acuit6 Ratinqs & Research Ltd ACUITE RR1 ACUITE RR1

Security Receipts - RARC 080 (RHDFC HL) TRUST
lnfomerics VaIuation and Rating

Private Limited
IVR RR1+ IVR RR1+

Neyr Dolhi

NEW DELHI

* *



Religare Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

70 DisctosurespursuanttoRBl Notification-RBl/2021 -22/112DOR.CRE.REC.No.60/03.10.001 /2021-22,para3.2.3(f)-DisctosuresinScateBased
Regulation dated October 22,2021
(i) No modified opinion and audit qualification during the FY 2024'25 by the Auditor.
(i) No exceptional items of income and expenditure during the Financial Year 2024-25.

The notes are an integral part of these Financials Statements

Signature to Note 1 toTO forming Part of the Financial Statement For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP

Firm Registration Number:

000756N/N500441

Chartered Accountants

Jalaj Soni

Partner
Membershi p Number: 528799

Ptace: New Delhi
Date : 05 May 2025

9r<<r*'
Praveen Kumar Tripathi
Non-Executive lndependent
Director
(DlN: 02167497)

Rahu

Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer
(DrN-0872091 7)

at Officer

Place : New Dethi
Date : 05 May 2025
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